Members:
Stan Retz
Peggy Crooks
Jerry Noffel

TENTATIVE AGENDA
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AD HOC COMMITTEE
NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
MONDAY, AUGUST 7, 2017 10:00AM
EXECUTIVE CONFERENCE ROOM

Call to Order

L. Public Comments
I1. Review and approval of minutes (October 18, 2016 and November 7, 2016)

Motion: To recommend approval of the October 18, 2016 and November 7,
2016 minutes as presented.

III.  Advanced Refunding Discussion — Mr. Sitowitz

IV.  Adjournment



NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AD HOC COMMITTEE
OCTOBER 18,2016

An Ad Hoc Committee of the North Brevard County Hospital District Board of Directors met on
October 18, 2016 in the Executive Conference Room. The following members, representing a
quorum, were present:

Stan Retz, Chairman
Peggy Crooks
Jerry Noffel

Others Present:

George Mikitarian, CEO

Michael Sitowitz, Controller

Pamela Perez, Financial Assistant
Paul Towell, Hamlin Capital Advisors
Jeff Hess, Berkeley Research Group

Call to Order
Mr. Retz called the meeting to order at 3:24 p.m.

Review and approval of Minutes

The following motion was made by Ms. Crooks, seconded by Mr. Noffel and approved without
objection.

Mo*~- To approve the AdHoc Committee minutes of September 29, 2016
as amended.

BRG Update

Jeff Hess from Berkeley Research Group updated the committee on the status of the following
topics:

$16.2 mil implemented in recurring financial improvements
Over 90 initiatives

Workforce

Unplanned Expenses

Physician Practices

e Cash Collections

e A/R

e DNFB



Ad Hoc Committee
June 27, 2016
Page 2 of 2

Refunding

Paul Towell spoke to five scenarios regrading rated and non rated bonds. The following are items
the committee would like to have for the next meeting:

e Present Value Savings on Regions
Total Dollar raised/New Debt
Advance Refunding

Add Siemens

Run Parallel Analysis

Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 5:07 p.m.

Stan Retz, Chairman



NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AD HOC COMMITTEE
NOVEMBER 7, 2016

An Ad Hoc Committee of the North Brevard County Hospital District Board of Directors met on
November 7, 2016 in the Executive Conference Room. The following members, representing a
quorum, were present:

Stan Retz, Chairman
Peggy Crooks, entered at 9:25am
Jerry Noffel (absent-excused)

Others Present:

Michael Sitowitz, Controller

Pamela Perez, Financial Assistant

Mike Armstrong, Hamlin Capital Advisors
Sharon loannidis, Hamlin Capital Advisors

Call to Order

Mr. Retz called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.

Refunding

Sharon Joannidis from Hamlin Capital reviewed the following items for rated, non-rated and
Siemens:

AIC

Avg. Annual Savings
PV Savings
Maturity

New Covenants

Next step will be to fully explore more with Siemens and gather more information, schedule a
call with Siemens and BRG and develop a closing timeline.



Ad Hoc Committee
June 27, 2016
Page 2 of 2

Adjourn—-~=-+*

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:49 a.m.

Stan Retz, Chairman



Members:

Michael Sitowitz, Chairperson (July 1, 2014-June 30, 2017)
Michael Allen, Vice-Chairperson (July 1, 2016 — June 30, 2019)
Stan Retz (January 1, 2016-December 31, 2019)

Julia Reyes-Mateo (July 1, 2016 — June 30, 2019)

Dawn Hohnhorst (April 1, 2016 — March 31, 2019)

Warren Berry (January 1, 2016- December 31, 2019)

PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
PENSION ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE
AUGUST 7,2017 @ 11:00 A M.
EXECUTIVE CONFERENCE ROOM

CALL TO ORDER

I. Review and approval of minutes (May 1, 2017)

Motion: To recommend approval of the May 1, 2017 minutes as presented.

II. Public Comments
II.  Quarterly Investment Update — Bott-Anderson
IV.  403b Summary Plan Description (SPD) Review — Michael Sitowitz
V. Membership Renewal for Michael Sitowitz
Motion: Recommend the Budget and Finance Committee approves the renewal of

membership for Michael Sitowitz for a three-year term from July 1, 2017 through
June 30, 2020.



PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
PENSION ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
MAY 1, 2017

The members of the Pension Administrative Committee met in the Executive Conference Room
on May 1, 2017 at 10:06 a.m. The following representing a quorum, were present:

Pension Administration Committee:
Michael Sitowitz, Chairperson
Stan Retz
Dawn Hohnhorst

Absent/Excused:
Michael Allen, Vice-Chairperson
Roberta Chaildin
Warren Berry

Others Present:
Pamela Perez, Recording Secretary
Julia Reyes Mateo
John Anderson, Bott-Anderson
Tim Anderson, Bott-Anderson
Douglas Lozen, Foster & Foster

Call To Order

The meeting was called to order by the Chairperson at 10:06 a.m.

Review and Approval of Minutes

The following motion was made by Ms. Hohnhorst and seconded by Mr. Berry and approved
without objection.

Motion: To approve the PAC minutes of February 6, 2017 and the March 6, 2017minutes as
amended.

Public Comments

No public comments presented

Appointment fc~ Peplacement for Roberta Chaildin

Mr. Sitowitz nominated Julia Reyes Mateo to replace the vacant position of Roberta Chaildin as
a committee member for the remainder of Ms. Chaildin’s term which expires June 30, 2019.



The following motion was made by Mr. Retz and seconded by Ms, Hohnhorst and approved
without objection.

Motion: To recommend the Board of Directors approve the appointment of Julia Reyes Mateo

to the Pension Administrative Committee for the position vacated by Roberta Chaildin for the
remainder of the term which expires June 30, 2019.

Quarterly Investment Reports-Pension, 403(b) and 407(b)

Tim Anderson from Bott-Anderson update the Committee the Pension, 403(b) and 457(b)
Investment Reports. Tim Anderson opened with the Market Commentary. The Pension portfolio
had a fiscal year-to-date return of 5.15% and a Calendar year-to-date return of 4.52%.

The 403(b) and 457(b) plans are performing well.

The following 403(b) funds are being watched;
e Allianz NFJ Small Cap Value
e Fidelity Advisor Leveraged Company Stock
e Invesco Charter Fund (formerly AIM)

The following 457(b) managers are on the watch list:
e Dreyfus International Bond
e (Goldman Sachs Growth

GASB 67/68 Re~~~t/Pension Actuarial Report

Douglas Lozen from Foster & Foster updated that at the last meeting there was a vote to reduce
the investment assumption rate from 8% to 7.6% and that has been reflected in the study. Mr.
Lozen also gave a brief summary of the Pension Actuarial Report. A summary of this report is as
follows:

For contribution requirements, the Total Required Contribution is $0.00. The Experience since
the prior valuation has been less favorable than expected. The primary source for the unfavorable
experiences included heavier retirement and termination experience than expected, a decrease in
the PBGC lump sum interest rate from 1.25% to 0.50%. Mortality was also updated according to
changes required by the Laws of Florida. These losses were partially offset by an 8.54%
investment return, exceeding the 7.6% assumption.

The plan is currently showing as being overfunded.

The following motion was made by Ms. Hohnhorst, seconded by Mr. Sitowitz and approved
without objection.

Motion: To recommend the Budget and Finance Committee accept the Pension Plan
Actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2016.



Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 10:58 a.m.

Michael Sitowitz, Chairman



m‘ AT YTY f‘*f\‘1MI""I"I“‘A
Herman A, Cole, Jr. (ex-officio)
Peggy Crooks

Billie Fitzgerald

Elizabeth Galfo, M.D.

Robert L. Jordan, Ir., C.M.

George Mikitarian (non-voting)
Jerry Noffel

Aluino Ochoa, M.D., President/Medical Staff
Stan Retz, CPA

Maureen Rupe

Ashok Shah, M.D.

Patricia Alexander, M.D., Designee
Kenneth McElynn, M.D., Designee
Christopher Manion, M.D., Designee
Khalid Siddiqui, M.D,

Pamela Tronetti, D.O., Designee

NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
QUALITY COMMITTEE
MONDAY, AUGUST 7, 2017
12:00 P.M.
EXECUTIVE CONFERENCE ROOM

CALL TO ORDER

L Approval of Minutes
Motion to approve the minutes of the May 1, 2017 & June 5, 2017 meeting.

I Vision Statement

I Public Comment

Iv. Dashboard Review

V. Patient Safety Movement

VL TJC — Integrated Care Certification (ICC) Update

VII. TJC — Dr. Chassin

VIII.  Other
V. Executive Session (if necessary)
ADJOURNMENT

NOTE: IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE EDUCATION COMMITTEE WITH RESPECT TO ANY

MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, HE/SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS AND, FOR SUCH PURPOSES, MAY
NEED TO ENSURE A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE AND THAT THE RECORD INCLUDES TESTIMONY AND
EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED.

PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY WHO NEED A SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCEEDING SHOULD
CONTACT MS. LISA CAVALLERO, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF SUPPORT SERVICES, AT 951 NORTH WASHINGTON AVENUE,
TITUSVILLE, FLORIDA 32796, AT LEAST FORTY EIGHT (48) HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. FOR INFORMATION CALL (321) 268-
6190 OR (321) 383-9829 (TDD). THIS NOTICE WILL FURTHER SERVE TO INFORM THE PUBLIC THAT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF NORTH BREVARD MEDICAL SUPPORT, INC. MAY BE IN ATTENDANCE AND MAY PARTICIPATE IN DISCUSSIONS
OF MATTERS BEFORE THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS EDUCATIONAL,
GOVERNMENTAL AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS COMMITTEE. TO THE EXTENT OF SUCH DISCUSSION, A JOINT PUBLIC
MEETING OF THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT, BOARD OF DIRECTORS EDUCATIONAL, GOVERNMENTAL
AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS COMMITTEE AND NORTH BREVARD MEDICAL SUUPORT, INC. SHALL BE CONDUCTED.



NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
QUALITY COMMITTEE

A regular meeting of the Quality Committee of the North Brevard County Hospital District
operating Parrish Medical Center was held on May 1, 2017 in the Executive Conference Room.
The following members were present.

Herman A. Cole, Jr., Chairman
Billie Fitzgerald

Elizabeth Galfo, M.D.

Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M.,
Christopher Manion, M.D.
Kenneth McElynn, M.D.
George Mikitarian (non-voting)
Jerry Noffel

Aluino Ochoa, M.D.

Stan Retz, CPA

Maureen Rupe

Ashok Shah, M.D.

Khalid Siddiqui, M.D.

Member(s) Absent:
Peggy Crooks (excused)
Patricia Alexander, M.D. (excused)
Pamela Tronetti, D.O. (excused)

CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Cole called the meeting to order at 1:05 p.m.

REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Mr. Jordan, seconded by Mr. Retz and
approved (12 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MARCH 6, 2017
MEETING AS DISTRIBUTED.

VISION STATEMENT

Mr. Loftin summarized the committee’s vision statement.



QUALITY COMMITTEE
MAY 1, 2017
PAGE 2

PUBLIC COMMENTS

No public comments were made.

QUALITY "ASHBOARD REVIEW

Mr. Loftin reviewed the Value Dashboard included in the agenda packet and discussed each
indicator score as it relates to clinical quality and cost. Copies of the PowerPoint slides
presented are appended to the file copy of these minutes.

LEAPF™NG
Mr. Loftin announced that the spring Leapfrog scores were released. PMC was one of sixty-
three hospitals nationwide, who has consistently achieved an “A” rating since 2012. He noted

that scoring criteria will change in the fall of 2017.

2017 TOP 10 PATIENT SAFETY CONCERNS

Mr. Loftin shared with the committee, the 2017 ECRI top 10 safety concerns.

THE JOINT COMMISSION LEADERSHIP STANDARDS

Mr. Loftin reviewed the Joint Commission’s Operations Leadership Standards with the
Committee.

OTHER
No other business was discussed.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 2:05 p.m.

Herman A. Cole, Jr.
Chairman



NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
QUALITY COMMITTEE

A regular meeting of the Quality Committee of the North Brevard County Hospital District
operating Parrish Medical Center was held on June 5, 2017 in the Executive Conference Room.
The following members were present.

Herman A. Cole, Jr., Chairman
Patricia Alexander, M.D.
Peggy Crooks (12:08 p.m.)
Billie Fitzgerald

Robert L. Jordan, Jr., CM.,
Christopher Manion, M.D.
George Mikitarian (non-voting)
Jerry Noffel (12:08 p.m.)

Stan Retz, CPA

Maureen Rupe

Ashok Shah, M.D. (12:08 p.m.)
Khalid Siddiqui, M.D.

Member(s) Absent:
Elizabeth Galfo, M.D. (excused)
Kenneth McElynn, M.D. (excused)
Aluino Ochoa, M.D. (excused)
Pamela Tronetti, D.O. (excused)

CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Cole called the meeting to order at 12:07 p.m.

REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Mr. Jordan, seconded by Mr. Retz and
approved (8 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions). Ms. Crooks, Mr. Noffel, and Dr. Shah were absent
when the vote was taken.

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE APRIL 3, 2017
MEETING AS DISTRIBUTED.

VISION STATEMENT

Mr. Loftin summarized the committee’s vision statement.



QUALITY COMMITTEE
JUNE 5,2017
PAGE 2

PUBLIC COM™MENTS

No public comments were made.

QUALITY DASHBOARD REVIEW

Mr. Loftin reviewed the Value Dashboard included in the agenda packet and discussed each
indicator score as it relates to clinical quality and cost. Copies of the PowerPoint slides
presented are appended to the file copy of these minutes.

~T'LTURE OF SAFETY

Mr. Loftin shared with the committee that The Joint Commission is sending safety surveys prior
to an organization’s triennial survey. The surveys are utilized on site when assessing the
organization and again at the exit conference. Mr. Loftin indicated that the Game Plan drives
each of the key areas and they are constantly reassessed.

HOSPITA"™ “OMPARE

Mr. Loftin shared with the committee, a preview of the July update on CMS’s Hospital Compare
website. He indicated that PMC maintained a 4-star rating and noted the opportunities and
strengths.

THE JOINT COMMISSION LEADERSHIP STANDARDS

Mr. Loftin reviewed the remaining Joint Commission’s Operations Leadership Standards with
the Committee.

CITY OF TITUSVILLE LIASION

Scott Larese, City Manager updated the Committee on various projects and noted that Phase 1 of
Titus Landing is complete; Splash Pad opening June 10™; landscaping and painting to US1/Main
Street complete; Café Chocolate/Bank Bldg. has been sold; Kloibler’s has been sold;
Cumberland Farms on Cheney Hwy to open min-July and a second location is planned at
US1/Garden Street.

MARKETING OVERIVEW

Mr. Mikitarian noted the reason PMC is able to achieve high scores on Quality and Safety on a
monthly basis, and we are the only board Lean Six Sigma Yellow Belt certified, is due to the
ongoing emphasis on Quality and Safety. Ms. Sellers introduced representatives from WFTV
who acknowledged that PMC has a good story to tell, and shared the multi-faceted campaign
which is ongoing. Discussion ensued regarding the digital campaign and it was noted updates
will be presented quarterly.



QUALITY COMMITTEE
JUNE 5, 2017
PAGE 3

TOLD'D
o

No other business was discussed.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 1:46 p.m.

Herman A. Cole, Jr.
Chairman



Board Value Dashboard: August 2017
| CMS/IHI Trip'e Ar)

* Better Care For

Core Measures”

Hospital Acquired Individuals
Conditions e Better Health for
. _ Populations
Patient Experience * Lower Costs Through
o Improvement
E.D. Care

o Value= Quality/Cost
Readmission

(Most current 3 months of data; April, May, June)



FINANCE COMMITTEE MEMBERS:

Stan Retz, Chairperson

Peggy Crooks, Vice Chairperson

Jerry Noftel

Elizabeth Galfo, M.D.

Robert Jordan

Billie Fitzgerald

Herman Cole (ex-officio)

George Mikitarian, President/CEO (non-voting)
Aluino Ochoa, M.D., (alternate)

TENTATIVE AGENDA
BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - REGULAR
NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
MONDAY, AUGUST 7, 2017
EXECUTIVE CONFERENCE ROOM
(IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING QUALITY COMMITTEE)
SECOND FLOOR, ADMINISTRATION

CALL TO ORDER

II.
III.

Iv.

VL

VIL

Review and approval of minutes (May 1, 2017 and June S, 2017)

Motion: To recommend approval of the May 1, 2017 and June 5, 2017 minutes as
presented.

Public Comments

Report from Titusville City Council Liaison- Scott Larese

Quarterly Investment Update — Bott-Anderson

Home Dialysis Joint Venture Partnership with DaVita — Mr. Bradford
Motion: Recommend the Board of Directors approve the proposed home dialysis
investment in the amount not to exceed $395,200. The investment will hold NBMS'’s
stake in Woodford Dialysis, LLC at 40%. This motion is contingent upon approval of
the North Brevard Medical Support Board to accept same said conditions.

Financial Review — Mr. Sitowitz

FY 2018 Capital Budget — Mr. Sitowitz

Motion: Recommend the Board of Directors approve the FY 2018 Capital Budget in
the amount of $2,300,000.



VIII. FY 2018 Major Budget Volume Assumptions & Operating Budget — Mr. Sitowitz

Motion: Recommend the Board of Directors approve the fiscal year 2018 Major Volume
Assumptions and Operating Budget with an operating margin of 2.0% as presented.

IX. Pension Membership Renewal for Michael Sitowitz — Mr. Sitowitz

Mc“~1: Recommend the Budget and Finance Committee approves the renewal of
Pension membership for Michael Sitowitz for a three-year term from July 1, 2017
through June 30, 2020.

X. Quarterly Clinical Quality Value Analysis Update — Mr. Sitowitz
XI. Quarterly FY17 Capital Update — Mr. Sitowitz
XII. Public Hearing Dates (For Information Only) — Mr. Sitowitz

XIII. Disposal

Motion: To recommend to the Board of Directors to declare the equipment listed in the
requests for Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Property Forms as surplus and obsolete
and dispose of same in accordance with FS274.05 and FS274.96.

XIV. Executive Session (if necessary)

ADJOURNMENT

NOTE: IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE FINANCE COMMITTEE WITH RESPECT TO
ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, HE/SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS AND, FOR SUCH
PURPOSES, MAY NEED TO ENSURE A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE AND THAT THE RECORD
INCLUDES TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED.

PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY WHO NEED A SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCEEDING
SHOULD CONTACT MS. LISA CAVALLERO, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, AT 951 NORTH WASHINGTON AVENUE,
TITUSVILLE, FLORIDA 32796, AT LEAST FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. FOR INFORMATION
CALL (321) 383-9829 (TDD).

THIS NOTICE WILL FURTHER SERVE TO INFORM THE PUBLIC THAT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
NORTH BREVARD MEDICAL SUPPORT, INC. MAY BE IN ATTENDANCE AND MAY PARTICIPATE IN DISCUSSIONS OF
MATTERS BEFORE THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS FINANCE
COMMITTEE. TO THAT EXTENT OF SUCH DISCUSSIONS, A JOINT PUBLIC MEETING OF THE NORTH BREVARD
COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS FINANCE COMMITTEE AND THE NORTH BREVARD MEDICAL
SUPPORT, INC. SHALL BE CONDUCTED.



NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

A regular meeting of the Budget and Finance Committee of the North Brevard County Hospital
District operating Parrish Medical Center was held on May 1, 2017 in the Executive Conference
Room. The following members, representing a quorum, were present:

Stan Retz, Chairman

Herman A. Cole, Jr.

Billie Fitzgerald

Elizabeth Galfo, M.D.

Robert Jordan

George Mikitarian (non-voting)
Jerry Noffel

Aluino Ochoa, M.D.

Member(s) Absent:
Peggy Crooks (excused)

A copy of the attendance roster of others present during the meeting is appended to the file copy
of these minutes.

CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Retz called the meeting to order at 12:39 p.m.

QUARTERLY INVESTMENT UPDATE

Messrs. John & Tim Anderson reviewed the 1st Quarter Performance for both the Operating and
the Pension Funds. Mr. Tim Anderson presented a brief market update and Mr. John Anderson

noted for the Operating Fund and Pension Fund the year-to-date and historical performance. He

also outlined the manager performance.

OPERATING ACCOUNT - MONEY MANAGER REPLACEMENT

Mr. John Anderson briefed the committee concerning recent actions by money manager,
Lombardia Capital Partners (“Lombardia”). He noted that Lombardia recently lost its
international investment management team and has decided to close its doors, necessitating the
need to find replacement managers for the international portion of the Operating portfolio. Mr.
Anderson presented three manager options for replacement. Discussion ensued and the
following motion was made by Dr. Galfo, seconded by Mr. Cole and approved (7 ayes, 0 nays, 0
abstentions).



BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
MAY 1, 2017
PAGE 2

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO
APPROVE REPLACING LOMBARDIA CAPITAL PARTNERS WITH STRATEGIC
GLOBAL ADVISORS (SGA) LARGE CAP INTERNATIONAL ADR AND CLEAR
BRIDGE INVESTMENTS VALUE CORE GLOBAL ADR AS THE INTERNATIONAL
MANAGERS FOR THE OPERATING PORTFOLIO.

CITY CO"™ 1L LIAISON

Mr. Scott Larese, City Manager addressed and updated the committee on the status of the city,
and distributed the most recent Titusville Talking Points.

RE“™SS
Mr. Retz recessed the meeting at 1:05 p.m.

RECONMYENE

Mr. Retz reconvened the meeting at 2:10 p.m.

PTVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Mr. Cole, seconded by Mr. Jordan and
approved (7 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO APPROVE THE MARCH 6, 2017 MEETING, AS
PRESENTED.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

No public comments made.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Mr. Sitowitz summarized the March 2017 financial statements. Discussion ensued regarding the
reimbursement reductions by the state and federal government, amount of uncompensated and
charity care, options for additional funding and the potential funding each option might produce.
All agreed management’s response over the last several years had placed the District in a good
current position, however, future adjustments would continue to be needed.



BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
MAY 1, 2017
PAGE 3

ORTHOP"™IC SERVICE LINE EQUIPMENT

Mr. Matt Graybill summarized the memorandum contained in the packet relative to the Hana
Bed/Table and Spider Arm Holder. Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by
Mr. Noffel, seconded by Mr. Cole and approved (7 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO
APPROVE THE PURCHASE OF THE HANA BED/TABLE AND SPIDER ARM
HOLDER AT A TOTAL COST NOT TO EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF $120,611.

NETWORK INFRASTRUCTURE SWITCH REPLACEMENT

Mr. Sitowitz summarized the memorandum contained in the packet relative to the budgeted
network infrastructure switch. Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Mr.
Jordan, seconded by Mr. Cole and approved (7 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO
APPROVE THE PURCHASE OF THE NETWORK INFRASTRUCTURE SWITCH
REPLACEMENTS (PROJECT #17-721-05) AT A TOTAL COST NOT TO EXCEED
THE BUDGETED AMOUNT OF $253,135.

OTHER

Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Dr. Galfo, seconded by Mr. Cole and
approved (7 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO RECOMMEND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ACCEPT THE PENSION PLAN ACTUARIAL VALUATION AS OF OCTOBER 1, 2016.

Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Mr. Jordan, seconded by Mr. Cole and
approved (7 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO RECOMMEND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
APPROVE THE APPOINTMENTS F JULIA REYES MATEO TO THE PENSION
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE FOR THE POSITION VACATED BY ROBERTA
CHAILDIN FOR THE REMAINDER OF THE TERM WHICH EXPIRES JUNE 30, 2019.

ADJOURMMTNT

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 3:02p.m.

Stan Retz
Chairperson



NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

A regular meeting of the Budget and Finance Committee of the North Brevard County Hospital
District operating Parrish Medical Center was held on June 5, 2017 in the Executive Conference
Room. The following members, representing a quorum, were present:

Stan Retz, Chairman

Herman A. Cole, Jr.

Peggy Crooks

Billie Fitzgerald

Robert Jordan

George Mikitarian (non-voting)
Jerry Noffel

Member(s) Absent:

Elizabeth Galfo, M.D. (excused)
Aluino Ochoa, M.D. (excused)

A copy of the attendance roster of others present during the meeting is appended to the file copy
of these minutes.

CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Retz called the meeting to order at 2:34 p.m.

RFY™ Y AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Mr. Cole, seconded by Ms. Fitzgerald
and approved (6 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO APPROVE THE APRIL 3, 2017 MEETING, AS
PRESENTED.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

No public comments made.

FINANCIAL °*VIEW

Mr. Sitowitz summarized the April 2017 financial statements. Discussion ensued regarding the
budgeting process which is currently under way. Mr. Sitowitz introduced Robert (Bob)
Ondreizk as the new Director of Patient Financial Services.



BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
JUNE 5, 2017
PAGE 2

OPHTHALMOLOGY SERVICE LINE EQUIPMENT

Mr. Matt Graybill summarized the memorandum contained in the packet relative to Surgical Eye
Stretchers, Surgical Microscope, and Surgical Vision System. Discussion ensued and the
following motion was made by Ms. Crooks, seconded by Ms. Fitzgerald and approved (6 ayes, 0
nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO
APPROVE THE UNBUDGETED PURCHASE OF THE SURGICAL EYE
STRETCHERS, THE SURGICAL MICROSCOPE, AND THE SURGICAL VISION
SYSTEM AT A TOTAL COST NOT TO EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF $259,519.08

DISPC<** OF SURPLUS PROPERTY

Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Mr. Jordan, seconded by Mr. Cole,
and approved (6 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions)

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO
DECLARE THE EQUIPMENT LISTED IN THE REQUESTS FOR DISPOSAL OF
OBSOLETE OR SURPLUS PROPERTY FORMS AS SURPLUS AND OBSOLETE AND
DISPOSE OF SAME IN ACCORDANCE WITH FS274.05 AND FS274.96.

OTHER

No other business was discussed.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 3:19p.m.

Stan Retz
Chairperson



M
PARRISH

MEDICAL CENTER
MEMORANDUM
To: Stan Retz, Chairman
Budget & Finance Committee
From: Jeremy Bradford, Vice President — Operations, Outpatient Services, and

Business Development
Subject: Home Dialysis Joint Venture Partnership with DaVita

Date: July 27,2017

Parrish Medical Center, on behalf of North Brevard Medical Support, Inc. (NBMS), has engaged
in discussions with DaVita to add to the current partnership, Woodford Dialysis, LLC, to provide
home dialysis services at Titus Landing. The collaboration with DaVita is a strategic partnership
which will allow us to expand home dialysis services, providing the high quality care of which
our community is accustomed, while increasing financial efficiencies. This venture will keep
our investment at 40%.

The total investment in the joint venture for home dialysis is $988,000. Contributions are based
on the percentage of joint venture ownership. NBMS’s portion will remain at 40%, which is
$395,200. Funding will first come from NBMS’s share of accumulated earnings with the
remaining funds coming from cash calls. The proposed funding schedule is outlined below.

14.4%,0r$ 56,841 upon agreement execution

49.2%, or $194,349 30 days after the start of construction

28.6%, or $112,561 90 days after the start of construction
7.8%, 0r$ 31,449 30 days after Certificate of Occupancy.

Woodford Dialysis, LLC already has a lease with PMC for on-site dialysis on the first floor of
Titus Landing. It is anticipated that home dialysis will occupy 2,590 sf of space on the third
floor of Titus Landing, for a lease period of 10 years. The first patient treated is anticipated on
or around April 1, 2019.




Therefore, we make the following motion:

"~tion: Recommend the Board of Directors approve the proposed home dialysis investment
in the amount not to exceed $395,200. The investment will hold NBMS'’s stake in Woodford
Dialysis, LLC at 40%. This motion is contingent upon approval of the North Brevard Medical
Support Board to accept same said conditions.

Should you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me at
Jeremy.bradford@parrishmed.com or 268-6106.




i

M

~
oy S
MEDICAL CENTER

MEMORANDUM

To: Budget & Finance Committee

From: Michael Sitowitz

Controller
Subject: FY 2018 Capital Budget
Date: July 30, 2017

Attached is the FY 2018 Capital Budget item listing in department order. The total capital
budget is $2,300,000. As you will note, we highlighted five items totaling $1,196,798 which
represent capital expenditures over $150,000 per item. These five items will need to be brought
back before the Board for approval before the purchase can be made in FY 2018 which is in
accordance with Policy No. 9500-2.

The remaining thirty items total $967,771 and will be purchased during our normal operating
activities. Any purchase that exceeds the approved amount or not approved as part of the budget,
will be purchased utilizing our general contingency, which has been established this year at
$135,431 for all Capital related items.

We recommend the approval of the attached capital budget.

Motion: Recommend the Board of Directors approve the FY 2018 Capital Budget in the
amount of $2,300,000.

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 268-6351 or email me at
michael.sitowitz@parrishmed.com.

Attachment






U
PARRISH

MEDICAL CENTER
MEMORANDUM
To: Budget & Finance Committee
From: Michael Sitowitz, Controller

Subject: FY18 Major Budget Volume Assumptions & FY18 Operating Budget

Date: July 30, 2017

Attached please find the budget overview information sheet

Major Budget " ~"~me assumptions

In building the budget volume assumptions for FY2018, we considered the following external factors:
* Modeling to forecast future volumes based upon historical trends.

e A shift of OP Diagnostic visits from PMC and PSJ to Parrish Healthcare Titus Landing.
Approximately 5.0% of PMC OP Diagnostics are expected to shift to this location.

e Volume related to the opening of Parrish Healthcare at Port Canaveral
® An increase in surgical volume related to Ophthalmology and Orthopedics

e Given the limited number of physician recruitment over the last three years and only one or two
anticipated in 2018, we did not add any additional hospital volume for new physician recruitment
to the community.

The major volume assumptions are the key drivers of our budget, if they change for whatever reasons all
budgeted items impacted by volume are adjusted accordingly. The volume indicators drive the revenue
and a majority of the expense items, including FTEs (Full-time equivalents). The major volume
assumptions are linked to individual department’s volume, so any change in the major assumptions will
change all departments that would be impacted by that change.

Operating Budget

The major budget volume assumptions referred to above were the basis for the FY 18 operating budget.
The result is a budgeted operating margin of 2.0%.

Therefore we propose the following motion:

Motion: Recommend the Board of Directors approve the fiscal year 2018 Major Volume Assumptions
and Operating Budget with an operating margin of 2.0% as presented.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 268-6164 or by e-mail at
michael. sitowitz@parrishmed.com.




BUDGET OVERVIEW INFORMATION SHEET
NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
DBA PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER

FY 2017/2018 BUDGET

ANNUALIZED BUDGET

09/30/2017 09/30/2018
Patient Days 30,484 29,074
Adjusted Patient Days 83,915 85,115
Admissions 6,371 6,531
Adjusted Admissions 17,538 19,120
Average Length of Stay (Days) 4.78 4.45
age Daily Census 83.5 79.7
Emergency Depar’ t Visits 42,128 42,403
Qutpatient Referrals 67,848 81,418
™' eries 645 661
» Qperations 5,894 6,057

935

Full Time Equivalents

Gross Patient Revenue

629,901,765

619,837,259
Deductions from Revenue (1) 488,431,760 495,700,634
AHCA and Public Assistance 1,598,715 1,695,148
Operating Expense (includes

129,886,099 131

627 9]

AHCA & Publi- * --"-tance

Revenu- 7,386 7,401
Deductions 5,821 5,824
AHCA and Public Assistance 19 20
Operating Expense (includes

AHCA and Public Assistance 1,548 1,547

32,945

Revenue 35,343

Deductions 27,850 25,926

Public Assistance Assessment 91 89
7,406 6,885

Operating Expe~

Medicare 291,494,829 295,832,875
Medicaid €* 47373 64,374,348
HMO/PPO and Other 101,328,842 102,836,824
- 1munity Care 10,916,428 12 **= ~27]
Bad Debts 21,261,288 20,540,650
Total Deductions from Revenue 488,431,760 495,700,634




AD VALOREM TAXES
PUBLIC HEARING DATES

IST PTeT " HEARING DATE

Regulations:
Must be conducted not before 65 days after 6/30/17 and within 80 days after 6/30/17.
Tentative date set for September 11,2017 (Monday) at 5:01 p.m. in Conference Room 2345.

The regular meetings of the Board of Directors and the Committees of the Board of Directors
are also set for September 11th (Monday).

2ND PUBLIC HEARING DATE

Regulations:

Must be conducted not before two days after newspaper add and not more than five days after
newspaper add.

Tentative date set for September 25, 2017 (Monday) at 5:01 p.m. in the Executive
Conference Room, Administration, 2™ Floor.

Note: The newspaper ad for the 2nd public hearing is to be published within 15 days of the
Ist public hearing. The tentative date for this publishing is set for September 14, 2017
(Friday).

ATTACHMENT: Confirmation from Brevard County Board of County Commissioners
re: Public Hearings on County and School Budgets dated June 22, 2017.

July 31, 2017







NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
TITUSVILLE, FLORIDA

Request for Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Property

The assets listed below are considered obsolete, incfficient, or have ceased to serve any useful function. Board approval for disposal is
requested.

Asset Control |Purchase| Purchase Net Book Value
Asset Description KN # Date Amount CE # Reason for Disposal (Provided by Finance) Dept. #
Phototherapy uik | KNOICC3I| )iz]se|963.05 [0055% | plsp]ed L 330
.J . Ry ] ny o ~ g .
Profethoresy unit | K10 15170] Ysfss] 1,077.°|00559]  plosple fc, Pl 33¢
?hmw&‘u: ?’um KND 54T Yafes 179159104977 Dbsvlefe | new tednlegy ] 33
e, Manaqer , P
Requesting Department N Ly 6‘61’”1,7‘ / 3 )L | Department Bireetor )’]/’L;quL(;;gﬁ,;M? R
i . o ) 7] / - i
Net Book Value (Finance U5 4 len i /4 \QQ(EMZ& i\/Iember e %\// é S/ /
i = 7 I
St. VP Finance/CFO It 641917 President/CEO /4
- . C”
Board Approval: (Date) CFO Signature

Requestor Notified Finance

Asset Disposed of or Donated

Removed from Asset List (Finance)

Requested Public Entity for Donation

Entity Contact

Telephone




NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

OPERATING

PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
TITUSVILLE, FLORIDA

Request for Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Property

The assets listed below are considered obsolete, inefficient, or have ccasced to serve any useful function.

requested.

Board approval for disposal is

Asset Control [Purchase| Purchase Net Book Value
Asset Description KN # Date Amount CE# Reason for Disposal (Provided by Finance) Dept. #
VALLEY LAB CART |KN020777 o1 1959 |4,715.39 lo119 Obsolete 0.00 } 4’775’(
3 TIER METAL KN004104 Obsolete —
CART W/WHEELS 1480 000 155
3 TIER METAL KNO001836 Obsolcte -
CART W/WHEELS REY 0- 2=
PILL CAM /EQUIP Obsolete 7
&COMPUTER KNG24582 |or-toio | Ml 1679 OSIS | 0.0 55
(: J

Requesting Department PERIOPERATIVE SERVICES

Net Book Valuc (Finance) OCD M O ﬂ[l l[, [f#

Sr. VP Finance/CFO

Board Approval: (Date)
Requestor Notified Finance

Asset Disposed of or Donated

Department Director MATTHEW GRAY ILL

ST

EMC Member

> /i

§-a3. ‘1N

President/CEO {

CFO Signature

v

Removed from Asset List (Finance)

Requested Public Entity for Donation

Entity Contact

Telephone




EXECUTIV™ ~*"**ITTEE

Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M., Chairman

Herman A. Cole, Jr.

Peggy Crooks

Elizabeth Galfo, M.D.

Stan Retz, CPA

George Mikitarian, President/CEO (non-voting)

DRAFT AGENDA
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
MONDAY, AUGUST 7, 2017
2" FLOOR, EXECUTIVE CONFERENCE ROOM

CALL TO ORDER

L. Approval of Minutes
Motion to approve the minutes of the May 1, 2017 & June 5, 2017 meeting.

II. Reading of the Huddle
11 Public Comment
IV. Open Forum for PMC Physicians

V. Attorney Report — Mr. Boyles
e Resolutions Declaring Surplus Properties
o 830 Century Medical Drive
o 836 Century Medical Drive
o 805 Century Medical Drive
VL Other

VII.  Executive Session (if necessary)

ADJOURNMENT

NOTE: IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS
MEETING, HE/SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS AND, FOR SUCH PURPOSES, MAY NEED TO ENSURE A VERBATIM RECORD OF
THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE AND THAT THE RECORD INCLUDES TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED.

PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY WHO NEED A SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCEEDING SHOULD CONTACT MS.
LISA CAVALLERO, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF SUPPORT SERVICES, AT 951 NORTH WASHINGTON AVENUE, TITUSVILLE, FLORIDA 32796, AT
LEAST FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. FOR INFORMATION CALL (321) 268-6190 OR (321) 383-9829 (TDD).

THIS NOTICE WILL FURTHER SERVE TO INFORM THE PUBLIC THAT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF NORTH BREVARD
MEDICAL SUPPORT, INC. MAY BE IN ATTENDANCE AND MAY PARTICIPATE IN DISCUSSIONS OF MATTERS BEFORE THE NORTH BREVARD
COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE. TO THE EXTENT OF SUCH DISCUSSIONS, A JOINT PUBLIC
MEETING OF THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AND NORTH BREVARD
MEDICAL SUPPORT, INC. SHALL BE CONDUCTED.



NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

A regular meeting of the Executive Committee of the North Brevard County Hospital District
operating Parrish Medical Center was held on May 1, 2017 in the Executive Conference Room.

The following members were present:

Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M., Chairman
Herman A. Cole, Jr.

Elizabeth Galfo, M.D.

George Mikitarian (non-voting)

Stan Retz

Members Absent:
Peggy Crooks

Also in attendance were the following Board members:
Billie Fitzgerald
Jerry Noffel
Maureen Rupe
Ashok Shah, M.D.

A copy of the attendance roster of others present during the meeting is appended to the file copy of
these minutes.

CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Jordan called the meeting to order at 3:09 p.m.

REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Mr. Cole, seconded by Mr. Retz and
approved (4 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MARCH 6, 2017
MEETING AS PRESENTED.

READING OF THE HUDDLE

Dr. Galfo read the Weekly Huddle.



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
MAY 1, 2017
PAGE 2

PUBL"™ ~MENT
There were no public comments.

OPEN FORUM F™ PHYSICIANS

No physicians spoke.

ATTORNEY "©PORT

No Attorney report was presented.
OTHER

Mr. Mikitarian shared with the committee PMC’s financial position which has allowed for
investments within the community by way of a new replacement hospital, new Port St. John facility,
and endeavors at Titus Landing and Port Canaveral, all while retaining cash reserves.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 3:47 p.m.

Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M.
Chairperson



NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

A regular meeting of the Executive Committee of the North Brevard County Hospital District
operating Parrish Medical Center was held on June 5, 2017 in the Executive Conference Room.

The following members were present:

Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M., Chairman
Herman A. Cole, Jr.

Peggy Crooks

George Mikitarian (non-voting)

Stan Retz

Members Absent:
Elizabeth Galfo, M.D. (excused)

Also in attendance were the following Board members:
Billie Fitzgerald
Jerry Noffel
Maureen Rupe
Ashok Shah, M.D.

A copy of the attendance roster of others present during the meeting is appended to the file copy of
these minutes.

~+LL TO ORDER

Mr. Jordan called the meeting to order at 1:48 p.m.

REVIEW *™D APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Mr. Cole, seconded by Ms. Crooks and
approved (4 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE APRIL 3, 2017
MEETING AS PRESENTED.

PHYSICIAN MANPOWER PLAN

Mr. Jim Lifton, Lifton & Associates, addressed the committee regarding the Physician Manpower
Plan. He noted he recently engaged in physician interviews with Florida Health Network physicians
in order to update the plan. Discussion ensued regarding the Network’s plan, improved



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
JUNE 5, 2017
PAGE 2

infrastructure and growth, as well as opportunities and challenges. Mr. Mikitarian noted the
Affordable Care Act requires integrated care and care coordination. He noted the purpose of the
network is to get all providers/services under one umbrella, sharing information and lowering costs.
The Network is comprised of high quality, low cost providers, which translate into a higher star
rating and higher reimbursement.

FAREWELL "™™4 CARRILLO

Mr. Mikitarian noted that this would be Linda Carrillo’s last Committee/Board meeting. Ms. Carrillo
addressed the Committee and noted it has been a rewarding experience, personally and
professionally. She noted that she is leaving to care for an elderly family member, and has truly
enjoyed working with everyone. Mr. Jordan thanked Ms. Carrillo for her dedication and wished her
well on behalf of the Board.

PUPT IC COMMENT

There were no public comments.

OPEN FORUM FOR PHYSICIANS

No physicians spoke.

ATTORNEY REPORT

No Attorney report was presented.

ADJOU™MMENT

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 3:24 p.m.

Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M.
Chairperson



RESOLUTIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
DECLARING SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY

The Board of Directors of North Brevard County Hospital District, d/b/a Parrish Medical
Center, at a public hearing meeting duly called and held, at which sufficient notice was provided
and a quorum was present, hereby adopts the following recitals and resolutions:

DECLARATION OF
SURPLUS REAL PRC™ TY

Whereas, North Brevard County Hospital District (the “District”) is a special hospital
district of the State of Florida created by special act of the Florida Legislature in 1953 by
Chapter 28924, Laws of Florida, re-codified by Ch. 2003-362, Laws of Florida (the “Act”); and

Whereas, the Act authorizes the Board of Directors of the District (the “Board”) to sell
surplus real property owned by the District and provides a number of procedures that the District
is required to follow to sell such real property; including, but not limited to the following:

1. The District must hold a public hearing, either at a regular or special meeting called
for such purpose, after publishing notice in a newspaper of general circulation specifically
describing the real property (if the hearing is held at a special meeting, notice must be published
at least fourteen (14) days prior to the hearing);

2. At the public hearing, by Resolution of the Board, it must be determined that (i) the
real property is not presently needed by the District for carrying out its purposes as provided in
the Act, (ii) there is not a future need for the real property, and (iii) the property should be
declared surplus real property;

3. After the real property is designated as surplus, the Board must obtain an appraisal of
the real property from an independent appraiser;

4. Afier receipt of the appraisal, the real property must be advertised for sale in a
newspaper of general circulation at least fourteen (14) days prior to the date of receipt of bids;
and

5. The Board must allow potential buyers to submit bids, which must be sealed;
however, the Board reserves the right to reject all bids; and

Whereas, the District previously adopted a policy to classify as surplus any of its
personal or real property that is obsolete or the continued use of which is uneconomical or
inefficient, or which serves no useful function (the “Policy”), as more particularly described in
Exhibit “A,” in particular in the section entitled “Procedures for Recommendation to the Board
of Directors for the Disposal of Real Property;” and

\9000\] - # 11266454 v 1



Whereas, the District presently owns an office building located at 830 Century Medical
Drive, Titusville, Florida 32796 (the “Property”), as more particularly described in Exhibit “B;”
and

Whereas, the Board finds based on the foregoing facts that declaring the Property as
surplus real property is in the best interests of the District and the residents of the District; and

Whereas, the District desires to comply with the Act, Florida Statutes and the Policy in
declaring the Property as surplus real property; now, therefore be it

Resolved, that the Board finds that the Property is not presently needed by the
District for carrying out its purposes; and, be it further

Resolved, that the Board finds there is not a future need by the District for the
Property; and, be it further

Resolved, that the Board has and will comply with all of the procedures it is
required to follow to sell surplus real property under the Act, Florida Statutes and the
Policy and that the Board hereby declares the Property as surplus real property; and, be it
further

Resolved, that the Board directs that the Property be advertised for sale in a
newspaper of general circulation in North Brevard County, Florida at least fourteen (14)
days prior to the date sealed bids to purchase the Property are due; and, be it further

Resolved, that the Board reserves the right to reject all bids; and, be it further

Resolved, that the Board directs an appraisal be obtained to establish the value of
the Property; and, be it further

GENERAL AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION

Resolved, that each officer of the District be, and the same hereby is, authorized,
empowered, and directed for, in the name of, and on behalf of the District to do all acts,
and take all actions, and prepare all papers, instruments, and documents, and do all other
things in connection with the matters and transactions contemplated by these resolutions,
which such officer in his sole discretion approves as being proper, appropriate, or
necessary in connection therewith, with the signature of the officer so acting being
deemed conclusive evidence of his approval.

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS

\9000\] - # 11266454 v1 2



These Resolutions shall take effect immediately upon their adoption.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this___ day of August, 2017,

BOARD OF NORTH BREVARD COUNTY
HOSPITAL DISTRICT

By:

Herman A. Cole Jr., Chairman
ATTEST:

By:
Billie Fitzgerald, Secretary

\Q000\T - # 11266454 v1 3



EXHIBIT “A”

DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PROPERTY POLICY

PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER POLICY NO. 9500-23
POLICY MEMORANDUM PAGE10OF 4
SUBJECT
DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PR™"""TY
POLICY TYPE: ADMINISTRATIVE EFFECTIVE DATE: 05/17/79

CATEGORY: LEGAL & REGULATORY

l: DISTRIBUTION
Lv JZAA Date: _ 09/14/09 . 1.  Administration Manual

/Inmatbd By: , Materials Management

2. Board of Directors
Date: __09/14/09 .

George i i 3. Depariments

Date: _ 09/14/09

Date: __09/14/09 .,

REVISED: 5/4/01; 1/7/02, 9/09

POLICY

It shall be the policy of Parrish Medical Center to classify as surplus any of its personal or real property that
is obsolete or the continucd use of which is uneconomical or inefficient, or which scrves no useful function.

PROCESS FOR RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE DISPOSAL
OF SURPLUS PERSONAL PROPERTY:

A PMC department directors who consider property in their department no longer serviceablc will
prepare and forward a written request for inspection and disposal of the obsolete item.

The Request for Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Property form (located on ICARE), shall contain
the following information;

assct control number of the property (KN#)
description of the property; including make, modcl
reason for disposal

rccommended method of disposal

physical location of property

o a0 o

Once the Request for Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Property is EMT approved, indicating that the
EMT has inspected the item, it will be forwarded to the Sr. Vice President of Finance for approval
before being submitted to the President/CEQ. Upon approval by the President/CEQ, the request
shall be submitted to the hospital board for final disposition. Requesting departments should retain a

19000\ - # 11266454 v1



DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PROPERTY POLICY NO. 9500-23
PAGE 2 OF 4

copy of the request form, and many not remove, transfer, or dispose of property from the department
until final Board approval for disposition.

B. Once Board approval is received the Finance Department shail notify the requesting department that
the property has been approved for disposal. The department director should then submit a work
order to EVS {Housekeeping) or Plant Services Departments, depending on the type of asset for
removal. The requestor copy of the original Request for Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Property
form will be signed and dated by the department removing the asset. A copy of the form will be
retained by the department and a copy provided for the Director of Materials Management. Bascd on
the Board approved disposition, the Director of Materials Management will dispose of the asset in
accordance with Florida Statutes, providing a signed and dated copy of the request form to the
Finance Department, once the asset has been discarded, donated or sold.

PROCESS FOR THE HOSPITAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS
PROPERTY:

Al The Board shall consider any list of unserviceable personal property as recommended by the
President/CEQ and the Sr. Vice President - Finance/CFO of the hospital. The minutes of any such
hospital meeting shall reflect the deliberation of the Board and the fact that the property is obsolete,
uneconomical, inefficient, or serves no useful function.

B. Thereafter, the Board may classify as surplus and instruct the Sr. Vice President - Finance/CFO to
dispose of all such items in accordance with Florida Statutes.

C. The Sr. Vice President, Finance/CFO will make recommendations to the Board of Directors as to
the removal of any capital assets that cannot be located and are listed on the capital asset ledger.

PROCESS FORTHE HOSPITAL DIRECTOR OF MATERIALS MANAGEMENT TO FOLLOW:
Al Property classified as surplus by PMC shall first be offered as surplus property to other governmental

units in the PMC taxing district with a request for competitive bids, or in the absence of competitive
bids, as a donation on a first requested basis.

B. In the event no acceptable bid is received within sixty (60) calendar days, the property shail be
offered to such other governmental units along with the infonmation in Ttem C, below.

C. Each offer to governmental units shall disclose the value, conditions, and age of the property
offered for disposal. The most acceptable bid shall be determined by the Director, Materials
Management. Costs of trans(erring the disposal property shall be arranged and paid by the
successful bidder.

ALTERNATIVE PROCESS:

A In the event the procedures described in A, B, and C above do not result in a disposal of the approved
surplus property, the President/CEQ shall be authorized to dispose of such surplus property to any

\9000\ - # 11266454 vi



DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PROPERTY POLICY NO. 9500-23
PAGE 3 OF 4

person. If the disposal property is without commercial value, it may be donated, destroyed, or
abandoned (by approved methods).

B. Under the alternative procedure herein, if the value of the property is estimated to be more than one
hundred dollars ($100), but less than two hundred dollars ($200), such property shall be sold to the
highest responsible bidder after a request for bids, or by public auction.

In the event the value of the property is estimated to be two hundred dollars ($200) or more, the
property may be sold only to the highest responsible bidder, or by public auction, after publication of
notice not less than one (1) week no more than two (2) weeks prior to sale. The publication notice
shall be in accordance with Florida Statutes 274.06.

PROCESS FORRECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE DISPOSAL
OF SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY:

A. The Board of Directors of the District must hold a public hearing to determine that the real property
is not presently needed by the District for carrying out the purposes of Chapter 28924, Laws of
Florida, as amended, that there is not a future need for the property, and that the property should be
declared surplus.

B. The public hearing must be held at either a regular meeting or a special meeting called for such
purpose after publishing a notice in a newspaper of general circulation specifically describing the real
property proposed to be declared surplus; this notice must be published at least fourteen (14) days
prior to the holding of a special meeting.

C. After the Board determines by resolution that real property is surplus, it must obtain an appraisal of
the property from an independent appraiser.

D. Afterreceipt of the appraisal, the District may negotiate an exchange of the surplus property for other
property needed by the District so long as the district obtains consideration equivalent to the
appraised value of the surplus property.

E. In the alternative, the District may sell the surplus property after advertising the same for salein a
newspaper of general circulation at least fourteen (14) days prior to the date of receipt of bids. The
District must require sealed bids, reserving the right to reject all bids. The surplus property may be
sold only to the highest bidder for cash.

\Q000\! - # 11266454 v1



DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PROPERTY POLICY NO. 9500-23

PAGE 4 OF 4
NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPTTAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
TITUSYILLE, FLORIDA
Request for Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Property

The assets listed below are considerad obsolste, inafficient, or hava ceased to serve any useful function. Board

approval for disposal Is required,
Decontamination

Asset Description Asset Contrd KN#| CE# Reason for Disposal Net Book Value Code] Complele

VhNA ( Inidal

{Provided by Finance) |

*Disposition Cadas:
Discard aller Saivage ot Pans Discard @ Donate Store
Requaesting Department Department Director
Net Book Value (Finance) EMC tdember
Sr. VP Finance/CFO PresldenVCEQ
Board Approved (CFO Signatwe)
Requestor Nolified Financs
Assot Disposed of or Donaled

Romoved from Assat List (Finance)

Requested Public Entity for Dorratlon .
Enfily Cantact

Telephona

Fite:{FinancafP oy wOis possel Request)

c&: Risk Manager
Patient Safety Officer

\9000\] - # 11266454 v1



EXHIBIT “B”

LEGAL DF<™IPTION OF THE PROPERTY FOR BOTH 830 AND 836 CENTURY
MEDICAL ™™"VE WHICH WHEN SURVEYED WILL BE SPLIT BETWEEN THE
TWO FACILITIES ALL SUBJECT TO RELEVANT GOVERNMENTAL APPROVALS

A part of Lots 16 and 17, CENTURY MEDICAL PLAZA, as recorded in Plat Book 29, at Page
9, of the Public Records of Brevard County, Florida, more particularly described as follows:

Commence at the Southwest corner of the aforesaid Lot 17, run thence N 25 deg. 43 min. 10 sec.
W along the Westerly line of said Lot 17, a distance of 190.00 feet to the Point of Beginning of
the lands herein described, thence continue N 25 deg. 43 min. 10 sec. W along the Westerly line
of Lot 17 and the Westerly line of Lot 16, a distance of 435.40 feet; thence S 65 deg. 35 min. 00
sec. E, a distance of 286.57 feet to a point on the Easterly line of Lot 16, said point lying on the
arc of a circular curve concave Easterly having a radius of 75.00 feet and at which point a radial
line bears S 73 deg. 33 min. 47 sec. E; thence Southerly along the arc of said curve and along the
Easterly line of Lot 16 through a central angle of 42 deg. 54 min. 05 sec. a distance of 56.16 feet
to the point of tangency; thence S 26 deg. 27 min. 52 sec. E along the Easterly line of Lot 16 and
the Easterly line of Lot 17, a distance of 167.43 feet; thence S 65 deg. 24 min. 50 sec. W, a
distance of 166.49 feet to the Point of Beginning.

\Q000\] - # 11266454 vi



RESOLUTIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
DECLARING SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY

The Board of Directors of North Brevard County Hospital District, d/b/a Parrish Medical
Center, at a public hearing meeting duly called and held, at which sufficient notice was provided
and a quorum was present, hereby adopts the following recitals and resolutions:

DECLARATION OF
SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY

Whereas, North Brevard County Hospital District (the “District™) is a special hospital
district of the State of Florida created by special act of the Florida Legislature in 1953 by
Chapter 28924, Laws of Florida, re-codified by Ch. 2003-362, Laws of Florida (the “Act™); and

Whereas, the Act authorizes the Board of Directors of the District (the “Board”) to sell
surplus real property owned by the District and provides a number of procedures that the District
is required to follow to sell such real property; including, but not limited to the following:

1. The District must hold a public hearing, either at a regular or special meeting called
for such purpose, after publishing notice in a newspaper of general circulation specifically
describing the real property (if the hearing is held at a special meeting, notice must be published
at least fourteen (14) days prior to the hearing);

2. At the public hearing, by Resolution of the Board, it must be determined that (i) the
real property is not presently needed by the District for carrying out its purposes as provided in
the Act, (ii) there is not a future need for the real property, and (iii) the property should be
declared surplus real property;

3. After the real property is designated as surplus, the Board must obtain an appraisal of
the real property from an independent appraiser;

4. After receipt of the appraisal, the real property must be advertised for sale in a
newspaper of general circulation at least fourteen (14) days prior to the date of receipt of bids;
and

5. The Board must allow potential buyers to submit bids, which must be sealed;
however, the Board reserves the right to reject all bids; and

Whereas, the District previously adopted a policy to classify as surplus any of its
personal or real property that is obsolete or the continued use of which is uneconomical or
inefficient, or which serves no useful function (the “Policy”), as more particularly described in
Exhibit “A,” in particular in the section entitled “Procedures for Recommendation to the Board
of Directors for the Disposal of Real Property;” and

\9000 - # 11266459 v1 |



Whereas, the District presently owns an office building located at 836 Century Medical
Drive, Titusville, Florida 32796 (the “Property”), as more particularly described in Exhibit “B;”
and

Whereas, the Board finds based on the foregoing facts that declaring the Property as
surplus real property is in the best interests of the District and the residents of the District; and

Whereas, the District desires to comply with the Act, Florida Statutes and the Policy in
declaring the Property as surplus real property; now, therefore be it

Resolved, that the Board finds that the Property is not presently needed by the
District for carrying out its purposes; and, be it further

Resolved, that the Board finds there is not a future need by the District for the
Property; and, be it further

Resolved, that the Board has and will comply with all of the procedures it is
required to follow to sell surplus real property under the Act, Florida Statutes and the

Policy and that the Board hereby declares the Property as surplus real property; and, be it
further

Resolved, that the Board directs that the Property be advertised for sale in a
newspaper of general circulation in North Brevard County, Florida at least fourteen (14)
days prior to the date sealed bids to purchase the Property are due; and, be it further

Resolved, that the Board reserves the right to reject all bids; and, be it further

Resolved, that the Board directs an appraisal be obtained to establish the value of
the Property; and, be it further

GENERAL AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION

Resolved, that each officer of the District be, and the same hereby is, authorized,
empowered, and directed for, in the name of, and on behalf of the District to do all acts,
and take all actions, and prepare all papers, instruments, and documents, and do all other
things in connection with the matters and transactions contemplated by these resolutions,
which such officer in his sole discretion approves as being proper, appropriate, or
necessary in connection therewith, with the signature of the officer so acting being
deemed conclusive evidence of his approval.

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS

\9000A! - # 11266459 v1 2



These Resolutions shall take effect immediately upon their adoption.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this___day of August, 2017.

BOARD OF NORTH BREVARD COUNTY
HOSPITAL DISTRICT

By:

Herman A. Cole Jr., Chairman
ATTEST:

By:

Billie Fitzgerald, Secretary

\9000\] - # 11266459 v1 3



EXHIBIT “A”

DISP™AL ¢ “URPLUC P™)PEP™Y "OLICY

PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER POLICY NO. 9500-23
POLICY MEMORANDUM PAGE 1 OF 4
SUBJECT
DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PROPERTY
POLICY TYPE: ADMINISTRATIVE EFFECTIVE DATE: 05/17/79

CATEGORY: LEGAL & REGULATORY

DISTRIBUTION

Date: _ 09/14/09 . 1.  Administration Manual
, Materials Management

2. Board of Directors
Date: _09/14/09 .

3. Departments

Date: _ 09/14/09
t, Finance/CFO

Tim Skeldon, Sr, 'Vice Preside

=

Date: ___09/14/09 |

REVICE™: 5/4/01; 1/7/02, /09

POLICY

It shall be the policy of Parrish Medical Center to classify as surplus any of its personal or real property that
1s obsolete or the continucd use of which is uneconomical or inefficient, or which serves no useful function.

PROCESS FOR RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE DISPOSAL
OF SURPLUS PERSONAL PROPERTY:

A. PMC department directors who consider property in their department no longer serviceablc will
prepare and forward a written request for inspection and disposal of the obsolete itern.

The Request for Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Property form (located on ICARE), shall contain
the following information;

assct control number of the property (KN#)
description of the properly; including make, model
reason for disposal

recommended method of disposal

physical location of property

o Ao oe

Once the Request for Disposal ol Obsolete or Surplus Property is EMT approved, indicating that the
EMT has inspected the item, it will be forwarded to the Sr. Vice President of Finance for approval
before being submitted to the President/CEQ. Upon approval by the President/CEQ, the request
shall be submitted to the hospital board for final disposition. Requesting departments should retaina

\9000M - # 11266459 v



DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PROPERTY POLICY NO. 9500-23
PAGE 2 OF 4

copy of the request (orm, and many not remove, transfer, or dispose of property from the department
until final Board approval for disposition.

B. Once Board approval is received the Finance Department shall notify the requesting department that
the property has been approved for disposal. The department director should then submit a work
order to EVS (Housekeeping) or Plant Services Departments, depending on the type of asset for
removal. The requestor copy of the original Request for Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Property
form will be signed and dated by the department removing the asset. A copy of the form will be
retained by the department and a copy provided for the Director of Materials Management. Bascd on
the Board approved disposition, the Director of Materials Management will dispose of the asset in
accordance with Florida Statutes, providing a signed and dated copy of the request form to the
Finance Department, once the asset has been discarded, donated or sold.

PROCESS FOR THE HOSPITAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS
PROPERTY:

A. The Board shall consider any list of unserviceable personal property as recommended by the
President/CEQ and the Sr. Vice President - Finance/CFO of the hospital. The minutes of any such
hospital meeting shall reflect the deliberation of the Board and the fact that the property is obsolete,
uneconomical, inefficient, or serves no useful function.

B. Therealfter, thc Board may classify as surplus and instruct the Sr. Vice President - Finance/CFO to
dispose of all such items in accordance with Florida Statutes.

C. The Sr. Vice President, Finance/CFQO will make rccommendations to the Board of Directors as to
the removal of any capital assets that cannot be located and are listed on the capital asset ledger.

PROCESS FOR THE HOSPITAL DIRECTOR OF MATERIALS MANAGEMENT TO FOLLOW:

A, Property classified as surplus by PMC shall first be offered as surplus property to other governmental
units in the PMC taxing district with a request for competitive bids, or in the absence of competitive
bids, as a donation on a first requested basis.

B. In the event no acceptable bid is received within sixty (60) calendar days, the property shall be
offered to such other governmental units along with the information in Item C, below.

C. Each offer to governmental units shall disclose the value, conditions, and age of the property
offered for disposal. The most acceptable bid shall be determined by the Director, Materials
Management. Costs of transferring the disposal property shall be arranged and paid by the
successful bidder.

ALTERNATIVE PROCESS:

Al In the event the procedures described in A, B, and C above do not result in a disposal of the approved
surplus property, the President/CEQ shall be authorized to dispose of such surplus property to any

\9000M - # 11266459 vi



DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PROPERTY POLICY NO. 9500-23
PAGE 3 OF 4

persont. If the disposal property is without commercial value, it may be donated, destroyed, or
abandoned (by approved methods).

B. Under the alternative procedure herein, if the value of the property is estimated to be more than one
hundred dollars ($100), but less than two hundred dollars ($200), such property shall be sold to the
highest responsible bidder after a request for bids, or by public auction.

In the event the value of the property is estimated to be two hundred dollars ($200) or more, the
property may be sold only to the highest responsible bidder, or by public auction, after publication of
notice not less than one (1) week no more than two (2) weeks prior to sale. The publication notice
shall be in accordance with Florida Statutes 274.06.

PROCESS FOR RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE DISPOSAL
OF SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY:

A, The Board of Directors of the District must hold a public hearing to determine that the real property
is not presently needed by the District for carrying out the purposes of Chapter 28924, Laws of
Florida, as amended, that there is not a future need for the property, and that the property should be
declared surplus.

B. The public hearing must be held at either a regular meeting or a special meeting called for such
purpose after publishing a notice in a newspaper of general circulation specifically describing the real
property proposed to be declared surplus; this notice must be published at least fourteen (14) days
prior to the holding of a special meeting.

C. After the Board determines by resolution that real property is surplus, it must obtain an appraisal of
the property from an independent appraiser.

D. After receipt of the appraisal, the District may negotiate an exchange of the surplus property for other
property needed by the District so long as the district obtains consideration equivalent to the
appraised value of the surplus property.

E. In the altemative, the District may sell the surplus property aficr advertising the same for sale in a
newspaper of general circulation at least fourteen (14) days prior to the date of receipt of bids. The
District must require sealed bids, reserving the right 1o reject all bids. The surplus property may be
sold only 1o the highest bidder for cash.

9000\ - # 11266459 vi



DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PROPERTY

POLICY NO. 9500-23

PAGE40OF 4
NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPTTAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
TITUSVILLE, FLORIDA
——
Request for Dispasal of Obsolete or Surplus Property
The assets listed below are considerad obsolste, inefficient, or have ceased to serve any useful function. Board
approval for disposal is required,
Decontarnination
Asset Description Asset Controi KN#| CE# Reason for Dispesal Net Book Value Code Complete

(Provided by Finance) | * | YNNA L lnital
S
*Disposition Codas:

Discard aller Salvags ot Paris Discard @ Danalo Store

Requesting Department Dapartment Director
Net Baok Value {Financa) EMC Member
Sf. VP FlnancelCFQ President/CEQ

Boand Approved (CFO Signatue)

Requesior Nolifled Finance

Assot Disposed of or Donaled

Rumoved fram Assat List (Finance)

Regquasied Public Entity for Donalion

Entity Contact

Telephona

FrRe:(Finance ol wO possl Reques)

cG: Risk Marager
Patient Safety Officer

9000\ - # 11266459 v1



EXHIBIT “B”

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY FOR BOTH 830 AND 836 CENTURY
MEDICAL DRIVE WHICH WHEN SURVEYED WILL BE SPLIT BETWEEN THE
T TACH ™S _ALL SU”™CT TO RELEVANT GOCVERNMENTAL APPROVALS

A part of Lots 16 and 17, CENTURY MEDICAL PLAZA, as recorded in Plat Book 29, at Page
9, of the Public Records of Brevard County, Florida, more particularly described as follows:

Commence at the Southwest corner of the aforesaid Lot 17, run thence N 25 deg. 43 min. 10 sec.
W along the Westerly line of said Lot 17, a distance of 190.00 feet to the Point of Beginning of
the lands herein described, thence continue N 25 deg. 43 min. 10 sec. W along the Westerly line
of Lot 17 and the Westerly line of Lot 16, a distance of 435.40 feet; thence S 65 deg. 35 min. 00
sec. E, a distance 0f 286.57 feet to a point on the Easterly line of Lot 16, said point lying on the
arc of a circular curve concave Easterly having a radius of 75.00 feet and at which point a radial
line bears S 73 deg. 33 min. 47 sec. E; thence Southerly along the arc of said curve and along the
Easterly line of Lot 16 through a central angle of 42 deg. 54 min. 05 sec. a distance of 56.16 feet
to the point of tangency; thence S 26 deg. 27 min. 52 sec. E along the Easterly line of Lot 16 and
the Easterly line of Lot 17, a distance of 167.43 feet; thence S 65 deg. 24 min. 50 sec. W, a
distance of 166.49 feet to the Point of Beginning.

\9000\! - # 11266459 v1



RESOLUTIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
DECLARING SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY

The Board of Directors of North Brevard County Hospital District, d/b/a Parrish Medical
Center, at a public hearing meeting duly called and held, at which sufficient notice was provided
and a quorum was present, hereby adopts the following recitals and resolutions:

DECLARATION OF
SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY

Whereas, North Brevard County Hospital District (the “District”) is a special hospital
district of the State of Florida created by special act of the Florida Legislature in 1953 by
Chapter 28924, Laws of Florida, re-codified by Ch. 2003-362, Laws of Florida (the “Act”); and

Whereas, the Act authorizes the Board of Directors of the District (the “Board”) to sell
surplus real property owned by the District and provides a number of procedures that the District
is required to follow to sell such real property; including, but not limited to the following:

1. The District must hold a public hearing, either at a regular or special meeting called
for such purpose, after publishing notice in a newspaper of general circulation specifically
describing the real property (if the hearing is held at a special meeting, notice must be published
at least fourteen (14) days prior to the hearing);

2. At the public hearing, by Resolution of the Board, it must be determined that (i) the
real property is not presently needed by the District for carrying out its purposes as provided in
the Act, (ii) there is not a future need for the real property, and (iii) the property should be
declared surplus real property;

3. After the real property is designated as surplus, the Board must obtain an appraisal of
the real property from an independent appraiser;

4. After receipt of the : »oraisal, the real property must be advertised for sale in a
newspaper of general circulation at least fourteen (14) days prior to the date of receipt of bids;
and

5. The Board must allow potential buyers to submit bids, which must be sealed;
however, the Board reserves the right to reject all bids; and

Whereas, the District previously adopted a policy to classify as surplus any of its
personal or real property that is obsolete or the continued use of which is uneconomical or
inefficient, or which serves no useful function (the “Policy”), as more particularly described in
Exhibit “A.” in particular in the section entitled “Procedures for Recommendation to the Board
of Directors for the Disposal of Real Property;” and

\9000M - # 11275236 v1 1



Whereas, the District presently owns an office building located at 805 Century Medical
Drive, Titusville, Florida 32796 (the “Property”), as more particularly described in Exhibit “B;”
and

Whereas, the Board finds based on the foregoing facts that declaring the Property as
surplus real property is in the best interests of the District and the residents of the District; and

Whereas, the District desires to comply with the Act, Florida Statutes and the Policy in
declaring the Property as surplus real property; now, therefore be it

Resolved, that the Board finds that the Property is not presently needed by the
District for carrying out its purposes; and, be it further

Resolved, that the Board finds there is not a future need by the District for the
Property; and, be it further

Resolved, that the Board has and will comply with all of the procedures it is
required to follow to sell surplus real property under the Act, Florida Statutes and the
Policy and that the Board hereby declares the Property as surplus real property; and, be it
further

Resolved, that the Board directs that the Property be advertised for sale in a
newspaper of general circulation in North Brevard County, Florida at least fourteen (14)
days prior to the date sealed bids to purchase the Property are due; and, be it further

Resolved, that the Board reserves the right to reject all bids; and, be it further

Resolved, that the Board directs an appraisal be obtained to establish the value of
the Property; and, be it further

GENERAL AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION

Resolved, that each officer of the District be, and the same hereby is, authorized,
empowered, and directed for, in the name of, and on behalf of the District to do all acts,
and take all actions, and prepare all papers, instruments, and documents, and do all other
things in connection with the matters and transactions contemplated by these resolutions,
which such officer in his sole discretion approves as being proper, appropriate, or
necessary in connection therewith, with the signature of the officer so acting being
deemed conclusive evidence of his approval.

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS

\GO00M - # 11275236 v1 2



These Resolutions shall take effect immediately upon their adoption.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this __ day of August, 2017.

BOARD OF NORTH BREVARD COUNTY
HOSPITAL DISTRICT

By:

Herman A. Cole Jr., Chairman
ATTEST:

By:

Billie itzgerald, Secretary

\9000\] - # 11275236 v1 3



EXHIBIT “A”

DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PROPERTY POLICY

PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER POLICY NO. 9500-23
POLICY MEMORA™ 'M PAGE 1 OF 4
SUBJECT
DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PR™"""RTY
POLICY TYPE: ADMINISTRATIVE EFFECTIVE DATE: 05/17/79

CATEGORY: LEGAL & REGULATORY

Wﬂ,f‘ DISTRIBUTION
3 Date: _ 09/14/09 . 1.  Administration Manual

2. Board of Directors
__Date: _09/14/09 .

3. Depariments

Date: _ 09/14/09

Tim Skeldon, Sr Vlce Presld t, Finance/CFO
% Date: __09/14/09

7. P'a/"éh/HI, Chamﬁan, Board of Directors

REVISED: 5/4/01; 1/7/02, 9/09

POLICY

It shall be the policy of Parrish Medical Center to classify as surplus any of its personal or real property that
is obsolete or the continuced use of which is uneconomical or inefficient, or which serves no useful function.

PROCESS FOR RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE DISPOSAL
OF SURPLUS PERSONAL PROPERTY:

A. PMC department directors who consider property in their department no longer serviceable will
prepare and forward a written request for inspection and disposal of the obsolete item.

The Request for Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Property form (located on ICARE), shall contain
the following information;

assct control number of the property (KN#)
description of the property; including make, modcl
reason for disposal

recommended method of disposal

physical location of property

o a0 ow

Once the Request for Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Property is EMT approved, indicating that the
EMT has inspected the item, it will be forwarded to the Sr. Vice President of Finance for approval
before being submitted to the President/CEQ. Upon approval by the President/CEO, the request
shall be submitted to the hospital board for final disposition. Requesting departments should retain a

\9000\1 - # 11275236 vl



DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PROPERTY POLICY NO. 9500-23
PAGE 2 OF 4

copy of the request form, and many not remove, transfer, or dispose ol propcrty from the department
until final Board approval for disposition.

B. Once Board approval is reccived the Finance Department shall notify the requesting department that
the property has been approved for disposal. The department director should then submit a work
order to EVS (Housekeeping) or Plant Services Departments, depending on the type of asset for
removal. The requestor copy of the original Request for Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Property
form will be signed and dated by the department removing the asset. A copy of the form will be
retained by the department and a copy provided for the Director of Materials Management. Based on
the Board approved disposition, the Director of Materials Management will dispose of the asset in
accordance with Florida Statutes, providing a signed and dated copy of the request form to the
Finance Department, once the asset has been discarded, donated or sold.

PROCESS FOR THE HOSPITAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS
PROPERTY:

A. The Board shall consider any list of unserviceable personal property as recommended by the
President/CEQ and the Sr. Vice President - Finance/CFO of the hospital. The minutes of any such
hospital meeting shall reflect the deliberation of the Board and the fact that the property is obsolete,
uneconomical, inefficient, or serves no useful function.

B. Thereafter, thc Board may classify as surplus and instruct the Sr. Vice President - Finance/CFO to
dispose of all such items in accordance with Florida Statutes.

C. The Sr. Vice President, Finance/CFO will make recommendations to the Board of Directors as to
the removal of any capital assets that cannot be located and are listed on the capital asset ledger.

PROCESS FOR THE HOSPITAL DIRECTOR OF MATERIALS MANAGEMENT TOFOLLOW:

A. Property classified as surplus by PMC shall first be offered as surplus property to other governmental
units in the PMC taxing district with a request for competitive bids, or in the absence of competitive
bids, as a donation on a first requested basis.

B. In the event no acceptable bid is received within sixty (60) calendar days, the property shall be
offered to such other governmental units along with the information in Ttem C, below.

C. Each offer to governmental units shall disclose the value, conditions, and age of the property
offered for disposal. The most acceptable bid shall be determined by the Director, Materials
Management. Costs of transferring the disposal property shall be arranged and paid by the
successful bidder.

ALTERNATIVE PROCESS:

A In the event the procedures described in A, B, and C above do not result in a disposal of the approved
surplus property, the President/CEQ shall be authorized to dispose of such surplus property to any

\9000\I - # 11275236 v1



DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PROPERTY POLICY NO. 9500-23

PAGE 3 OF 4

person. If the disposal property is without commercial value, it may be donated, destroyed, or
abandoned (by approved methods).

Under the alternative procedure herein, if the value of the property is estimated to be more than one
hundred dollars ($100), but less than two hundred dollars ($200), such property shall be sold to the
highest responsible bidder after a request for bids, or by public auction.

In the event the value of the property is estimated to be two hundred dollars ($200) or more, the
property may be sold only to the highest responsible bidder, or by public auction, after publication of
notice not less than one (1) week no more than two (2) weeks prior to sale. The publication notice
shall be in accordance with Florida Statutes 274.06.

PROCESS FORRECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE DISPOSAL
OF SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY:

A.

The Board of Directors of the District must hold a public hearing to determine that the real property
is not presently needed by the District for carrying out the purposes of Chapter 28924, Laws of
Florida, as amended, that there is not a future need for the property, and that the property should be
declared surplus.

The public hearing must be held at either a regular meeting or a special meeting called for such
purpose after publishing a notice in a newspaper of general circulation specifically describing the real
property proposed to be declared surplus; this notice must be published at least fourteen (14) days
prior to the holding of a special meeting.

After the Board determines by resolution that real property is surplus, it must obtain an appraisal of
the property from an independent appraiser.

After receipt of the appraisal, the District may negotiate an exchange of the surplus property for other
property needed by the District so long as the district obtains consideration equivalent to the
appraised value of the surplus property.

In the altemative, the District may sell the surplus property afier advertising the same for sale in a
newspaper of general circulation at least fourteen (14) days prior to the date of receipt of bids. The
District must require sealed bids, reserving the right to reject all bids. The surplus property may be
sold only to the highest bidder for cash.

\9000M! - # 11275236 vi



DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PROPERTY POLICY NO. 9500-23
PAGE 4 OF 4

NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPTTAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
TITUSVILLE, FLORIDA

Request for Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Property

The assets listed below are considered obsaiete, Inefficient, or have ceased to serve any useful function. Board
approval for disposal is required,

Dacontanninaltion
Asset Description Asset Controy KN#| CE# | Reason for Disposal Nst Book Value Code Cosmnplele

- ¥ hMA | {nitlal

Provided by Financs,

*Disposition Codas:
Discard aller Salvage ot Paris Discard @ Donata Stome
Requesting Department: Department Diractor
Net fiaok Value {Finanoce) EMC Member
Sr. VP Finance/CFO PresidentCEQ
Board Appraved (CFO Signatuwe)
Requeslor Nodified Financa

Assot Disposed of or Donated

Removed from Asset List (Finance)

Requestsd Public Entity for Donation
Enfity Contact

Telephone

Fie (FinancaPaliwDisposs Requsel)

cc: Risk Managsr
Patient Safety Officer

\9000M - # 11275236 v1



EXHIBIT “B”

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
(805 Century Medical Drive, Titusville, Florida 32796)

Lot 9 excluding the north 50' thereof, and all of Lot 10, CENTURY MEDICAL PLAZA,
according to the plat thereof, recorded in Plat Book 29, Page 9, Public Records of Brevard
County, Florida.

\9000\1 - # 11275236 v1



Em N COMMITTEE

Bitlie ritzgeratd, Chairperson

Herman A. Cole, Ir. (ex-officio)

Elizabeth T. Galfo, M.D.

Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M.

Maureen Rupe, Vice Chairperson

Ashok Shah, M.D.

Aluino Ochoa, M.D.

George Mikitarian, President/CEO (Non-voting)

NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
EDUCATIONAL, GOVERNMENTAL AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS COMMITTEE
MONDAY, AUGUST 7, 2017
(IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE)
EXECUTIVE CONFERENCE ROOM

CALL TO ORDER

L. Approval of Minutes — May 1, 2017 & June 5, 2017

I1. Continuous Improvement Project Presentation — PSI-90
II.  Other

IV.  Executive Session (if necessary)

ADJOURNMENT

NOTE: IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE EDUCATION COMMITTEE WITH
RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, HE/SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS
AND, FOR SUCH PURPOSES, MAY NEED TO ENSURE A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE AND
THAT THE RECORD INCLUDES TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED.

PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY WHO NEED A SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCEEDING
SHOULD CONTACT MS. LISA CAVALLERO, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF SUPPORT SERVICES, AT 951 NORTH
WASHINGTON AVENUE, TITUSVILLE, FLORIDA 32796, AT LEAST FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS PRIOR TO THE
MEETING. FOR INFORMATION CALL (321) 268-6190 OR (321) 383-9829 (TDD).

THIS NOTICE WILL FURTHER SERVE TO INFORM THE PUBLIC THAT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF NORTH BREVARD MEDICAL SUPPORT, INC. MAY BE IN ATTENDANCE AND MAY PARTICIPATE IN
DISCUSSIONS OF MATTERS BEFORE THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT BOARD OF
DIRECTORS EDUCATIONAL, GOVERNMENTAL AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS COMMITTEE. TO THE EXTENT OF
SUCH DISCUSSION, A JOINT PUBLIC MEETING OF THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT, BOARD
OF DIRECTORS EDUCATIONAL, GOVERNMENTAL AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS COMMITTEE AND NORTH
BREVARD MEDICAL SUUPORT, INC. SHALL BE CONDUCTED.



NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
EDUCATIONAL, GOVERNMENTAL AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS
COMMITTEE

A regular meeting of the Educational, Governmental and Community Relations
Committee of the North Brevard County Hospital District operating Parrish Medical
Center was held on May 1, 2017 in the Executive Conference Room, Second Floor. The
following members were present:

Herman A. Cole, Jr.

Billie Fitzgerald, Chairperson
Elizabeth T. Galfo, M.D.

Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M.
George Mikitarian (non-voting)
Maureen Rupe, Vice Chairperson
Ashok, Shah, M.D.

Member(s) Absent:
Aluino Ochoa, M.D. (excused)

A copy of the attendance roster of others present during the meeting is appended to the
file copy of these minutes.

CALL ™™ "PDER
Mr. Cole called the meeting to order at 12:09 p.m.

PT™VIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The following motion was made by Mr. Cole, seconded by Mr. Jordan and approved (6
ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE APRIL 3,
2017 MEETING AS PRESENTED.

YELLOW B*'" ™ CERTIFICATION

Mr. Paul Fender briefly summarized for the committee, Modules 1-4 and addressed
questions. He administered the final exam for the Lean Six Sigma Course. Copies of the
PowerPoint slides are appended to the file copy of these minutes.

0 HER

No other items were presented.



EDUCATIONAL, GOVERNMENTAL AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS
COMMITTEE

MAY 1, 2017

PAGE 2

ADJOURMMENT

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 12:38 p.m.

Billie Fitzgerald
Chairperson



NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
EDUCATIONAL, GOVERNMENTAL AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS
COMMITTEE

A regular meeting of the Educational, Governmental and Community Relations
Committee of the North Brevard County Hospital District operating Parrish Medical
Center was held on June 5, 2017 in the Executive Conference Room, Second Floor. The
following members were present:

Herman A. Cole, Jr.

Billie Fitzgerald, Chairperson
Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M.
George Mikitarian (non-voting)
Maureen Rupe, Vice Chairperson
Ashok, Shah, M.D.

Member(s) Absent:
Elizabeth T. Galfo, M.D. (excused)
Aluino Ochoa, M.D. (excused)

A copy of the attendance roster of others present during the meeting is appended to the
file copy of these minutes.

CALL TC "PNER
Mes. Fitzgerald called the meeting to order at 3:46 p.m.

REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The following motion was made by Mr. Cole, seconded by Mr. Retz and approved (5
ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE APRIL 3,
2017 MEETING AS PRESENTED.

H<PITAL THROUGHPUT AND CAPACITY MANAGEMFNT

Mr. Graybill acknowledged that it was determined there was a hospital throughput
improvement opportunity. Using Lean Six Sigma methodology, the DMAIC process was
initiated. Ms. Cottrell advised that Mission Control continues to be implemented, as
Security, Case Management, and Switchboard have all been relocated within Mission
Control. Discussion ensued regarding ED times from ED to admission and admission to
floor; goal of 50% discharged by 2:00 pm; care planning; inpatient/outpatient status, and
control engagement. Copies of the PowerPoint slides are appended to the file copy of
these minutes.



EDUCATIONAL, GOVERNMENTAL AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS
COMMITTEE

JUNE 5, 2017

PAGE 2

OTHER

No other items were presented.

AN TOTRNMENT

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 4:06 p.m.

Billie Fitzgerald
Chairperson



DRAFT AGENDA
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING - REGULAR MEETING
NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
AUGUST 7, 2017
NO EARLIER THAN 3:00 P.M,,
FOLLOWING THE LAST COMMITTEE MEETING
FIRST FLOOR, CONFERENCE ROOM 2/3/4/5

CALL TO ORDER
L. Pledge of Allegiance
1I. PMC’s Vision — Healing Families — Healing Communities
[L Approval of Agenda
IV.  Review and Approval of Minutes (May 1, 2017 & June 5, 2017)
V. Recognition(s)
A. Juan Perez, MD — Successfully completed 2017 Pulmonary Disease Maintenance of
Certification (MOC)
B. Ethan Webb, MD — Successfully completed 2017 Internal Medicine Maintenance of
Certification (MOC)
VL. Open Forum for PMC Physicians
VII.  Public Comments
VII.  Unfinished Business
[X.  New Business

A. Motion to Recommend the Board of Directors approve Policy 9500-7021, Non-
Compete, Non-Disclosure and Confidentiality, as presented.

B. Motion to Recommend the Board of Directors approve Policy 9500-1029, Patient
Complaint/Grievance Program, as presented.

C. Motion to Recommend the Board of Directors approve Policy 9500-7022,
Healing Work Environment, as presented.

D. Motion to Recommend the Board of Directors approve Policy 9500-1026,
Conference Space, as presented.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
AUGUST 7, 2017
PAGE 2

XL

XIL

E. Motion to Recommend the Board of Directors approve Policy 9500-2031,
Communication with Sensory Impaired or Language Barrier Patients, as
presented.

F. Motion to Recommend the Board of Directors approve Policy 9500-7028, Family
Medical Leave Act (FMLA), as presented.

Medical Staff Report Recommendations/Announcements — Dr. Ochoa

A. Consent Agenda from July 18, MEC:
¢ Recommend the Board of Directors approve the revised Utilization
Management Plan, as presented.

B. Resignations - For Information Only
o Emily Costello, ARNP (AHP/Emergency Department)
Effective 6/4/17 — Appointed 4/1/02

C. Retirements — For Information Only
o Miguel Rivera, MD (Associate/Neurology)
Effective 6/1/17 — Appointed 7/17/72

Public Comments (as needed for revised Consent Agenda)

Consent Agenda
A. Finance Committee
1. Recommend the Board of Directors approve the proposed home dialysis

investment in the amount not to exceed $395,200. The investment will hold
NBMS’s stake in Woodford Dialysis, LLC at 40%. This motion is contingent
upon approval of the North Brevard Medical Support Board to accept same
said conditions.

2. Recommend the Board of Directors approve the FY 2018 Capital Budget in
the amount of $2,300,000.

3. Recommend the Board of Directors approve the fiscal year 2018 Major
Volume Assumptions and Operating Budget with an operating margin of 2.0%
as presented.

4, Recommend the Budget and Finance Committee approves the renewal of
Pension membership for Michael Sitowitz for a three-year term from July 1,
2017 through June 30, 2020.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
AUGUST 7, 2017
PAGE 3

5. Recommend to the Board of Directors to declare the equipment listed in the
requests for Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Property Forms as surplus and
obsolete and dispose of same in accordance with FS274.05 and FS274.96.

XIII. Committee Reports

A. Quality Committee — Mr. Cole

B. Budget and Finance Committee — Mr. Retz
C. Executive Committee — Mr. Jordan
D. Educational, Governmental and Community Relations Committee — Ms. Fitzgerald

E. Planning, Physical Facilities & Properties Committee (Did Not Meet)
XIV. Process and Quality Report — Mr. Mikitarian

A. Other Related Management Issues/Information

B. Hospital Attorney - Mr. Boyles
XV.  Other

1. Recruitment Assistance — Drs. Mathews & Mody
2. Baby Boxes — Ms. Hodges & Ms. Floyd

XVI. Closing Remarks — Chairman
XVII. Executive Session (if necessary)
XVIII. Open Forum for Public

ADJOURNMENT

NOTE: IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD WITHRESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, HE/SHE WILL NEED A RECORD
OF PROCEEDINGS AND, FOR SUCH PURPOSES, MAY NEED TO ENSURE A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE AND THAT THE RECORD INCLUDES TESTIMONY
AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY WHO NEED A SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCEEDING
SHOULD CONTACT MS, LISA CAVALLERO, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF SUPPORT SERVICES, AT 951 NORTH WASHINGTON AVENUE, TITUSVILLE, FLORIDA 32796, AT LEAST FORTY-
EIGHT (48) HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. FOR INFORMATION CALL (321) 268-6190 OR (321) 383-9829 (TDD)

THIS NOTICE WILL FURTHER SERVE TO INFORM THE PUBLIC THAT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF NORTH BREVARD MEDICAL SUPPORT, INC. MAY BE IN
ATTENDANCE AND MAY PARTICIPATE IN DISCUSSIONS OF MATTERS BEFORE THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS. TO THE EXTENT OF
SUCH DISCUSSIONS, A JOINT PUBLIC MEETING OF THE NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT AND NORTH BREVARD MEDICAL SUPPORT, INC. SHALL BE CONDUCTED



NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
BOARD OF DIRECTORS - REGULAR MEETING

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the North Brevard County Hospital District
operating Parrish Medical Center was held on May 1, 2017 in Conference Room 2/3/4/5,
First Floor. The following members were present:

Herman A. Cole, Jr., Chairman
Billie Fitzgerald

Elizabeth Galfo, M.D.

Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M.
Jerry Noffel

Stan Retz, CPA

Maureen Rupe

Ashok Shah, M.D

Member(s) Absent:
Peggy Crooks (excused)

A copy of the attendance roster of others present during the meeting is appended to the file
copy of these minutes.

CALL TO “"DER

Mr. Cole called the meeting to order at 4:34 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mr. Cole led the Board of Directors, staff and public in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance.

PMC’S VISION - Healing Families — Healing Communities®

Mr. Cole led the Board of Directors, staff and public in reciting PMC’s Vision — Healing
Families — Healing Communities®.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mr. Cole asked for approval of the agenda in the packet. Discussion ensued and the
following motion was made by Mr. Jordan, seconded by Dr. Galfo and approved (8 ayes, 0
nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MAY 1, 2017
PAGE 2

REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Mr. Jordan, seconded by Dr. Galfo
and approved (8 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO APPROVE THE MARCH 6, 2017 MEETING
MINUTES, AS PRESENTED.

RET ™ NITIONS
Mr. Paul Fender noted that the Board of Directors, earlier in the Education Committee
Meeting, all successfully passed the Lean Six Sigma Yellow Belt Certification exam. Mr.

Fender presented each member their certificate of completion and congratulated the Board.

OPEN FORUM FOR PMC PHYSICIANS

There were no physician comments.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

There were no comments from the public.

UNFINISHED B" " “"NESS

There was no unfinished business.

NEW BUSINESS

There was no new business.

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS/ANNOUNCEMENTS -
Resign~**~ns

Resignations were noted for information only, no action required.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

There were no public comments regarding the revised consent agenda.

CONSENT 4 “™NDA

Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Mr. Jordan, seconded by Ms.
Fitzgerald and approved (8 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MAY 1, 2017
PAGE 3

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING REVISED
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:

A, Finance Committee

1. Recommend the Board of Directors approve replacing Lombardia
Capital Partners with Strategic Global Advisors (SGA) Large Cap
International ADR and Clear Bridge Investments Value Core Global
ADR as the international managers for the operating portfolio.

2. Recommend the Board of Directors accept the Pension Plan Actuarial
valuation as of October 1, 2016.

3. Recommend the Board of Directors approve the appointment of Julia
Reyes Mateo to the Pension Administrative Committee for the position
vacated by Roberta Chaildin for the remainder of the term which
expires June 30, 2019.

4. Recommend to the Board of Directors to approve the purchase of the
Hana Bed/Table and Spider Arm Holder at a total cost not to exceed
the amount of $120,611

5. Recommend to the Board of Directors to approve the purchase of the
network switch replacements (Project #17-721-05) at a total cost not to

exceed the budgeted amount of $253,135.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Quality Committee

Mr. Cole reported all items were covered during the meeting.

Budge* ~-1 Finance Committee

Mr. Retz reported all items were covered during the meeting and on the consent agenda.

Executive Committee

Mr. Jordan reported all items were covered during the meeting.

Educat:~—=~' Gov~~-ume=*~l and C~~munity Relations Committee

Ms. Fitzgerald reported all items were covering during the meeting.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MAY 1, 2017
PAGE 4

Planning, Phy~i~al Facilities and Properties Committee

Mr. Jordan reported the Planning Committee did not meet.

PROCESS AND QUALITY "EPORT

No additional information was presented.

Hospital Att~——ey

Legal counsel had no report.
OTHER

No other business was discussed.

CI ™“"™NG REMARKS

There were no closing remarks.

OopP™™ "I)RUM FOR PUBLIC

Ms. Misty Wilson advised the Jess Parrish Medical Foundation has a successful golf
tournament benefiting the Children’s Center. The event played out at La Cita County Club
and the Great Outdoors venues and raised $65k.

AP "TTPNMENT

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 4:11 p.m.

Herman A. Cole, Jr.
Chairman



NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
BOARD OF DIRECTORS - REGULAR MEETING

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the North Brevard County Hospital District
operating Parrish Medical Center was held on June 5, 2017 in Conference Room 2/3/4/5,
First Floor. The following members were present:

Herman A. Cole, Jr., Chairman
Peggy Crooks

Billie Fitzgerald

Robert L. Jordan, Jr., C.M.
Jerry Noffel

Stan Retz, CPA

Ashok Shah, M.D

Member(s) Absent:
Elizabeth Galfo, M.D. (excused)
Maureen Rupe (excused)

A copy of the attendance roster of others present during the meeting is appended to the file
copy of these minutes.

CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Cole called the meeting to order at 4:06 p.m.

PL"™"" OF ALLEGIANCE

Mr. Cole led the Board of Directors, staff and public in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance.

PMC’S VIFT™N — Healing Families — Healing Communities®

Mr. Cole led the Board of Directors, staff and public in reciting PMC’s Vision — Healing
Families — Healing Communities®.

ADDD nyy ,XL OF ACD\TDA

Mr. Cole asked for approval of the agenda in the packet. Discussion ensued and the
following motion was made by Mr. Jordan, seconded by Mr. Retz and approved (7 ayes, 0
nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
JUNE 5, 2017
PAGE 2

REVIEW AN * PP YVAL OF MINUTES

Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Mr. Jordan, seconded by Ms.
Fitzgerald and approved (7 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO APPROVE THE APRIL 3, 2017 MEETING
MINUTES, AS PRESENTED.

OPEN FORUM FOR PMC PHYSICIANS

There were no physician comments.
PUBLIC COMMENTS

There were no comments from the public.
UNFINTeT™™1) BUSINESS

There was no unfinished business.

new BUSINESS

Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Mr. Jordan, seconded by Dr. Shah
and approved (7 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO RECOMMEND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
APPROVE POLICY 9500-7022, HEALING WORK ENVIRONMENT &
STANDARDS OF BEHAVIOR, AS PRESENTED.

Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Ms. Fitzgerald, seconded by Mr.
Jordan and approved (7 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO RECOMMEND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
APPROVE POLICY 9500-2028, PARTNERS-IN-CARE WELCOME POLICY, AS
PRESENTED.

Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Mr. Jordan, seconded by Ms.
Crooks and approved (7 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO RECOMMEND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
APPROVE POLICY 9500-1033, SIX SIGMA GOVERNANCE COUNCIL (SSGC)
STRUCTURE, AS PRESENTED.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
JUNE 5, 2017
PAGE 3

MEPT 2T eTATE REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS/ANNOUNCEMENTS —
Resignations

Resignations were noted for information only, no action required.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

There were no public comments regarding the revised consent agenda.

CONSENT AGENDA

Discussion ensued and the following motion was made by Ms. Crooks, seconded by Mr.
Jordan and approved (7 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions).

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING CONSENT
AGENDA ITEMS:

A, Finance Committee

1. Recommend to the Board of Directors to approve the unbudgeted
purchase of the Surgical Eye Stretchers, the Surgical Microscope, and

the Surgical Vision System at a total cost not to exceed the amount of
$259,519.08

2. Recommend to the Board of Directors to declare the equipment listed
in the requests for Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Property Forms as
surplus and obsolete and dispose of same in accordance with FS274.05
and FS274.96.

COMMIT™ ™ REPORTS

Quality Comm®“¢~~

Mr. Cole reported all items were covered during the meeting.

B--A~~¢ and Finance Committee

Mr. Retz reported all items were covered during the meeting.

Executive C~—~—*‘ee

Mr. Jordan reported all items were covered during the meeting.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
JUNE 5, 2017
PAGE 4

Educational, Governmental and Community Relations Committee

Ms. Fitzgerald reported all items were covering during the meeting.

Plo—=—im~ Dheiea] Facilities and Properties Committee

Mr. Jordan reported the Planning Committee did not meet.

PROCESS AND QUALITY REPORT

No additional information was presented.

Hospital Attorney

Legal counsel had no report.
OTHER
No other business was discussed.

CLOSING REMARKS

There were no closing remarks.

OPEN FORUM FOR PUBLIC

No member of the public spoke.
AMMINT TD\TMENT

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 4:09 p.m.

Herman A. Cole, Jr.
Chairman



DRAFT
Work in Progress

\\\ /// Parrish Medical Center{ North Brevard County Hospital District
‘ ”

Parrish Healthcare Centers

PARRISH Parrish Medical Group | North Brevard Medical Support, Inc.

HEALTHCARE Parrish Health Network

POLICY TIILE:
Non-Compete and Confidentiality Agreement

POLICY #: REPLACES POLICY #:
9500-7021 9500-162
EFFECTIVE DATE: Page:

05/01/1997 Page 1 of 4

DEVELOPED BY:

POLICY SCOPE:
Parrish Medical Center and Affiliates

REVIEWED: n/a

Human Resor'rrac ICnrporate Services

REVISED: 04/99; 02/17

APPROVALS:

Executive Management:

President/CEO:

Chairperson, Board of Directors:

REPOSITORY:
Corporate Compliance

iCare

POLICY

As part of the consideration undertaken by the North Brevard County Hospital District, operating
Parrish Medical Center, and North Brevard Medical Support, Inc., operating Parrish Medical Group
and Parrish Health Network, hereinafter referred to as “Employer”, to protect its legitimate
business interests, including, but not limited to, trade secrets, valuable confidential business
information, the Employer’s relationship with its clients, as well as the specialized training provided
to Employee during his/her tenure with Employer, the Employer will require that all newly hired
Management members and other specific positions identified by the President/CEO to sign the
Non-compete, Non-disclosure and Confidentiality Agreement.

The interviewing Executive Management /Management member will review this policy with the
candidate at the time of interview. A signature will be required at the time of the signing of the
letter of offer/employment confirmation. Employment will not be confirmed until this Agreement
is executed. This requirement is part of the hiring and employment process.

Failure to comply with this policy will negate any severance due or paid to employee and any
payments will be refunded to Employer should the Employee violate this policy.

DEFINITIONS

A. Employer - as part of the consideration undertaken by the North Brevard County Hospital
District, operating Parrish Medical Center, and North Brevard Medical Support, Inc.,




Non-Compete and Confidentiality Agreement Policy No 9500-7021
Page 2 of 4

operating Parrish Medical Group and Parrish Health Network, hereinafter referred to as
“Employer”.

B. Management has leadership responsibility for a functional area (department) within the
organization. Members of management supervise, manage or direct the work of others
either directly or indirectly.

C. Executive Management means Vice President or above.



Non-Compete and Confidentiality Agreement Policy No 9500-7021
Page 3 of 4

NON-COMPETE AND CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

THIS NON-COMPETE AND CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT (hereinafter “The
Agreement”), entered into this day of , , by
and between , hereafter called “Employee”, and
North Brevard County Hospital District, d/b/a Parrish Medical Center, a Florida Corporation,
hereinafter called “Employer.”

WHEREAS, Employer, as part of the consideration of hiring and employing and/or
continuing to employ Employee, and of providing special training to Employee, the sufficiency
of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree that in the event Employee terminates his/her
employment with Employer, Employee will not compete with Employer in accordance with the
terms and conditions outlined herein.

NOW THEREFORE, it is agreed to follows:

1. Non-Disclo~=~ During the term of Employee’s employment with the Employer and
following the Employee’s cessation of employment, whether by discharge, voluntary
termination, or any form of involuntary termination, the Employee agrees to treat all
confidential information received or acquired during the course of employment on a strictly
confidential basis, and will not disclose or use, give, loan, sell or otherwise dispose of, or
make available to any person, firm or corporation, directly or indirectly, any such
confidential information either during or subsequent to Employee’s employment.

2. ™-~1-Comp~~' The Employee agrees to a period of one (1) year after the cessation of his/her
employment he/she shall not be employed by or work for any other competing hospital or
medical provider or entity (which provides competing service to Employer) as an employee,
independent contractor, consultant or otherwise, within the geographical area which is
serviced by the Employer except with written approval by the President/CEO and/or Board
of Directors. Such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

3. The foregoing restrictions are being undertaken by Employer to protect its legitimate
business interests, including but not limited to, trade secrets, valuable confidential business
information, and the Employer’s relationship with its clients, as well as the specialized
training provided to Employee during his tenure at Employer.

4. The Employee further agrees to pay the Employer all costs and expenses incurred by the
Employer relating to enforcement of this Agreement, including attorney’s fees and costs
incurred by Employee’s breach of this Agreement.

5. Failure to comply with this policy will negate any severance due or paid to employee, and
any such payments will be refundable to employer, should employee violate this policy.



Non-Compete and Confidentiality Agreement Policy No 9500-7021

Page 4 of 4
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement on the date shown
below.
EMPLOYEE DATE
State of Florida
County of Brevard
Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of , ,
by , who is personally known to me or who has produced

as identification.

Notary Signature Printed Name and Commission #/Exp.

Parrish Medical Center

By:

State of Florida

County of Brevard

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of , ,
by__ , who is personally known to me or who has produced

as identification.

Notary Signature Printed Name and Commission #/Exp.















DRAFT

\\\‘/// dical Work in Progress
Parrish Medical Cente

~—y

Parrish Healthcare Centers

PAI“‘ISH Parrish Medical Group

HEALTHCARE | parrish Health Network

POLICY TITLE: POLICY #: REPLACES POLICY #:
Patient Complaint/Grievance Program 9500-1029 9500-24

| EFFECTIVE DATE: | Page:

01/20/1981 Page 1 of 6

POLICY SCOPE: REVIEWED: n/a
Parrish Healthcare and Affiliates
DEVELOPED BY: REVISED: 01/81; 09/90; 07/94; 10/95;
Adminictratian | Risk M=2n2gement 06/99; 09/02; 01/06; 01/11; 04/17
APPROVALS: REPOSITORY:

Executive Management:

President/CEO:

Chairperson, Board of Directors:

iCare

Corporate Compliance

PURPOSE

This policy provides a mechanism for initiation, review and, when possible, prompt resolution of
patient complaints/grievance concerning the quality of care or service received. The presentation of a
complaint/grievance will in no way compromise the quality of a patient’s current care or access to

future care.

DEFINITIONS

A. Care Partner Present: Any hospital care partner present at the time of the complaint or who can
quickly be at the patient’s location to resolve the patient’s complaint (i.e., nursing, administration,

nursing supervisors, patient advocates, etc.).

Care Partners are defined as an inclusive term referring to Parrish Healthcare employees, medical staff
members, auxiliary members, and Board of Directors members, as well as well as any person working for
or on behalf of Parrish Healthcare, including but not limited to temporary personnel, consultants, and
independent contractors, regardless of position.

Care Team (clinical): A patient-centered model of care, emphasizing safety and efficiency that
enable all members of the team caring for patients to offer individual expertise and contribute to
patient care in a concerted fashion.

. Complaint: Any written or verbal expression of displeasure or dissatisfaction with service received

that can be immediately resolved by the care partner present and/or with the assistance of the
Patient Experience (customer service) Professional.

Family, as defined by the Institute for Patient and Family Centered Care, “family” refers to two or



PATIENT COMPLAINT/ GRIEVANCE PROGRAM POLICY NO. 9500-1029
PAGE 2 OF 6

more persons who are related in any way — biologically, legally, or emotionally. Patients and families
define their “family.”

F. Grievance: A written or verbal complaint (when a patient issue cannot be resolved promptly by the
care partner present) that is made to the hospital by a patient, or the patient’s representative,
regarding the patient’s care, abuse, neglect, or issues related to race, color, national origin, age,
disability, sex, gender identity, gender expression, and nonconformity with gender stereotypes. The
hospital’s compliance with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) Hospital
Conditions of Participation (CoP) or a Medicare beneficiary’s right to appeal a premature discharge.
For the purposes of this policy, a letter, email, or fax from a patient or his/her healthcare
surrogate to Parrish Medical Center or any of its affiliates are considered “written.” In-person or
phone call complaints from the patient and/or the patient’s representative are considered
“verbal.”

1. Complaints Posted on Social Media Websites. Posts on social media websites like Twitter or
Facebook are not grievances. If a complaint is posted on a social media website, including any
one of Parrish Healthcare’s social media sites, we will respond with contact information for
our Patient Experience Representative.

2. Patient Account and Billing Issues. Generally, patient account and billing issues are not
grievances. Help with patient account and billing issues, will be directed to Patient Financial
Services.

Patient complaints alleging any action prohibited by Section 1557 of the Affordable Care Act (42 U.S.C.
§ 18116) and its implementing regulations at 45 C.F.R. pt. 92, issued by the U.S. Department of Health
and Human Services, will be directed to the office of Risk Management, which serves as the
organization’s Title of Section 1557 Coordinator. Such complaints will follow the procedure outlined
within the attached Appendix C to Part 92—Section 1557 of the Affordable Care Act Grievance
Procedure.

G. “Grievance Committee” means a group of persons delegated by the organization’s Governing Board
to review and resolve the Grievances the organization receives in a manner that complies with the
Medicare CoP grievance process requirements. The committee includes the Patient Experience
Professional, Risk Management, appropriate manager(s)/director(s), and appropriate member(s) of
Executive Management.

H. Patient refers to any person seeking healthcare or actively receiving healthcare treatments,
diagnostic tests, screenings, assessment, medications, or education from any entity related to
Parrish Healthcare.

POLICY

It is our commitment to provide healing experiences for our patients, their families and visitors.
Patients shall have the ability to file a complaint or grievance as part of the patient rights process and
in compliance with the Medicare CoP. The organization’s Governing Board delegates responsibility to



.

PATIENT COMPLAINT/ GRIEVANCE PROGRAM POLICY NO. 9500-1029

PAGE 30F 6

the Grievance Committee.

Complaints will be reviewed, and assistance provided to resolve concerns in a timely manner. In the
pursuit of excellent service, Parrish Healthcare (PH) empowers its employees to address patient,
family, and other visitor complaints within the limits of their capabilities. As such, any individual who
receives a complaint is expected to take ownership of the issue and make every effort to resolve that
issue, taking into account policies and procedures of their department and Parrish Healthcare.

A.

PROCESS

The Patient Rights and Responsibilities are posted throughout the facility and has information
regarding how to report issues to the Patient Experience Professional. Each patient will be given
or offered a copy of their Patient Rights and Responsibilities as part of the registration process.
The mechanism for initiating a complaint is outlined in this document.

Care Partner(s) Present that become aware of a patient or family concern or complaint about
patient care, patient rights, or who become aware of a concern or complaint are authorized to
attempt to resolve the concern or complaint as promptly as the circumstances allow, in a
courteous and reasonable manner. The department lead, manager, or director should be made
aware of and, if necessary, participate in the resolution process prior to contacting the Patient
Experience Professional. If it becomes necessary to involve the Patient Experience Professional,
a team approach with the department’s leadership will be used to resolve the issue.

If the patient calls persons other than the direct care team and has not tried to resolve the issue with
the involved unit/department, the contacted individual should immediately call the unit or
department involved. If the care partners present are able to resolve the patient complaint at that
time, it is not a grievance.

Patient complaints that become grievances also include situations where a patient or a patient’s
representative telephones the organization with a complaint regarding patient care or with an
allegation of abuse, neglect, discrimination or failure of the hospital to comply with CMS
requirements. Those post-hospital verbal communications regarding patient care that would
routinely have been handled by care partners present if the communication had occurred during
the stay are not required to be defined as a grievance unless the care partners present and/or
Patient Experience Professional are unable to handle the complaint that day. At that time, the
complaint will be considered a grievance and shall be referred to Risk Management for
resolution.

The organization’s Risk Management Department shall incorporate patient
Complaints/Grievances into the Complaint/Grievance data set for aggregation, analysis, and
reporting quarterly to the designated Grievance Committee, Hospital Quality Improvement
Committee, Medical Executive Committee (MEC), and Governing Board.

If grievances cannot be resolved within seven (7) days, a letter must be sent to the patient or
patient’s representative that acknowledges receipt of the complaint, and a statement that a
response should be reviewed within a stated period of time.



PATIENT COMPLAINT/ GRIEVANCE PROGRAM POLICY NO. 9500-1029
PAGE 4 OF 6

G. Patient grievances will be investigated and the resolution decision will be conveyed to the
patient or patient’s representative by letter. The letter will contain:

Name of the hospital/system

Name of the contact person

Steps taken on behalf of the patient to investigate the grievance

The result of the grievance process

Mail Date, which will be considered date of completion for the purpose of this policy.

uhwNe

H. A grievance is considered resolved when the patient is satisfied with the actions taken on his/her
behalf. When there are situations where the organization has taken appropriate and responsible
actions to resolve the grievance and the patient remains unsatisfied, the organization considers
the Grievance closed. All documentation of patient communication will be maintained by
Hospital Risk Management.

Appeal Rights: If resolution is not achievable and complainant would like to pursue the concern
outside the organization, the patient has appeal rights.

e Consumer Assistance Unit: 1-888-419-3456 or
e AHCA 2727 Mahan Drive, Bldg. 1, Tallahassee, FL 32308, or
e Joint Commission: 1-800-994-6610

l. Billing Complaints will be directed to Patient Financial Services. If a billing concern also involves a
service or quality-of-care concern the procedure for a complaint should be followed.

i} Medicare patients have a right to appeal a coverage decision, premature discharge, or to file a
complaint regarding the quality of their care. Case Management will investigate premature
discharge issues. The Patient Experience Professional will investigate concerns regarding general
customer service and patient advocate related issues. Risk Management will investigate
concerns regarding quality of care as well as Section 1557 of the Affordable Care Act (42 U.S.C. §
18116) issues.

K.  Responsible Person - Risk Management is responsible for ensuring that all individuals adhere to the
requirements of this policy, that these procedures are implemented and followed at the
Hospital/organization, and that instances of non-compliance with this policy are reported to
Administration.

L. Appendix C to Part 92—Section 1557 of the Affordable Care Act Grievance Procedure

1. It is the policy of Parrish Healthcare not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, national
origin, sex, age or disability. Parrish Healthcare has adopted an internal grievance procedure
providing for prompt and equitable resolution of complaints alleging any action prohibited by
Section 1557 of the Affordable Care Act (42 U.S.C. § 18116) and its implementing regulations at
45 C.F.R. pt. 92, issued by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Section 1557



PATIENT COMPLAINT/ GRIEVANCE PROGRAM POLICY NO. 9500-1029
PAGE 5 OF 6

prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age or disability in certain
health programs and activities.

2. Section 1557 and its implementing regulations may be examined in the office of:

Risk Manager

951 North Washington Avenue

Titusville, FL 32796

(321) 225-7409, who has been designated to coordinate the efforts of Parrish
Healthcare to comply with Section 1557.

3. Any person who believes someone has been subjected to discrimination on the basis of race,
color, national origin, sex, age or disability may file a grievance under this procedure. It is
against the law for Parrish Healthcare to retaliate against anyone who opposes
discrimination, files a grievance, or participates in the investigation of a grievance.

4. Grievances must be submitted to the Section 1557 Coordinator within (60 days) of the date
the person filing the grievance becomes aware of the alleged discriminatory action.

5. A complaint must be in writing, containing the name and address of the person filing it. The
complaint must state the problem or action alleged to be discriminatory and the remedy or
relief sought.

6. The Section 1557 Coordinator (or her/his designee) shall conduct an investigation of the
complaint. This investigation may be informal, but it will be thorough, affording all interested
persons an opportunity to submit evidence relevant to the complaint. The Section 1557
Coordinator will maintain the files and records of Parrish Healthcare relating to such
grievances. To the extent possible, and in accordance with applicable law, the Section 1557
Coordinator will take appropriate steps to preserve the confidentiality of files and records
relating to grievances and will share them only with those who have a need to know.

7. The Section 1557 Coordinator will issue a written decision on the grievance, based on a
preponderance of the evidence, no later than 30 days after its filing, including a notice to the
complainant of their right to pursue further administrative or legal remedies.

8. The person filing the grievance may appeal the decision of the Section 1557 Coordinator by
writing to the (Administrator/Chief Executive Officer/Board of Directors/etc.) within 15 days
of receiving the Section 1557 Coordinator’s decision. The (Administrator/Chief Executive
Officer/Board of Directors/etc.) shall issue a written decision in response to the appeal no
later than 30 days after its filing.

9. The availability and use of this grievance procedure does not prevent a person from pursuing
other legal or administrative remedies, including filing a complaint of discrimination on the
basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age or disability in court or with the U.S. Department
of Health and Human Services, Office for Civil Rights.



PATIENT COMPLAINT/ GRIEVANCE PROGRAM POLICY NO. 9500-1029
PAGE 6 OF 6

10. A person can file a complaint of discrimination electronically through the Office for Civil
Rights Complaint Portal, which is available at: https://ocrportal.hhs.gov/ocr/portal/lobby.jsf,
or by mail or phone at:

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
200 Independence Avenue, SW

Room 509F, HHH Building

Washington, D.C. 20201

11. Complaint forms are available at: http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/office/file/index.html. Such
complaints must be filed within 180 days of the date of the alleged discrimination.

12. Parrish Healthcare will make appropriate arrangements to ensure that individuals with
disabilities and individuals with limited English proficiency are provided auxiliary aids and
services or language assistance services, respectively, if needed to participate in this
grievance process. Such arrangements may include, but are not limited to, providing qualified
interpreters, providing taped cassettes of material for individuals with low vision, or assuring
a barrier-free location for the proceedings. The Section 1557 Coordinator will be responsible
for such arrangements.

V. REFERENCES
A. Appendix C to Part 92—Section 1557 of the Affordable Care Act

B. CMS State Operations Manual, Condition of Participation CoP 482.13
C. TheJoint Commission Hospital Accreditation Standards 2016 manual. Standard R1.01.07.01












\\\ ‘ / // Parrish Medical Center[North Brevard County Hospital District
\ -_—

Parrish Healthcare Centers

PARRISH‘ Parrish Medical Group

HEALTHCARE Parrish Health Network

POLICY TITLE: POLICY #: REPLACES POLICY #:
Healing Work Environment & Standards of Behavior (Non- 9500-7022 9500-214; 9500-59;
Discrimination, Anti-Harassment & Bullying, Romantic Associations) 9500-39; 9510-017
EFFECTIVE DATE: Page:
02/01/1989 Page 10of9
POLICY SCOPE: REVIEWED: 11/95
Parrish Healthcare Centers and Affiliates
DEVELOPED BY: REVISED: 06/95; 06/99; 03/03, 1/09, 03/17
_}-hum?n Racanirrace | F?rnnrate Services
APPRUVALS: REPOSITORY:
Corporate Compliance
Executive Management: iCare
President/CEO:
Chairperson, Board of Directors:

POLICY STATEMENT

Parrish Healthcare (PH) prohibits unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or exploitation of
any kind and will not tolerate unprofessional or disruptive behavior that is contrary to its mission,
vision and values. All care partners or any person working for or on behalf of PH (defined as Care
Partner), including but not limited to temporary personnel, consultants and independent contractors,
regardless of their positions are covered by and are expected to comply with this policy and to take
appropriate measures to ensure that prohibited conduct does not occur. In addition, PH will not
tolerate retaliation against any Care Partner for making a good-faith report of prohibited behaviors
and/or conduct, or for cooperating with or participating in any investigation of alleged prohibited
conduct. Appropriate disciplinary action will be taken against any Care Partner, or person working for
or on behalf of PH, who violates this policy up to and including termination.

PURPOSE

Parrish Healthcare (PH) maintains a high-performing, safe, and healing work environment in which all
people are treated with dignity, decency, respect, and in keeping with its mission, vision and values. In
compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations, PH enforces this policy in
accordance with the following definitions and guidelines.




Healing Work Environment POLICY NO. 9500-7022
Page 2 of 9

1E. DEFINITIONS
A. Care Partner

Employees or any person working for or on behalf of Parrish Healthcare, including but not limited
to temporary personnel, consultants, independent contractors /olunteers, and medical
staff members, regardless of position.

B. Professional Conduct

All Care Partners are expected to act in a professional, responsible, and courteous manner at all
times. Inappropriate or unprofessiona s disruptive and unproductive.
Inappropriate conduct is cause for discipline, up to and including immediate termination. In the
context of this policy, it is impossible to identify all standards of conduct that are unacceptable. PH
expects that Care Partners will use common sense and good judgment. However, PH's judgment
ind not that of any individual Care Partner, is the benchmark
tor what is acceptable and what is not. A Care Partner’s conduct is not made acceptable solely
because the Care Partner believes it to be. Nor may a Care Partner excuse his or her conduct
because this policy does not specifically prohibit the objectionable conduct. PH expects tha:
Care Partnel ‘hat inappropriate conduct, from rudeness to theft, is
unacceptable. The decision as to what is inappropriate is at PH’s sole discretiol

C. Discrimination

Discrimination is strictly prohibited by a variety of federal, state and local laws, including Title Vii of
the Civil Rights Act 1964, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and the Americans with Disabilities
Act of 1990. This policy is intended to comply with the prohibitions stated in these anti-
discrimination laws. It is a violation of PH’s policy to discriminate in the provision of employment
opportunities, benefits or privileges; to create discriminatory work conditions; or to use
discriminatory evaluative standards in employment if the basis of that discriminatory treatment is,
in whole or in part, the person’s race, color, national origin, age, religion, disability status, gender,
sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, genetic informatio mnarital statu

D. Harassment

pertorm his or her job Is included in the detinition ot harassment. | he tollowing examples ot
harassment are intended to be guidelines and are not exclusive when determining whether there
has been a violation of this policy:



Healing Work Environment POLICY NO. 9500-7022
Page 3 of 9

1. Verbal harassment includes comments that are offensive or unwelcome regarding a person’s
national origin, race, color, religion, gender or gender identity, sexual orientation, age, or
disability, including epithets, slurs and negative stereotyping.

2. Nonverbal harassment includes distribution, display or discussion of any written or graphic
material that ridicules, denigrates, insults, belittles or shows hostility, aversion or disrespect
toward an individual or group because of national origin, race, color, religion, age, gender or
gender identity, sexual orientation, pregnancy, disability, marital or other protected status.

E. Sexual Harassment

Sexual harassment i 1 form of unlawful employment discrimination under Title VIl of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 and is prohibited under PH’s anti-harassment policy. According to the Equal
Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC), sexual harassment is defined as “unwelcome sexual
advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when
submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for employment decisions or such
conduct has the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive working
environment”. Sexual harassment occurs when unsolicited and unwelcome sexual advances,
requests for sexual favors, or other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature:

1. Is made explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of employment.

Is used as a basis for an employment decision.

3. Unreasonably interferes with a Care Partner’s work performance or creates an intimidating,
hostile or otherwise offensive environment.

N

Sexual harassment may take different forms. The following examples of sexual harassment are
intended to be guidelines and are not exclusive when determining whether there has been a
violation of this policy:

1. Verbal sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, innuendoes, suggestive comments,
jokes of a sexual nature, sexual propositions, lewd remarks and threats; requests for any type
of sexual favor; and verbal abuse or “kidding” that is oriented toward a prohibitive form of
harassment.

2. Nonverbal sexual harassment includes the distribution, display or discussion of any written or
graphic material, including calendars, posters and cartoons that are sexually suggestive or show
hostility toward an individual or group because of sex; suggestive or insulting sounds; leering;
staring; whistling; obscene gestures; content in letters and notes, facsimiles, e-mail, photos,
text messages, tweets and Internet postings; or other form of communication that is oriented
toward a prohibitive form of harassment.

3. Physical sexual harassment includes but is not limitec Inwelcome, unwanted physical
contact, such as touching, tickling, pinching, patting, brushing up against, hugging, cornering,
kissing, etc.

PH prohibits harassment, including sexual harassment, of any kind, and will take appropriate and
immediate action in response to complaints or knowledge of violations of this policy.



Healing Work Environment POLICY NO. 9500-7022
Page 4 of 9

F. Hostile Work Environment

Hostile znvironment harassment can take many forms including anv action of a verbal or
physical nature that creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive

may be verbal, physical and even visual. An occurrence of hostile

inappropriate touching, demeaning jokes orsugges

posters and pictures posted in the workplace. When a work atmosphere in which a pattern ot such
offensive behavior occurs and when the conduct is sufficiently severe or pervasive as to have the
purpose affect of unreasonably interfering with work performance, a hostile

environment may exist. PH prohibits the aforementioned conduct and will take appropriate and
immediate action in response to complaints or knowledge of violations.

G. Bullying

Care Partners have the right to conduct their work in a safe and healing work environment without
disorderly or undue interference from other employees. PH prohibits Care Partners from violating
this right of their co-workers. PH defines bullying as repeated inappropriate

either direct or indirect, whether verbal, physical or otherwise, conducted by one or more persons
against another or others, at the place of work and/or in the course of employment. The following
examples of bullying are intended to be guidelines and are not exclusive when determining
whether there has been a violation of this policy:

Physically harming others.

Verbally abusing others.

Using intimidation tactics and making threats.

Sabotaging another's work.

Stalking others.

Making malicious, false and harmful statements about others.
Publicly disclosing another's private information.

NousewnR

H. Romantic Associations

Consensual, romantic associations, particularly between management and non-management Care
Partners create an atmosphere in which bias, favoritism, dissention, inability or unwillingness to
make decisions based solely on job-related considerations becomes difficult, if not impossible.
Even the appearance that such associations impact job-related decisions or operations is
inappropriate and unacceptable. Furthermore, such associations can evolve into situations which
foster actual or allegec sexual harassmen™ 'n the workplace. As such, PH
prohibits all Care Partners from creating and/or maintaining any romantic associations with other
Care Partners which adversely impact the performance of the employee, co-workers, Care
Partners, the work environment, and/or the efficient and safe operation of the hospital.

If a romantic association arises, it is the responsibility of both parties to inform their

and Human Resources. PH reserves the right to ask one, or both of the
parties to resign employment to avoid conflicts of interest or if such a relationship is creating an
adverse impact on the working environment.



Healing Work Environment POLICY NO. 9500-7022
Page 50of 9

. Retaliation

« Care Partne!

| 1. Filing or responding to a bona fide complaint of discrimination or harassment.
2. Appearing as a witness in the investigation of a complaint.
| 3. Serving as an investigator of a complaint.

Retaliation or attempted retaliation in response to lodging a complaint or invoking the complaint
process is a violation of this policy. Any person who is found to have violated this aspect of the
policy will be subject to sanctions up to and including termination of employment.

IV. PROCEDURES

PH is committed to promptly and thoroughly investigate all complaints of harassment, discrimination,
bullying or violations of the standards o n accordance with this policv.
All complaints will be handled swiftly and confidentiall o the extent possible

in light of the need to take appropriate corrective action. However, filing groundless or malicious
complaints is an abuse of this policy and will be treated as a violation.

A. Responding to Conduct in Violation of Policy
1. Employee/Care Partners, including any person working for or on behalf of PH

I Care Partner believes that he or she has been subject to conduct in violation of this policy,
he or she may address the situation directly and immediately with the individual, if possible. If
the inappropriate conduct does not cease, or if the Care Partner is unable to ol

uncomfortable with addressing the conduct directly, he or she should report the incident to his

Management nust deal expeditiously and fairly with allegations of harassment
or other inappropriate conduct within their departments whether or not there has been a
written or formal complaint. They must:

a. Take all complaints or concerns of alleged or possible harassment, discriminatiol
ar other inappropriate conduct seriously no matter how minor or who is
involved.
b. Ensure that r inappropriate conduct is
immediately reported to HR so that a prompt and impartial investigation can occur.
c. Take any appropriate action to prevent retaliation or prohibited conduct from recurring
during and after any investigations or complaints.



Healing Work Environment POLICY NO. 9500-7022

Page 6 of 9
d. If they observe priate
conduct, manz 0 HR
Manager: vho knowingly allow or tolerate harassment, discrimination or

retaliation, including the tailure to immediately report such misconduct to HR, are in violation
of this policy and subject to discipline.

Human Resource
HF "esponsible for:

a. Ensuring that both the individual filing the complaint (hereafter referred to as the
“complainant”) and the accused individual (hereafter referred to as the “respondent”) are
aware of the seriousness of a harassmen liscriminatior zomplaint.

b. Explaining PH’s Workplace Conduct policy and investigation procedures to the complainant
and the respondent.

c. Exploring informal means of resolving complaints.

d. Notifying the police if criminal activities are alleged.

e. Arranging for an investigation of the alleged harassment and the preparation of a written
report.

f.  Submitting a written report summarizing the results of the investigation and making
recommendations to designated company officials.

g. Notifying the complainant and the respondent of the corrective actions to be taken, if any,
and administering those actions.

B. Complaint Resolution Procedures

To initiate a formal investigation into an alleged violation of this policy, Care Partners may be asked
to provide a written statement about the alleged misconduct to HR. Complaints should be
submitted as soon as possible after an incident has occurred. HR may assist the complainant in
completing the statement. To ensure the prompt and thorough investigation of a complaint, the
complainant should provide as much of the following information as is possible:

1.

The name, department and position of the person or persons allegedly violating the Workplace
Conduct policy.

A description of the incident(s), including the date(s), location(s) and the presence of any
witnesses.

The effect of the incident(s) on the complainant’s ability to perform his or her job, or on other
terms or conditions of his or her employment.

The names of other individuals who might have been subject to the same or similar harassment_

What, if any, steps the complainant has taken to try to stop the conduct.
Any other information the complainant believes to be relevant to the complaint.

C. Discipline



Healing Work Environment POLICY NO. 9500-7022

Page 7 of 9

Care Partners who violate this policy are subject to appropriate disciplinary action up to and
including termination. Persons who violate this policy may also be subject to civil damages or
criminal penalties.

D. Confidentiality

All inquiries, complaints and investigations are treated confidentially to the extent possible while
keeping in mind HR’s desire to conduct a thorough investigation. Information is revealed strictly on
a need-to-know basis. HR will take steps to ensure that the complainant is protected from
retaliation. All information pertaining to a complaint or investigation is maintained by HR in secure
files. All witnesses, including the complaining Care Partner and the alleged wrongdoer, are advised
to keep information related to the investigation confidentia and may be
asked to sign an agreement to that effect. Information contained in a tormal complaint is kept as
confidential as possible. However, PH cannot guarantee the confidentiality of the process to
anyone, as you never know what may come of the investigation down the road.

E. Workplace Investigation | Obligation to Maintain Confidentiality and Avoid Retaliation/Coercion

1. Once an investigation has begun, all involved parties must maintain a professional and non-
retaliatory demeanor. Inappropriate and unprofessional behavior includes:

a.

=0 oooT

g.

Discussion concerning the incident or complaint and the investigation (“office gossip”
and the like

Interfering with the investigation, conducting your own independent investigation.
Joking about the incident or complaint with others.

Rushing to judgment and taking sides.

Coercion or intimidation of the complainant or witnesses.

Texting, e-mailing, using social networking or otherwise discussing the incident or

Ignoring the complainer or witnesses in meetings, in e-mails and during office activities.

2. Retaliatory conduct is prohibited. Some examples of retaliatory behavior include:

Threatening action or criticizing a Care Partner for filing a complaint or providing

information.
Firing, demoting, disciplining the worker or otherwise treating the Care
Partner/complainant differentl

Discussing the incident or complaint with the Care Partner/complainant or witnesse
This could be viewed as coercion.

Discussing the incident or complaint with anyone inside the Company other than those

with a business need to know, such as human resources and legal counse

Discussing the incident or complaint with anyone outside the Companv, such as
customers, vendors, suppliers and other colleague



Healing Work Environment POLICY NO. 9500-7022
Page 8 of 9

F. Other Available Procedures

The procedures available under this policy do not preempt or supersede any legal procedures or

REFERENCES

TJC 2015 Hospital Manual LD.03.01.01 EP 4 and EP 5

Title VIi of Civil Rights Act of 1964

Age Discrimination Act of 1975

American Disability Act of 1990

U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission. Types of Discrimination. Retrieved April 11, 2017
from

monNn®w>



Summary report:

Litéra® Change-Pro 7.5.0.185 Document comparison done on 6/9/2017

2:21:06 PM

Style »»me: Default Style

Intelligent Table Comparison: Active

Original DMS: iw://FSDMS/ORLANDO1/11040404/1

| M~difiad DMS: iw://FSDMS/ORLANDO1/11040404/3

f ' hanmacs

53
22
0
0
0
0
0
0
Embedded Graphics (Visio, ChemDraw, Images etc.) 0
Embedded Excel 0
Format changes 0
Total Changes: 75




\\\ ‘/// Parrish Medical Center | North Brevard County Hospital District

Parrish Healthcare Centers

\ (
PARRISHQ Parrish Medical Group

HEALTHCARE Parrish Health Network

POLICY TITLE: POLICY #: REPLACES POLICY #:
Conference Meeting Space Reservations and Use Guidelines 9500-1026 9500-82
ke

EFFECTIVE Page1of6

DATE: '

01/15/1991
POLICY SCOPE: REVIEWED:
Parrish Healthcare and Affiliates n/a
DEVELOPED BY: REVISED:

Communications, Community, and Corporate Services

APPROVALS:

Executive Management:

11/97, 1/98, 1/04, 12/05, 5/08, 8/12,

10/14, 06/17

President/CEQ:__

Chairperson, Board of Directors:

REPOSITORY:

rporate Compliance

(8 PURPOSE

This policy establlshes‘gwdelmes for reser\ffng conference/meeting space at any Parrish

g

Healthcare (PH) facility.

Il.  POLICY STATEMENT

Individuals, organizations or groups that wish to reserve a PH conference/ meeting space shall
compiy with this policy and support the PH mission, vision, and values. Failure to do so shall
result in‘the reservation being withdrawn and participants asked to immediately leave the
‘%%fac:llty Parrish Healthcare reserves the right to refuse the use of its facilities at its discretion.

. DEFINITIONS

A QCare Partner is an inclusive term referring to Parrish Healthcare employees, medical
staff members, auxiliary members, and Board of Directors members, as well as any
person working for or on behalf of Parrish Healthcare, including but not limited to
temporary personnel, consultants, vendors, and independent contractors, regardless of

position.

B. Parrish Healthcare is an inclusive term referring to North Brevard County Hospital
District d/b/a Parrish Medical Center and its affiliates and North Brevard Medical
Support, Inc. d/b/a Parrish Medical Group and its affiliates.




Conference Meeting Space Policy No. 9500-1026

Reservations and Use Guidelines Page 2 of 6
C. Mission: Healing Experiences for everyone all the time®
D. Vision: Healing Families—Healing Communities®
E. Values: Safety, Loyalty, Integrity, Compassion, Excellence, Stewardship

IV. Work-related Business Use Procedures

All PH care partners (employees, medical staff, volunteers) who wish to reserve
conference/event/meeting space for work-related reasons, such as department meetings, must
enter a space reservation request through the online conference room scheduling system.

V. PUBLIC-USE PROCEDURES

VI Space Use Restrictic !
A.

OO0 w

Read and acknowledge this policy.
Complete, sign and return Conference Space Rentai & Usage Agreement.
Public-Use Space Reservation Guidelines:

1. Space reservations are restricted to organnzatlons/group/wnh which PH has an
existing business or service contr; ,t/agreement

2. Space for public-use is reserved OQ n “as-available” basis.

3. Nonprofit groups will néed to prO\iide proof of their 501¢3 nonprofit status.

4, Care Partners who wish to reserve spacefor family and friends for non work-

related purposes, such as babyshowers b|rthday parties, etc. shall follow
public-use guidelines and procedures

5. Space provided for public use does riot constitute endorsement by PH of the
groups or individuals using the space or their beliefs.

6. Space provided for public use does not constitute or imply sponsorship.

7. Disclosure of third party sponsorships of is required at the time of application

:’/éomr;!etion. Third party sponsorships by alcohol- or tobacco-related companies
or any competing entity is strictly prohibited.

Religious worshs( ”")olltlcal fundraising, or functions not otherwise related to PH’s
mission, or in Vtolatlon of any of its policies.

Use by any competmg entity is prohibited.

Smoking or use of Tobacco products of any kind is strictly prohibited.

Alcohol, outside food, or appliances are prohibited unless special permission is granted
and documented on the rental agreement. Failure to obtain appropriate permission
may result in group, organization or individual to be denied future access to PH
conference/ meeting spaces.

Attaching anything to the walls, doors, windows or ceilings is strictly prohibited, i.e.,
(taping, pinning, sticking, etc.).

Guide dogs and service animals for persons with disabilities are permitted. No other
animals are permitted.



Conference Meeting Space Policy No. 9500-1026
Reservations and Use Guidelines Page 3 of 6

Vil. Space set up/break down

A.
B.

C.

D.

Standard classroom configuration of the tables and chairs is provided.

PH shall not be responsible for setting up any configurations other than standard
classroom style.

Spaces must be left in the same condition they were found. This includes returning the
space to classroom configuration.

All conference/meeting spaces will be locked after scheduled meetings are completed
and on weekends. Security will be responsible for locking and unlocking PH main
campus conference center after 5pm Monday-Friday, and on the weekends.

VIIl. Audiovisual & Technical Support:

A.
B.
C.

D.

IX. Signs/signage:
A.

Audiovisual 1\V) needs should be identified when"tie space reservation is made.
PH-provided AV equipment will, to the best of our:ability, be in working order.
Outside AV equipment may be brought in and used; however:
responsibility or liability for said equipment. AV technical support is not available.

PH provided AV equipment will be supported to the best of our abllrty Monday-Friday,
from 8:00am-4:30pm. AV techmcal support is not available on evenings and
weekends.

Signs or posters placed anywhere on PH properties or within PH buildings must be
preapproved by the Vice President, Comml/mications, Community and Corporate
Services, or designee, per PH policy. "

X.  Publicity/ Promotion

A.

Pupylraty for publlc events or meetings is the sole responsibility of the requesting
group/organrzat:on/lpdlvrdual Publicity should not imply sponsorship by, or affiliation
with, PH, unless agreement to such sponsorship has been provided in writing by the
Vice Prestd t, Commumcatlons Community and Corporate Services, or designee.

;ll pubhuty gferencmg PH by name must be reviewed and approved prior to

PH Vice Pres#dent Communications, Community and Corporate Services must be

otified if/when conference/event/meeting organizers are inviting or expecting news

Xl. Rights and Responsibilities:

A.

PH reserves the right to reassign conference/event/meeting space as needed to ensure
maximum ¢ ‘iciency and service.

PH reserves the right to update and/or change its conference/event/meeting space
general use criteria without notice.

PH reserves the right to refuse the use of its facilities at its discretion



Conference Meeting Space Policy No. 9500-1026

Reservations and Use Guidelines Page 4 of 6
D. Renters of PH’s conference/event/meeting space are responsible to pay rental deposits
and fees.

Xil. Public-Use Space Rental Fees

A Rental fees are subject to change at PH’s discretion and without notice. A 50% deposit
to hold the space will be required within 24 hours of placing the reservation or the
reservation will be canceled. The remaining balance will be due noflater than the day of
the scheduled reservation. ' *

Parrish Medical Center Main Campus
951 N. Washington Avenue, Titusville
e Audiovisual Equipment Available upon request at the Main Campus only.

Location: Capacity: Rental Fee:

Conference Room 1 36 with tables/chairs < $100/4 hours
56 without tables (chairs only)

Conference Room 2/4 30 with tables/chairs $100/4 hours
50 without tables (chairs only)

Conference Room 3/5 30 \)Vit ,%;ables/chairs $100/4 hours

450 without tables (chairs only)

Conference Room 2/3/4/5 &g(ﬁ‘ $200/4 hours

Conference Room 6 13 with table (table cannot be moved) $75/4 hours

Women’s Center Conf Room 15 with tables/chairs $75/4 hours

Cardio/DlSn&%ﬁi!ﬁConf Room 8 with tables/chairs {Internal Use Only)

Cardi&/{)i lounge. , 24 with tables/chairs (Internal Use Only)

Lab/Conf Room 14 people with tables/chairs {(Internal Use Only)

AV Equipment Rental Fees

Equipment 4 hours or less DAILY RATE

LCD Projector $50.00 $100.00

ELMO unit (Only available M-F 8a-4:30pm) $50.00 $100.00

Wireless Microphone $7.50 $12.00




Conference Meeting Space Policy No. 9500-1026
Reservations and Use Guidelines Page 5 of 6

Heritage Hall
Health Village West, 951 N. Washington Ave, Titusville

e AV Equipment Available: Smart Cart Podium, Projector & Projection Screen, 2 Flat-Screen TV’s
for presentations (on north & south walls).

e Other Amenities: Ice machine & sink, restrooms, pantry with refrigerator.

e Restricted Use: Must be a program or service related to seniors, caregivers, or those with
chronic conditions. During normal business hours (M-F, 8:00am-4:30pm).a key can be picked
up from the Philanthropy House. After normal business hours, please contact the Concierge
Desk, ext. 6104.

Rental Fee
$250/4 hours

Capacity:
Heritage Hall 24 with tables/chairs, 45 (chairs only)

Health & Fitness Center
2210 Cheney Highway (Hwy 50), Titusville

Capacity: Rental Fee:
Meeting Room #4 20 people with tables L 4 $100/4 hours
40 people without tables (chairs only)

Parrish Healthcare at Port St. John
5005 Port St. John Parkway, Port St. John, FL

Capacity: Rental Fee:
Conference Room 1 (Manét’ee) 42 with tables/chairs $250/4 hours

56 without tables (chairs only)

116 with tables/chairs $175/4 hours
£730 without tables (chairs only)

Conference Rooms 2&
(Pelican/Osprey)

Parrish Healthcare Center | Port Canaveral
390 Challenger Road, Cape Canaveral, FL

Capacity:
Port Canaveral Conference Room 20 people with tables/chairs (Internal Use Only)
e Available M-F 7am-7pm, Weekends 7am-4pm

Parrish Healthcare Center | Titus Landing



Conference Meeting Space
Reservations and Use Guidelines

250 Harrison Street, Titusville, FL
e Available M-F 8am-5pm
Conference Room A

Conference Room B

N

Policy No. 9500-1026
Page 6 of 6

Capacity: Rental Fee:
22 people with tables/chairs (Internal use only)

10 people with tables/chairs (Internal use only)

























\\‘// Parrish Medical Center | North Brevard County Hospital District
Parrish Healthcare Centers

- Parrish Medical Group
PAR]KISH Parrish Health Network

HEALTHCARE

POLICY TITLE: POLICY #: REPLACES POLICY #:
.. . . . . 9500-128
Communication with Sensory Impaired or Language Barrier Patients 9500-2031
EFFECTIVE Page:
DATE: 1of7
05/01/1996
POLICY SCOPE: REYIEWED: 3/17
Parrish Healthcare and Affiliates

DEVELOPED BY:
Administratian | Acute Care Services

APPROVAL: REPOSITORY:

REVISED: 5/96, 7/99, 12/00, 1/08,

Executive Management: COrpOr?:te Compliance

iCare

Executive Management

President/CEO:

Chairperson, Board of Directors:

I. PURPOSE

This policy sets forth a plan that accommodates individuals with the special needs defined in Section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 1557 of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, and the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability in the
delivery of healthcare sefmces The regulation implementing these Acts requires that sensory impaired
individuals, including: the blind and the hearing impaired, be provided with auxiliary aids at no cost to allow
them an equal oppbrtunlty to partncnpate in and benefit from healthcare services. The decision of the method
to be used for communication requires the input of the patient, or the patient’s family/partners-in-care. Their
choice must be given wetght ‘

Parrish Healthcare (PH) is co mitted to full compliance with federal and state laws barring discrimination on
the basis of disability. Parrish Healthcare recognizes its obligations to ensure effective communication with
persons who are deaf, hard of hearlng or visually impaired or persons with limited English language
proficiency. Parrish Healthcare is committed to pro-actively assessing communication needs as well as
providing the highest quality of services to all who use them. Qualified language interpreters and/or other
auxiliary aids and services are necessary to provide equal access to hospital services for deaf and hard of
hearing individuals as well as those individuals that are visually impaired.

Il. DEFINITIONS

A. “Parrish Healthcare” Is an inclusive term referring to North Brevard County Hospital District d/b/a
Parrish Medical Center and its affiliates and North Brevard Medical Support, Inc. d/b/a Parrish Medical
Group and its affiliates.



COMMUNICATION WITH IMPAIRED OR LANGUAGE BARRIER PATIENTS POLICY NO. 9500-1029

PAGE 2 OF 7

The term “point of initial entry” refers to each point of initial entry into PH, such as the Emergency
Department.

“patient” refers to any person seeking healthcare or actively receiving healthcare treatments,
diagnostic tests, screenings, assessment, medications, or education from any entity related to PH.

. “Family” as defined by the Institute for Patient and Family Centered Care, “family” refers to two or

more persons who are related in any way - biologically, legally, or emotionally. Patients and families
define their “family.”

“Partners-in-Care” are person(s) identified by the patient, who are family members and/or friends or
other individuals that are present to support the patient during the course of the patient’s health care
experience with PMC and may exercise the patient’s visitation rights on the patient’s behalf if patient
is unable to do so. The support person(s) may provide emotional andfor social support and comfort
according to the patient’s preference. Such individual(s) may or may not be an individual legally
responsible for making medical decisions on the patlent s behalf. <

“Care Partner” is an inclusive term referring to PH employée edical staff mer%r;bers, auxiliary

members, and Board of Directors members.

. “Interprofessional Care Team (non-clinical)” is a group of healthcare professionals from within their

own profession, with people outside their profession and with patients and their families to bring
together diverse knowledge, skills and perspectives to support the patient during the course of the
patients’ health care experience. ‘

. The term “auxiliary aids and s‘é,;;yices” refers to those auxiliary aids and services that are necessary to

ensure (i) effective communicatibn’bet en persons with disabilities and care partners, and (i) that
persons with disabilities are not exclud enied services, segregated, or otherwise treated
differently than other persons b ause of the absence of auxiliary aids and services, unless it would
result in an undue burden to PH. Auxdlary aids may include:

qualified interpreters on- snte or through video remote interpreting (VRI) services;
notetakers;
written materials; exchange of written notes;
- telephone handset amplifiers;
"gvoice text, and video-based telecommunications products and systems, including text
~ telephones (TTYs), videophones, and captioned telephones, or equally effective
telecommunications devices;
large print materials;
ceessible electronic and information technology;

The term “qualified interpreter” means an interpreter who, via a video remote interpreting (VRI)
service or an on-site appearance, is able to interpret effectively, accurately, and impartially, both
receptively and expressively, using any necessary specialized vocabulary. Qualified interpreters
include, for example, sign language interpreters. Someone who has only a rudimentary familiarity of
sign language or finger spelling is not a “qualified interpreter” under this Policy or the ADA. Likewise,
someone who is fluent in sign language but who does not possess the ability to process spoken



COMMUNICATION WITH IMPAIRED OR LANGUAGE BARRIER PATIENTS POLICY NO. 9500-1029
PAGE3 OF 7
communication into the proper signs or to observe someone else signing and change his or her signed
or finger-spelled communication into spoken words is not a qualified sign language interpreter.

J. The term “video remote interpreting” (VRI) service means an interpreting service that uses video
conference technology over dedicated lines or wireless technology offering high-speed, wide-
bandwi h video connection that delivers high-quality video images.

K. The term “text telephone” (TTY) — also known as TDD - refers to a device that aHows people with
hearing or speech impairments to communicate over the telephone using same form of keyboard
input and visual display output.

L. The term “service animal” means an animal that is trained to do work or perform tasks foran |
individual with a disability, including a physical, sensory, psychiatric, intellectual, or other mental
disability. The work done or tasks performed must be directly related to the individual’s disability and
may include, but are not limited to, guiding an individual who is visually impaired or blind, alerting an
individual who is deaf or hard of hearing, pulling a wheelchair, assisting with mobility or balance,
alerting and protecting an individual who is having a seizure, retrieving objects, alerting an individual
to the presence of allergens, providing physical support and assistance with balance and stability to an
individual with a mobility disability, helping an individual with a psychiatric or neurological disability by
preventing or interrupting impulsive or destructive behaviors, reminding an individual with mental
iliness to take prescribed medications, calming an individual with posttraumatic stress disorder during
an anxiety attack, or doing other specific work or performing other special tasks. A service animal is
not a pet. The term “service animal” is limited to a dog or miniature horse. The crime-deterrent effect

of an animal’s presence and the provision of emotional support, well-being, comfort, or
compal Hnship do not constltute work or tasks for purposes of this definition.

%»A

lll. POLICY STATEMENT

Parrish Healthcare care partners will promde quallfled sign-language or other language interpreters and/or
other appropriate auxiliary aids and services where necessary to ensure effective communication with
individuals with disabilities and/or individuals with limited English language proficiency. This includes an
obligation to provide effective communication to family and/or partner-in-care of patients who are persons
with disabilities. To achieve that goal, PH care partners will inform patients with disabilities and the sensory-
impaired famﬁy/partner in-care of patients of the availability, at no cost to them, of qualified interpreters
and/or.other auxrhary aids, and will provide each service upon request.

Iv. PROCEQURE

A. Desién ion of ADA Coordinator(s).

PH will desggnate one or more employees or officers to serve as its ADA Coordinator(s). The ADA
Coordmator(s) will know where the appropriate auxiliary aids are stored and how to operate them,
and will be responsible for ensuring their maintenance, repair, replacement, and distribution.

PH will circulate broadly throughout its facilities the name, telephone numbers, function, and office
location of its ADA Coordinator(s), including a TTY number that may be called by deaf persons in order
to obtain the assistance of the ADA Coordinator(s). The ADA Coordinator(s) will distribute information



COMMUNICATION WITH IMPAIRED OR LANGUAGE BARRIER PATIENTS POLICY NO. 9500-1029
PAGE4 OF 7

regarding PH’s sign language interpreting agency. Guide for Care Partners needing Services for
Sensory Impaired or Language Barrier Persons found on I-Care located under the letter “L".

The ADA Coordinator(s) will work in collaboration with PH’s Human Resources Departments and PMC’s
Nurse Educator(s) to ensure that all PH care partners are trained on the auxiliary aids and services
described in this Policy. The ADA Coordinator(s) are listed as follows:

1. PMC Emergency Department Charge Nurses (all shifts), call ext. 6130
2. PMC House Supervisors (all shifts), call ext. 6666
3. PH Patient Experience Professional (M-F, 8 am — 5 pm), call ext. 6685

B. Procedure for Sensory (Hearing or Visually) Impaired Patients

1. Initial Intake of Patients who are Deaf or Hearing Impajg‘;éd\ 4

a. Proactive Assessment. PH care partners will begin assessing the individual needs of a
patient either at the time an appointment or admission is scheduled, upon arrival at
its Emergency Department, upon admission, or upon recelpt of notification that a
deaf person is being transported to.a PH entity. ¢

b. Whensucha determinatian is made, and as soon as the patient’s condition
reasonably allows, the nurse, physman or other PH care partner overseeing the
provision of care will present the person who i is Sensory impaired with a copy of

“Services for Sensory Impaired Persons in the form of Attachment A to this Policy
(hereinafter, “the Notice”). If the patient is a minor or is unable to provide consent
for medical treatment, the presentation will be made to the patient’s family/partner-
in-care, if present. The care partner present will help the patient complete the Notice
when necessary.

he Care Partner present will consult with the patient to ensure his/her preferred
method(s) of communication, as well as the equipment preferred to ensure effective
commumcatlon, are properly expressed on the Notice.

d. Care partners wzll then promptly inform the ADA Coordinator of any equipment needs
requested by or on behalf of the patient. The completed Notice, or all information
" d in the completed Notice, will then be included with the patient’s health

2. 1terpreting Services

a. Prompt Cali for Qualified Interpreters, when needed. Immediately upon completing
the EMR assessment and Notice requirements and determining need, PH care
partners involved with the patient will promptly schedule or otherwise promptly call
for a qualified interpreter to be provided.

b. Prearranging Guaranteed Access to Qualified Interpreters. PH will enter into an
agreement with a qualified sign language interpreting agency. The agreement must



COMMUNICATION WITH IMPAIRED OR LANGUAGE BARRIER PATIENTS POLICY NO. 9500-1029

3. Restricted Use of Other Interpreters.

a.

4. Telepho

a.

b.

PAGES5 OF 7

specify that an interpreter will be made available as soon as possible after the request
is made. Waiver and Assessment forms found in forms fast or on I-Care.

Video Remote Interpreting (VRI) Services. PH will arrange for (i) real-time, full-motion
video and audio over a dedicated high-speed, wide-bandwidth video connection or
wireless connection that delivers high-quality video images; and (ii) adequate training
to users of the technology and other involved individuals so that they may quickly and
efficiently set up and operate the VRI. Waiver and Notice forms found in forms fast
or on |-Care.

i.  Available upon request through ADA Coordinator(s).

If a person who is deaf rejects PH's offer of ¢ afree quailfled interpreter and instead (i)
specifically requests that an accompanying adult mterpret or facilitate
communication, (ii) the accompanying adult agrees to provade such assistance, and
(iii) reliance on that adult is appropriate under the circumstancé PH may rely on that
adult to facilitate communlcatlons with the patient. PH shall secure a signed waiver
form found in forms fast or on'l- Care) and place the waiver in the patient’s health
record. A patient who |n1tialiy executas the waiver can change his or her mind at any
time simply by telling a PH care partner pres that they want an interpreter to be
provided by PH.

In an emergency involving an immineﬁigtbf"’eat to the safety or welfare of an individual
or the public where there is no interpreter available, PH care partners will
immediately contact a qualified interpreter, and, until the interpreter’s arrival, PH
care partners present may use flash cards, pictograph forms, written notes, charts,
diagrams and its best efforts to provide the most effective communication possible

Zuntil such time as the qualified interpreter arrives, including, in appropriate

circumstances, the use of family members or friends who are not qualified

' ~lnterpreters

B
,?

(TTY) Servnces

In additio 'f’to interpreting services and the other auxiliary aids and services defined
previously, PH will offer TTYs or telephones with amplified sound and which are
hearing aid compatible, as appropriate, for persons who are deaf. TTY Telephone is
available to any of our patients upon request through our house supervisor (Mission
Control).

All patient telephones come with a volume adjustment dial which enables patient to
increase or decrease the volume of the other party.

A dual handset phone is available to any of our patients upon request through house
supervisor (Mission Control).

5. Laptop for Hearing Impaired



COMMUNICATION WITH IMPAIRED OR LANGUAGE BARRIER PATIENTS POLICY NO. 9500-1029
PAGE 6 OF 7

a. Asimple-to-use laptop is available for hearing impaired patients, and is stored in the
nursing supervisor’s office-on-the-3" floor.

b. A PH care partner will use the password located on the laptop to login and will open
the icon on the screen.

c. Patient will then log in using their phone number and password (this is the patient’s
own information). Patient must have an account to use this software.

C. Patients who are Visually Impaired or Blind

1. PH will provide appropriate auxiliary aids and services for visually impairéd patients including
large print materials and reading to the patient and/or his or family member/partnerfgﬁ-care.

2. Service Animals are allowed.

D. Family Members/Partners-in-Care with Disabilities

1. Whenever a patient, whether disabled or not, is accom anied by a family member/partner-in-care
who is deaf, hard of hearing, or visually impaired, and whowould reasonably be expected to desire
or be authorized to communicate with PH care partners about the patient (including those who
would normally receive information concerning the status of a batient’s health, participate in any
treatment decision, play a role in communicating the patient’s needs, condition, history or

ftners, o?‘}melp the patient act on any information, advice or instructions
ners), PH will offer at no charge to family member/partner-in-care (or
rvice, including qualified sign language interpreters, necessary

symptoms to PH care
provided by PH care.
patient) those auxiliary aids and
for effective communication.

V. Guide for Care Partners

g

A. In accordance with Parrish Healthcare’s Pblicy 9500-2031, Services for Sensory (Vision, Hearing,
Speech) Impaired Persons, and Persons with Limited English Proficiency, we have an agreement with
Language Services Associates to provide:

1. F :eign Language Interpreters: 1-877-274-9745, Access Code: 8005260#
-a._Provide your name, phone number, department and the language that you need.

: ‘gn La nguage Interpreters: 1-866-827-7028, Account Code: 1362

™ Video Remote Interpretation via interpretrac.Isaweb.com
'b. Tablet in the Emergency Department via Charge Nurse or Security |
Username: parrish

Password: parrish2!

3. Patients with aphasia will have information provided to both them and a family member
through aids identified by a Speech therapist.

B. Other Resources:



COMMUNICATION WITH IMPAIRED OR LANGUAGE BARRIER PATIENTS POLICY NO. 9500-1029
PAGE 7 OF 7

1. All patient telephones come with a volume adjustment dial which enables patient to increase
or decrease the volume of the other party.

2. Adual handset is available to any of our patients upon request through house supervisor

flission Control}.

3. FLORIDA RELAY TDD\TTY (Telecommunication Deaf Device) 1-800-955-8771.

C. Reference Materials

1. iCare —keywords: Interpreter Services, Language Services

VI. REFERENCES

A. Patient Complaint/Grievance Policy #9500-1029

B. US Department of Health and Human Services Office for ClVlI Rights Fact Sheet on Sectlon 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973

C. U.S. Department of Justice Americans with Dlsabllltles Act ADA HOME PAGE

D. Appendix C to Part 92—Section 1557 of the Patient Protection‘and Affordable Care Act










\\\ ‘ / 4/ Parrish Medical Center | North Brevard County Hospital District
Parrish Healthcare Centers

\ V
PARRISH” Parrish Medical Group

HEALTHCARE Parrish Health Network
POLICY TITLE: POLICY #: REPLACES POLICY
Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) 9500-7028 #:
n/a
EFFECTIVE Page: 1 0f 12
DATE:
+=May 2017
POLICY SCOPE: REVIEWED:
Parrish Medical Center and Affiliates n/a
DEVELOPED BY: 4 'REVISED
Corporate Services
APPROVALS: REPOSITORY:
Corporate Compliance
Executive Management: iCare N
President/CEQ:
Chairperson, Board of Directors:

1. PURPOSE

Parrish Healthcare Wi!#’prowde Family and Medical Leave (FMLA) to its eligible employees. The
organlzatwn posts the mandatory FMLA Notice and upon hire provides all new employees with notices
required by the U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) on Employee Rights and Responsibilities un :r the
Family and Medical Leave Act m{he State of Florida. The function of this policy is to provide
employees with a- general descrlption of their FMLA rights. In the event of any conflict between this
policy and the appllcab!e law, emplcyees will be afforded all rights required by law. Direct questions,
concerns, or disputes WIthighls policy, to Human Resources in writing.

1. DEFINITIONS

A. Eligible Employee is one who:

1. Works for a covered employer,
2. Has worked for the employer for at least 12 months;
3. Has at least 1,250 hours of service for the employer during the 12 month period

immediately preceding the leave

B. Covered Employer is a:



FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT POLICY NO. 9500-7028
PAGE 2 OF 12

1. Private-sector employer, with 50 or more employees in 20 or more workweeks in the
current or preceding calendar year, including a joint employer or successor in interest
to a covered employer;

2. Public agency, including a local, state, or Federal government agency, regardless of the
number of employees it employs; or
3. Public or private elementary or secondary school, regardless of the number of

employees it employs.

C. Spouse: Under the FMLA, a “spouse” means a husband or wife, including those in same-sex
marriages, which were made legal in all 50 United States as of June 26, 2015.

D. Parent: Parent means a biological, adoptive, step or foster father or mother, or any other
individual who stood in loco parentis to the employee when the employee was a child. This
term does not include parents “in law.”

E. Son or Daughter: Son or daughter means a biological, adopted, or foster child, a stepchild, a
legal ward, or a child of a person standing in loco parentis, who is either under age 18, or age
18 or older and “incapable of self-care because of a mental or physical disability” at the time
that FMLA leave is to commence.

F. InLoco Parentis: The FMLA regulations define in loco parentis as including those with day-to-
day responsibilities to care for or financially support a child. Employees who have no biological
or legal relationship with a child may, nonetheless, stand in loco parentis to the child and be
entitled to FMLA leave. Similarly, an employee may take leave to care for someone who,
although having no legal or biological relationship to the employee when the employee was a
child, stood in loco parentis to the employee when the employee was a child, even if they have
no legal or biological relationship.

G. Serious Injury or Health Condition, is an illness, injury, impairment or physical or mental
condition that involves inpatient care (defined as an overnight stay in a hospital, hospice or
residential medical care facility; any overnight admission to such facilities is an automatic
trigger for FMLA eligibility) or continuing treatment by a health care provider. Examples include
the following:

1. Continuing treatment by a health care provider that results in an incapacity (inability to
work, attend school or participate in other daily activities) of more than three
consecutive calendar days with either two or more in-person visits to the health care
provider within 30 days of the date of incapacity OR one in-person visit to the health
care provider with a regimen of continuing treatment, such as prescription medication,
physical therapy, etc. In either situation, the first visit to the health care provider must
occur within seven days of the first date of incapacity.

2. Chronic conditions that require periodic visits to a health care provider continue over
an extended period of time and may cause episodic rather than continuing periods of
incapacity of more than three days. Incapacity for pregnancy or prenatal care (any such



FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT POLICY NO. 9500-7028
PAGE 3 OF 12

incapacity is FMLA-protected regardless of the period of incapacity). For example, a
pregnant employee may be unable to report to work due to severe morning sickness.

3. Permanent or long-term conditions such as Alzheimer's, severe stroke or terminal
disease.

4, Conditions requiring multiple treatments and recovery from treatments, such as cancer,
severe arthritis and kidney disease.

5. Treatment for substance abuse by a healthcare provider or by a provider of healthcare
services on referral by a health care provider.

6. In the case of a servicemember of the Armed Forces (including a member of the

National Guard or Reserves), Serious Injury means an injury or illness that was incurred
by the member in line of duty on active duty in the Armed Forces (or existed before the
beginning of the member’s active duty and was aggravated by service in line of duty on
active duty in the Armed Forces) and that may render the member medically unfit to
perform the duties of the member’s office, grade, rank, or rating; and

7. In the case of a veteran who was a servicemember of the Armed Forces (including a
member of the National Guard or Reserves) at any time during a period when the
person was a covered servicemember, serious injury means a qualifying (as defined by
the Secretary of Labor) injury or illness incurred by a covered servicemember in the line
of duty on active duty that may render the servicemember medically unfit to perform
the duties of his or her office, grade, rank or rating.

8. Outpatient status, with respect to a covered servicemember, means the status of a
member of the Armed Forces assigned to either a military medical treatment facility as
an outpatient; or a unit established for the purpose of providing command and control
of members of the Armed Forces receiving medical care as outpatients.

9. The FMLA regulations specifically exclude the following conditions, unless inpatient
care or complications develop that would meet the above criteria: cosmetic treatments,
common colds, flu, ear aches, upset stomach, minor ulcers, headaches other than
migraine, routine dental or orthodontia problems, and periodontal disease.

lIt. POLICY STATEMENT

Under this policy, Parrish Healthcare will grant up to 12 weeks (or up to 26 weeks of military
caregiver leave to care for a covered servicemember with a serious injury or illness) during a 12-
month period to eligible employees in accordance with all applicable Family and Medical Leave Act
(FMLA) laws, rules and regulations. The leave may be paid, unpaid or a combination of paid and
unpaid leave, depending on the circumstances of the leave and as specified in this policy.

IV. PROCEDURE

A. Requesting Leave:
1. All employees requesting FMLA leave must provide verbal or written notice of the need
for the leave to Human Resources. A Request for Leave Form must be completed for all
leave taken under this policy. The form is available in Human Resources.



FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT POLICY NO. 9500-7028

PAGE 4 OF 12

Within five business days after the employee has provided this notice, Human
Resources will complete and provide the employee with the Department of Labor
Notice of Eligibility and Rights.

When the need for the leave is foreseeable, the employee must provide the employer
with at least 30 days' notice. When an employee becomes aware of a need for FMLA
leave less than 30 days in advance, the employee must provide notice of the need for
the leave as soon as practicable after the need for leave arises.

When the need for FMLA leave is not foreseeable, the employee must comply with the
organization’s Attendance Policy and its usual and customary notice and procedural
requirements for requesting leave, absent unusual circumstances.

Calling in “sick” does not qualify as notice of the need for FMLA leave.

Failure to provide adequate information to Human Resources to classify a leave request
as FMLA-covered may result in the delay or denial of rights under this policy to
protection for the absence, or failure to comply with the organization’s attendance
policy may result in progressive disciplinary action up to and including termination.

B. Intent to Return to Work From FMLA Leave

1.

On a basis that does not discriminate against employees on FMLA leave, the
organization may require an employee on FMLA leave to report periodically on the
employee’s status and intent to return to work.

C. Eligibility and Amount of Leave available

To qualify to take family or medical leave under this policy, the employee must meet all of the
following conditions:

1.
2,

The employee must have worked for the company for 12 months or 52 weeks

The employee must have worked at least 1,250 hours during the 12-month period
immediately preceding the commencement of the leave. The 1,250 hours do not
include time spent on paid or unpaid leave. Consequently, these hours of leave should
not be counted in determining the 1,250 hours eligibility test for an employee under
FMLA.

The organization uses a rolling calendar, which looks back 12 months, each time an
employee requests FMLA leave, the employer uses that date and measures 12 months
back. An employee would be eligible for any remaining FMLA leave they have not used
in the preceding 12-month period.

An eligible employee can take up to 26 weeks for military caregiver leave during a single
12-month period. For this military caregiver leave, the company will measure the 12-
month period as a rolling 12-month period measured forward. FMLA :ave already
taken for other FMLA circumstances will be deducted from the total of 26 weeks
available.

D. Types of Leave Covered



FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT POLICY NO. 9500-7028

PAGE 5 OF 12
1. To qualify as FMLA leave under this policy, the employee must be taking leave for one
of the reasons listed below:
a. The birth of a child and in order to care for that child.
b. The placement of a child for adoption or foster care and to care for the newly
placed child.
c. To care for a spouse, child or parent with a serious health condition.
d. The serious health condition of the employee that makes the employee unable

to perform the functions of the employee's position.

2.  Employees with questions about what illnesses are covered under this FMLA policy or
under the organization’s sick leave policy are encouraged to consult with Human
Resources.

3. If an employee takes paid sick leave for a condition that progresses into a serious health
condition and the employee requests unpaid leave as provided under this policy, the
organization may designate all or some portion of related leave taken as leave under
this policy, to the extent that the earlier leave meets the necessary qualifications.

4. Qualifying exigency leave for families of members of the National Guard or Reserves or
of a regular component of the Armed Forces when the covered military member is on
covered active duty or called to covered active duty.

a.

An employee whose spouse, son, daughter or parent either has been notified of
an impending call or order to covered active military duty or who is already on
covered active duty may take up to 12 weeks of leave for reasons related to or
affected by the family member’s call-up or service. The qualifying exigency must
be one of the following:
i. short-notice deployment

ii. military events and activities

ili. child care and school activities

iv. financial and legal arrangements

v. counseling

vi. rest and recuperation

vii. post-deployment activities, and
viii. additional activities that arise out of active duty, provided that the
employer and employee agree, including agreement on timing and
duration of the leave.

Eligible employees are entitled to FMLA leave to care for a current
servicemember of the Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard
or Reserves, or a member of the Armed Forces, the National Guard or Reserves
who is on the temporary disability retired list, who has a serious injury or illness
incurred in the line of duty on active duty for which he or she is undergoing
medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy; or otherwise in outpatient status;
or otherwise on the temporary disability retired list.



FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT

POLICY NO. 9500-7028
PAGE 6 OF 12

C. Eligible employees may not take leave under this provision to care for former
members of the Armed Forces, former members of the National Guard and
Reserves, and members on the permanent disability retired list.

d. In order to care for a covered servicemember, an eligible employee must be the
spouse son, daughter, or parent, or next of kin of a covered servicemember.

A “son or daughter of a covered servicemember” means the covered
servicemember's biological, adopted, or foster child, stepchild, legal
ward, or a child for whom the covered servicemember stood in loco
parentis, and who is of any age.

A “parent of a covered servicemember” means a covered
servicemember's biological, adoptive, step or foster father or mother, or
any other individual who stood in loco parentis to the covered
servicemember. This term does not include parents “in law.”

The “next of kin of a covered servicemember” is the nearest blood
relative, other than the covered servicemember’s spouse, parent, son, or
daughter, in the following order of priority: blood relatives who have
been granted legal custody of the servicemember by court decree or
statutory provisions, brothers and sisters, grandparents, aunts and
uncles, and first cousins, unless the covered servicemember has
specifically designated in writing another blood relative as his or her
nearest blood relative for purposes of military caregiver leave under the
FMLA. When no such designation is made, and there are multiple family
members with the same level of relationship to the covered
servicemember, all such family members shall be considered the covered
servicemember's next of kin and may take FMLA leave to provide care to
the covered servicemember, either consecutively or simultaneously.
When such designation has been made, the designated individual shall
be deemed to be the covered servicemember's only next of kin. For
example, if a covered servicemember has three siblings and has not
designated a blood relative to provide care, all three s lings would be
considered the covered servicemember's next of kin. Alternatively,
where a covered servicemember has a sibling(s) and designates a cousin
as his or her next of kin for FMLA purposes, then only the designated
cousin is eligible as the covered servicemember's next of kin. An
employer is permitted to require an employee to provide confirmation of
covered family relationship to the covered servicemember pursuant to §
825.122.

e. “Covered active duty” for members of a regular component of the Armed Forces
means duty during deployment of the member with the Armed Forces to a
foreign country.

Covered active duty or call to covered active duty status in the case of a
member of the Reserve components of the Armed Forces means duty



FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT POLICY NO. 9500-7028

PAGE 7 OF 12

during the deployment of the member with the Armed Forces to a
foreign country under a Federal call or order to active duty in support of
a contingency operation, in accordance with 29 CR 825.102.

ii. The leave may commence as soon as the individual receives the call-up
notice. (Son or daughter for this type of FMLA leave is defined the same
as for child for other types of FMLA leave except that the person does
not have to be a minor.) This type of leave would be counted toward the
employee’s 12-week maximum of FMLA leave in a 12-month period.

f. Military caregiver leave (also known as covered servicemember leave) to care
for an injured or ill servicemember or veteran.

i.  An employee whose son, daughter, parent or next of kin is a covered
servicemember may take up to 26 weeks in a single 12-month period to
take care of leave to care for that servicemember.

ii.  Next of kin is defined as the closest blood relative of the injured or
recovering servicemember.

E. Employee Status and Benefits During Leave

1.

While an employee is on leave, the organization will continue the employee's health
benefits during the leave period at the same level and under the same conditions as if
the employee had continued to work.

If the employee chooses not to return to work for reasons other than a continued
serious health condition of the employee or the employee's family member or a
circumstance beyond the employee's control, the organization will require the
employee to reimburse the organization the amount it paid for the employee's health
insurance premium during the leave period.

While on paid leave, the employer will continue to make payroll deductions to collect
the employee's share of the premium.

The organization will provide 15 days' notification prior to the employee's loss of
coverage.

If the employee contributes to a life insurance or disability plan, the organization will
continue making payroll deductions while the employee is on paid leave. While the
employee is on unpaid leave, the employee may request continuation of such benefits
and pay his or her portion of the premiums, or the organization may elect to maintain
such benefits during the leave and pay the employee's share of the premium payments.
If the employee does not continue these payments, the organization may discontinue
coverage during the leave. If the organization maintains coverage, the organization may
recover the costs incurred for paying the employee's share of any premiums, whether
or not the employee returns to work.

F. Employee Status After Leave



FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT POLICY NO. 9500-7028

PAGE 8 OF 12

1. Anemployee who takes leave under this policy may be asked to provide a fitness for
duty (FFD) clearance from the health care provider. This requirement will be included in
the organization’s response to the FMLA request.

2.  Generally, an employee who takes FMLA leave will be able to return to the same
position or a position with equivalent status, pay, benefits and other employment
terms.

3.  The position will be the same or one which is virtually identical in terms of pay, benefits
and working conditions.

G. Under limited circumstances where restoration to employment will cause "substantial and

grievous economic injury"” to its operations, an employer may refuse to reinstate certain highly-
paid, salaried "key" employees. In order to do so, the employer must notify the employee in
writing of his/her status as a "key" employee (as defined by FMLA), the reasons for denying job
restoration, and provide the employee a reasonable opportunity to return to work after so
notifying the employee. Use of Paid and Unpaid Leave.

1.  An employee who is taking FMLA leave because of the employee’'s own serious health
condition or the serious health condition of a family member must use FMLA leave
concurrently with any accrued Personal Leave Bank (PLB), including Extended lliness
Benefit (EIB) during the otherwise unpaid time, to the extent permitted by law and in
compliance with the organization’s PLB (9500-7024) and EIB (9500-7025) Policies.

2.  Leave for the birth of the child and for an employee's serious health condition, including
workers' compensation leave (to the extent that it qualifies), will be designated as FMLA
leave and will run concurrently with FMLA. For example, if an employer provides six
weeks of pregnancy disability leave, the six weeks will be designated as FMLA leave and
counted toward the employee's 12-week entitiement. The employee may then be
required to substitute accrued paid leave as appropriate before being eligible for
unpaid leave for what remains of the 12-week entitlement. An employee who is taking
leave for the adoption or foster care of a child must use any accrued Personal Leave
Bank (PLB), including Extended lllness Benefit (EIB) during the otherwise unpaid time, to
the extent permitted by law and in compliance with the organization’s PLB (9500-7024)
and EIB (9500-7025) Policies.

3.  An employee who is using military FMLA leave for a qualifying exigency must use FMLA
leave concurrently with any accrued Personal Leave Bank (PLB}, inclu ng Extended
lliness Benefit (EIB) during the otherwise unpaid time, to the extent permitted by law
and in compliance with the organization’s PLB (9500-7024) and EIB (9500-7025) Policies.

4. An employee using FMLA military caregiver leave must use FMLA leave concurrently
with any accrued Personal Leave Bank (PLB), including Extended Iliness Benefit (EIB)
during the otherwise unpaid time, to the extent permitted by law and in compliance
with the organization’s PLB (9500-7024) and EIB (9500-7025) Policies.

Intermittent Leave or a Reduced Work Schedule



FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT POLICY NO. 9500-7028
PAGE 9 OF 12

1. The employee may take FMLA leave in 12 consecutive weeks, may use the leave
intermittently (take a day periodically when needed over the year) or, under certain
circumstances, may use the leave to reduce the workweek or workday, resulting in a
reduced hour schedule. In all cases, the leave may not exceed a total of 12 workweeks
(or 26 workweeks to care for an injured or ill servicemember over a 12-month period).

2.  The organization may temporarily transfer an employee to an available alternative
position with equivalent pay and benefits if the alternative position would better
accommodate the intermittent or reduced schedule, in instances of when leave for the
employee or employee's family member is foreseeable and for planned medical
treatment, including recovery from a serious health condition or to care for a child after
birth, or placement for adoption or foster care.

3.  For the birth, adoption or foster care of a child, the organization and the employee
must mutually agree to the schedule before the employee may take the leave
intermittently or work a reduced hour schedule. Leave for birth, adoption or foster care
of a child must be taken within one year of the birth or placement of the child.

4. If the employee is taking leave for a serious health condition or because of the serious
health condition of a family member, the employee should try to reach agreement with
the organization before taking intermittent leave or working a reduced hour schedule.
If this is not possible, then the employee must prove that the use of the leave is
medically necessary.

J. Certification for the Employee’s Serious Health Condition

1. The organization will require certification for the employee’s serious health condition.
Employee has the duty to provide a complete certification and to work with the
employer to provide the information requested in the certification so that PMC may
evaluate the employee’s request for FMLA.

2. The employee must respond to such a request within 15 days of the request.

Failure to provide certification may result in a denial of continuation of leave.

4. Medical certification will be provided using the Department of Labor Certification of
Health Care Provider for Employee’s Serious Health Condition.

5.  With employee’s permission, the organization may directly contact the employee’s
health care provider for verification or clarification purposes using a health care
professional, an HR professional, leave administrator or management official. The
organization will not use the employee’s direct supervisor for this contact. Before the
company makes this direct contact with the health care provider, the employee will be
a given an opportunity to resolve any deficiencies in the medical certification. In
compliance with HIPAA Medical Privacy Rules, the organization will obtain the
employee’s permission for clarification of individually identifiable health information.

6. The organization has the right to ask for a second opinion if it has reason to doubt the
certification. The organization wiil pay for the employee to get a certification from a
second doctor, which the organization will select. The organization may deny FMLA
leave to an employee who refuses to release relevant medical records to the health

w



FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT POLICY NO. 9500-7028

PAGE 10 OF 12

care provider designated to provide a second or third opinion. If necessary to resolve a
conflict between the original certification and the second opinion, the organization will
require the opinion of a third doctor. The organization and the employee will mutually
select the third doctor, and the organization will pay for the opinion. This third opinion
will be considered final. The employee will be provisionally entitled to leave and
benefits under the FMLA pending the second and/or third opinion.

K. Certification for the Family Member’s Serious Health Condition

1.

The organization will require certification for the family member’s serious health
condition. The employee must respond to such a request within 15 days of the request.
Failure to provide certification may result in a denial of continuation of leave.

Medical certification will be provided using the Department of Labor Certification of
Health Care Provider for Family Member’s Serious Health Condition.

With employee’s permission the organization may directly contact the employee’s
family member’s health care provider for verification or clarification purposes using a
health care professional, an HR professional, leave administrator or management
official.

The organization will not use the employee’s direct supervisor for this contact. Before
the organization makes this direct contact with the health care provider, the employee
will be a given an opportunity to resolve any deficiencies in the medical certification. In
compliance with HIPAA Medical Privacy Rules, the organization will obtain the
employee’s family member’s permission for clarification of individually identifiable
health information.

The organization has the right to ask for a second opinion if it has reason to doubt the
certification. The organization will pay for the employee’s family member to get a
certification from a second doctor, which the organization will select. The organization
may deny FMLA leave to an employee whose family member refuses to release relevant
medical records to the health care provider designated to provide a second or third
opinion.

If necessary to resolve a conflict between the original certification and the second
opinion, the organization will require the opinion of a third doctor. The organization
and the employee will mutually select the third doctor, and the organization will pay for
the opinion. This third opinion will be considered final. The employee will be
provisionally entitled to leave and benefits under the FMLA pending the second and/or
third opinion.

L. Certification of Qualifying Exigency for Military Family Leave

1.

The organization will require certification of the qualifying exigency for military family
leave. The employee must respond to such a request within 15 days of the request.
Failure to provide certification may result in a denial of continuation of leave. This



FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT POLICY NO. 9500-7028

PAGE 11 OF 12

certification will be provided using the Department of Labor Certification of Qualifying
Exigency for Military Family Leave.

M. Certification for Serious Injury or lliness of Covered Servicemember for Military Family Leave

1.

The organization will require certification for the serious injury or illness of the covered
servicemember. The employee must respond to such a request within 15 days of the
request.

Failure to provide certification may result in a denial of continuation of leave. This
certification will be provided using the Department of Labor Certification for Serious
Injury or lliness of Covered Servicemember.

N. Recertification

1.

The organization may request recertification for the serious health condition of the
employee or the employee’s family member no more frequently than every 30 days
unless circumstances have changed significantly, or if the organization receives
information casting doubt on the reason given for the absence, or if the employee
seeks an extension of his or her leave, or in the case of an employee using FMLA on an
intermittent basis, in conjunction with an absence from work. Otherwise, the
organization may request recertification for the serious health condition of the
employee or the employee’s family member every six months in connection with an
FMLA absence. The organization may provide the employee’s health care provider with
the employee’s attendance records and ask whether need for leave is consistent with
the employee’s serious health condition.

O. Fitness-for-Duty

1.

In order for an employee to return from a medical leave. A fitness-for-duty statement
must be provided to Human Resources at least three (3) work days before the desired
return-to-work day (or as soon as possible if less). Failure to provide the statement may
result in a delay in the employee’s return to work. The Employee Health Nurse is
responsible for the final determination on the clearance of an employee to return to
work. In addition, the Employee Health Nurse is responsible for evaluating the physical
and mental requirements of positions to establish return to work requirements.

P. Responsible Person

1.

Q.

Parrish Healthcare’s Human Resources Department is responsible for ensuring that all
personnel adhere to the requirements of this policy.

Enforcement



FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT POLICY NO. 9500-7028
PAGE 12 OF 12

a. Parrish Healthcare may take progressive disciplinary action, up to and including
termination, against employees whose conduct violates this or other Parrish Healthcare
policies and practices unless otherwise provided under law. If an employee fails to
meet the requirements of this policy for FMLA leave, their request for leave may be
denied. Any period of absence not covered by this policy will be administered under
Parrish Healthcare’s Attendance Policy (9510-48).

V. REFERENCES

A. FMLA -US Department of Labor www.dol.gov/whd/fmla
Personal Leave Bank Policy 9500-7024

Extended Leave Bank Policy 9500-7025

Attendance Policy- 9510-48

SO0 w



NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING - REGULAR

JUNE 13,2017

The regular meeting of the Medical Executive Committee of the North Brevard County Hospital
District operating Parrish Medical Center was held June 13, 2017, at 5:30 pm in the Conference
Center. A quorum was determined to be present.

CALL TO Op™*©™
Dr. Aluino Ochoa, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 8:02 pm.

PF‘7IF“I ARNITY A DIPROVAL OF MIT\TIT"I"ES
The tollowing motion was made, seconded, and approved unanimously.

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO APPROVE THE PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES
(MAY 16,2017) AS WRITTEN AND DISTRIBUTED.

ACTION TAKEN: Noted by the Committee.

Tk~ T-i-t Commission
'The 2017 Hospital National Safety Patient Goals will remain in the books and included in the
packet each month as a resource. A copy is appended to the file copy of these minutes.

ACTION TAKEN: Noted by the Committee.

Q-
The Committee reviewed the Board Quality minutes (April 3, 2017), and the Quality Value

Dashboard for April 2017. Copies are appended to the file copy of these minutes.
ACTION TAKEN: Noted by the Committee..

Follow-up MEC Item(s) — William Rylander, MD — Request for Emergency Department
Ex‘\m“":n-‘

The Committee reviewed the completion of a one-year notice (May 2016) from William
Rylander, MD requesting to be exempt from emergency department call. Discussion had ensued
at the May meeting regarding whether there will be adequate gastroenterology coverage if Dr.
Rylander is granted exemption. A copy is appended to the file copy of these minutes. Dr. Ochoa
spoke with Dr. William Rylander and Dr. Amar Hemaidan as directed by the MEC but he was
unavailable to report. The following motion was made, seconded and approved unanimously.

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO TABLE UNTIL DR. OCHOA CAN GIVE HIS REPORT
TO THE MEC.




MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE - REGULAR
JUNE 13, 2017
PAGE 2

UNFINISHED BUSIM™ €S — Quality Performar -~ Algorithm
ACTION ITEM (February 21, 2017): Dr. Tronetti will rework the algorithm in the policy
for submission. Dr. Tronetti was given copies of the following policies:

e 9500-07 — Quality Improvement Performance Plan

e 9500-8012 — Risk Management Plan

UPDATE: Dr. Tronetti willl present the algorithm at the July MEC meeting.

NEW BUSINESS — Honorary Staff

The Committee reviewed the email from Dr. Pedro Carmona requesting that Luis Quintero, MD
be granted Honorary medical staff for his years of services to PMC. The following motion was
made. There was no second.

ACTION TAKEN (FAILED): MOTION TO CHANGE THE MEDICAL STAFF CATEGORY
OF LUIS QUINTERO, MD TO HONORARY.

Resignation(s)
The Committee reviewed the following resignation(s). A copy is appended to the file copy of
these minutes.

e Emily Costelloo ARNP (AHP/Emergency Department) — Effective June 4,
2017/Appointed April 1, 2002

ACTION TAKEN: Noted by Committee.
P-“rement(s

The Committee reviewed the following retirement(s). A copy is appended to the file copy of
these minutes.

e Miguel R. Rivera, MD (Associate/Neurology) — Effective June 1, 2017/Appointed July
17,1972

ACTION TAKEN: Noted by Committee.
For Informatior “uly

The Committee noted the following for the Committee’s review. Copies are appended to the file
copy of these minutes.

1. Joint Commission Perspectives — June 2017

Information/Education items sent by Courier to the Medical Staff to be noted in the minutes.
Copies are appended to the file copy of these minutes.




MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE — REGULAR
JUNE 13, 2017
PAGE 3

1. (Email from Bill Blewitt - May 15, 2017) Ransomware Attacks and Employee
Compliance with Policies

2. (Flyer) Brevard County Medical Society — General Membership Meeting, May 25, 2017
3. (Flyer) General Cancer Conference, May 23, 2017, 12:30 pm, Conference Center

4, Meditech nhancements — May 23, 2017

5. Meditech nhancements — June 7, 2017

ACTION TAKEN: Noted by the Committee.

REP™™T™ FROM ADMINISTRATION - Board of Directors Minutes, Game Plan Score
~~~d, and Fir~--ials/Budget

‘The Committee reviewed the Board of Directors Regular Board of Directors Meeting minutes

(April 3, 2017) from the June Board of Directors packet. A copy is appended to the file copy
of these minutes.

ACTION TAKEN: Noted by the Committee.

CONSENT™ * GENDA - None

COMMITTEF ™™ ™ORT(S)

The Committee reviewed the committee minute(s) of Infection Control Committee (May 18,
2017). Discussion ensued and the following motion was made, seconded and unanimously
approved.

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO ACCEPT THE COMMITTEE REPORT(S) AS
PRESENTED.

CLINI“** DE™* ™ TMENT REPORT(S)

The Committee reviewed the department minute(s) of Anesthesiology (May 17, 2017), and
Family Practice (May 8, 2017). Copies are appended to the file copy of these minutes.
Discussion ensued and the following motion was made, seconded and unanimously approved.

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO ACCEPT THE CLINICAL DEPARTMENT
REPORT(S) AS RESENTED.

OPEN FORUM — None

ACTION TAKEN: Noted by the Committee.




MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE - REGULAR
JUNE 13, 2017
PAGE 4

MEETINGS
A, Ad Hoc Credentials Review Committee Executive Session, August 7, 2017, Vice

President - Nursing Conference Room, Time TBD

B. Quality Committee, August 7, 2017, Executive Conference Room (ECR), Noon

C. Budget & Finance Committee, August 7, 2017, Executive Conference Room

D. Board of Directors Executive Committee, August 7, 2017, Executive Conference
Room

E. Board of Directors Executive Session, August 7, 2017, Executive Conference Room,

(To commence no earlier than 2:00 pm)

F. Educational, Governmental and Community Relations Committee, August 7, 2017,
First Floor, Conference Center

G. Planning, hysical Facilities and Properties Committee, August 7, 2017, First Floor,
Conference Center

H. Board of Directors, August 7, 2017, First Floor, Conference Center, (To commence
following the last Board Committee meeting no earlier than the posted time).

L. Joint Conference Committee — TBA
J. Medical Staff Meetings — first Tuesday each quarter (March, June, and September) at 6:00
pm. The annual meeting in December begins immediately following dinner at

5:30 pm, Conference Center.

K. Credentials and Medical Ethics Committee, second Monday of each month, Conference
Center, 5:30 pm.

ACTION TAKEN: Noted by the Committee.

ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:07 pm.

Pamela Tronetti, DO Pedro Carmona, MD
President-Elect/Medical Staff Secretary - Treasurer




NORTH BREVARD COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
OPERATING
PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING - REGULAR

JULY 18, 2017

The regular meeting of the Medical Executive Committee of the North Brevard County Hospital
District operating Parrish Medical Center was held July 18, 2017, at 5:30 pm in the Conference
Center. A quorum was determined to be present.

CALL TO OR™"R
Dr. Aluino Ochoa, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 6:40 pm.

REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES
The following motion was made, seconded, and approved unanimously.

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO APPROVE THE PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES
(JUNE 13, 2017) AS WRITTEN AND DISTRIBUTED.

ACTION TAKEN: Noted by the Committee.

The Joint C'~—~=*-~ion
The 2017 Hospital National Safety Patient Goals will remain in the books and included in e
packet each month as a resource. A copy is appended to the file copy of these minutes.

ACTION TAKEN: Noted by the Committee.

QF-AI:A..:
There were no Board Quality minutes or the Quality Value Dashboard available for rev w
because the Boar of Directors did not meet in July.

ACTION TAKEN: Noted by the Committee.

T~-Nov ~ MEC Item(s) — William Rylander, MD — Request for Emergency Department
Exemption

The Committee reviewed the completion of a one-year notice (May 2016) from William
Rylander, MD requesting to be exempt from emergency department call. Discussion had ensued
at the May meeting regarding whether there will be adequate gastroenterology coverage if Dr.
Rylander is granted exemption. A copy is appended to the file copy of these minutes. Dr. Ochoa
spoke with Dr. William Rylander and Dr. Amar Hemaidan as directed by the MEC but he was
unavailable to report. The following motion was made, seconded and approved unanimously.

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION CONTINUES TO BE TABLED.

UNFINISPT™ BTISINESS — Quality Perfo~—-nce Algorithm




MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE - REGULAR
JULY 18, 2017
PAGE 2

ACTION ITEM (February 21, 2017): Dr. Tronetti will rework the algorithm in the policy
for submission. Dr. Tronetti was given copies of the following policies:

e 9500-07 — Quality Improvement Performance Plan

e 9500-8012 - Risk Management Plan

UPDATE: The policies above are being revised. Dr. Tronetti’s algorithm is being reviewed
as part of the revision.

NEW BUSINESS — Medical Staff Rules & Regulations Amendment

The Committee reviewed the request for the addition of the Patient Blood Management
Committee (formerly known as the Transfusion Committee) to the Medical Staff Rules &
Regulations. It is in the charter that this Committee will be a Medical Staff committee.
Discussion ensued and the following motion was made, seconded and approved unanimously.

ACTION TAKE: MOTION TO SEND OUT TO THE MEDICAL STAFF THE
AMENDMENT TO THE MEDICAL STAFF RULES & REGULATIONS TO ADD
PATIENT BLOOD MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (FORMERLY THE BLOOD
TRASFUSION COMMITTEE) FOR ONE (1) MONTH COMMENT PERIOD.

R-~~~gnition(s)
The Committee reviewed the following recognition(s). A copy is appended to the file copy of
these minutes.

A. Juan Perez, MD — Passed Spring 2017 Pulmonary Disease Maintenance of
Certification (MOC)

B. Ethan Alan Webb, MD - Passed Spring 2017 Internal Medicine Maintenance of
Certification (MOC)

ACTION TAKEN: Noted by Committee. A congratulatory letter will be sent.
For Information Only

The Committee noted the following for the Committee’s review. Copies are appended to the file
copy of these minutes.

l. Joint Commission Perspectives — July 2017

Information/Education items sent by Courier to the Medical Staff to be noted in the minutes.
Copies are appended to the file copy of these minutes.

1. Memo from Jeft Ruff, PharmD/Pharmacy Clinical Coordinator (June 30, 2017):
Pantoprazole (Protonix ®) IV Outage




MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE - REGULAR
JULY 18, 2017
PAGE 3

2. Memo from Erin Head, Director of HIM/Quality/Medical Staff Services (June 30, 2017)
— Nuance Transcription Downtime

3. Hypertype, Inc. — Dictation Procedures

4. (Email) Meditech Downtime for Server Maintenance — July 19

5. Meditech Enhancements — June 14, 2017

6. Meditech Enhancements — June 28, 2017

7. Meditech Enhancements — July 5, 2017

ACTION TAKEN: Noted by the Committee.

REPOR™ YROM ADMINISTRATION - Board of Directors Minutes, Game Plan Score
Card, a-- “inancials/Budget

There were no Board minutes available for review because the Board of Directors did not meet
in July.

ACTION TAKEN: Noted by the Committee.

CONSENT AGF™DA

Dr. Ochoa asked the Committee if anyone wished to remove an item. None were removed.
Copies are appended to the file copy of these minutes. Discussion ensued and the following
motion was made, seconded and approved unanimously.

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING CONSENT AGENDA
ITEM(S):

A. ACTION TAKEN: Motion to send a favorable recommendation to the Board of
Directors to approve revised Policy 9500-2025 — Infection Control and Prevention.

B. ACTION TAKEN: Motion to approve (New) Policy 9500-2006 — Concurrent and
Overlapping Surgeries/Procedures.

C. ACTION TAKEN: Motion to approve (New) Policy 9500-2056 — Ultrasound Guided
Peripherally Inserted Mid-Line IV Catheter.

D. ACTION TAKEN: Motion to send a favorable recommendation to the Board of
Directors to approve revised Policy 9900-70A — Medical Records Completion Policy.



MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE - REGULAR
JULY 18, 2017
PAGE 4

E. ACTION TAKEN: Motion to favorable recommendation to the Board of Directors to
approve the revised Utilization Management Plan.

COMMITTEE REPORT(S)

The Committee reviewed the committee minute(s) of Cancer Committee (December 6, 2016 and
March 7, 2017), Intensive Care Committee (June 15, 2017), Pharmacy & Therapeutics
Committee (June 28, 2017), and Utilization Management/Medical Record Committee (June 14,
2017). Discussion ensued and the following motion was made, seconded and unanimously
approved.

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO ACCEPT THE COM MITTEE REPORT(S) AS
PRESENTED.

CLINICAL DEP * "TMENT REPORT(S)

The Committee reviewed the department minute(s) of OB/Gyn (? 1y 15, 2017), Pathology (May
24, 2017), and Surgery (June 6, 2017). Copies are appended to the file copy of these minutes.
Discussion ensued and the following motion was made, seconded and unanimously approved.

ACTION TAKEN: MOTION TO ACCEPT THE CLINICAL DEPARTMENT
REPORT(S) AS PRESENTED.

OPEN FORUM
The subject of the Medicine Reconciliation forms was brought up in regards to the Emergency
Room nurses including the form when the patient is transferred.

ACTION TAKEN: Noted by Committee and there will be appropriate follow-up.
MEETINGS
A. Ad Hoc Credentials Review Committee Executive Session, August 7, 2017, Vice

President - Nursing Conference Room, Time TBD

B. Quality Committee, August 7, 2017, Executive Conference Room (ECR), Noon

C. Budget & Finance Committee, August 7, 2017, Executive Conference Room

D. Board of Directors Executive Committee, August 7, 2017, Executive Conference
Room

E. Board of Directors Executive Session, August 7, 2017, Executive Conference Room,

(To commence no earlier than 2:00 pm)



MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE — REGULAR
JULY 18, 2017

PAGE 5

F. Educational, Governmental and Community Relations Committee, August 7, 2017,
First Floor, Conference Center

G. Planning, Physical Facilities and Properties Committee, August 7, 2017, First Floor,
Conference Center

H. Board of Directors, August 7, 2017, First Floor, Conference Center, (To commence
following the last Board Committee meeting no earlier than the posted time).

L. Joint Conference Committee — TBA

J. Medical Staff Meetings — first Tuesday each quarter (March, June, and September) at 6:00
pm. The annual meeting in December begins immediately following dinner at
5:30 pm, Conference Center.

K. Credentials and Medical Ethics Committee, second Monday of each month, Conference

Center, 5:30 pm.

ACTION TAKEN: Noted by the Committee.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:00 pm.

Aluino Ochoa, MD Pedro Carmona, MD
President/Medical Staff Secretary - Treasurer




Parrish Medical Center

UTILIZATION
MANAGEMENT
PLAN

201

wevised: 11/87, 12/89, 01/91, 08/92, 05/93, 09/95, 09/96, 09/97, 09/98. 09/99, 12/00, 03/02, 10/02, 09/03, 01/04, 01/05,
03/06,7/06,3/07,3/08,3/09,4/10, 5/11,4/12, 3/13, 4/14, 02/15, 4/1



Utilization Management Plan

Parrish Medical Center

UTILIZATION MANAGEMENT PLAN
20

L Introduction and Scope of Functions

1I Authority

Il Purpose

V. Utilization Management Committee

V. Objectives

VI Confidentiality

VII Conflict Of Interest

VIII.  Individual Written Plan of Care

IX, Methods of Review & Review Process

X Conduct of Reconsideration

X1 Committee Reports and Records

XI1. Developing a Corrective Plan Linking the Results to Continuing Medical Education
XIII.  Relationship to Third Party Payers

XIV.  Hospital Administration

XV. Physician Advisor and Review Personnel
XVI.  Discharge Planning and Case Management
XVII.  Performance Improvement Program
XVIII. Revision and Review

XIX Acceptance and Approval



II.

II1.

Utilization Management Plan

Parrish Medical Center
Utilization Management Plan

Introduction and Scope of Functions (42CFR456.50-145)

Parrish Medical Center (PMC) Utilization Management Plan contains references to both Utilization Management
and Utilization Review.  Utilization Management applies to the committee responsible for the Utilization
Management Program and re cts the broader scope of efforts to effectively manage resource utilization, while
maintaining quality patient care.

Utilization Review refers to the actual process of reviewing patient care. This plan has been developed and
approved by the Utilization Management Committee, the Medical Executive Committee, the Board of Directors,
and complies with regulatory requirements.

Authority

Parrish Medical Center (PMC) will perform all utilization review under the direction of the Utilization
Management and Medical Record Committee (UM/MRC) and in accordance with the Code of Federal
Regulations, 42 CFR 456.50 — 456.145, and the State of Florida Agency for Health Care Administration (AHCA)
guidelines, and all private review agencies contracted for review functions. Utilization Management at PMC is
recognized as a section of the overall Performance Improvement Plan of PMC. The Utilization Management and
Medical Record Committee is responsible for the utilization process at PMC with minutes forwarded to the
Medical Executive Committee (MEC) for review and comments/actions. The Chairman of the UM/MRC serves
as a member of the Board’s Quality Committee.

The Utilization Management Committee has been established as a standing committee of the Medical Staff in
accordance with the medical staff by-laws. This plan will be the working document governing the Utilization
Management Program’s operations.

Purpose (42CFR456.128-129)

The purpose of the Utilization Management Plan is to assess and improve the delivery of care to all patients,
regardless of payment source, in an efficient and cost-effective manner. The plan describes the methods for
conducting review of the appropriateness and medical necessity of admissions, continued stays, supportive
services, and for providing discharge planning. For all payor sources, the criteria <=+ that is used to determine
admission appropriateness at PMC is Milliman Care Guidelines (MCG). The case managers use the geometric
length of stay by DRG as a benchmark for the patient’s length of stay during the patient’s hospitalization.

The Utilization Management Program addresses over and underutilization and inefficient allocation of resources.
The appropriateness, clinical necessity, and timeliness of support services provided directly by the hospital, or
through referral contracts are also evaluated through this program. The program also performs concurrent and
retrospective review for identification of opportunities that may exist to enhance services in a cost effective
manner.



Utilization Management Plan

IV. Utilization Management Committee (42CFR456.105-106)

A.

Composition

The committee shall be comprised of at least five (5) members of the Active Medical Staff with one (1)
designated chairman. The Medical Director of Home Health shall be one of the physician members. The
committee will also include four (4) non-physician members appointed by the Chief Executive Officer
with the approval of the Chairman. The non-physician members shall represent nursing service, health
information services, case management, and finance/administration, and shall have voting privileges.

Meeting Frequency

The Utilization Management Committee will meet at least four (4) times per year or more frequently if
deemed necessary by the Chairman.

V. Objectives

The objectives of the program are to:

>

Implement an effective and timely program of pre-admission, admission and concurrent review in
accordance with federal and state guidelines by using pre-established, evidence-based, and approved
guidelines.

Assure the appropriate allocation of the hospital’s resources in providing optimal quality patient care in
the most cost effective manner.

Identify patterns of practice or repeated occurrences that affect the efficient provision of quality patient
care and the ability to obtain optimal reimbursement for services performed.

Systematically review the pattern of practice using approved, evidence-based guidelines to prioritize each
in terms of impact on patient care.

Address effective methods of altering inappropriate resource use and assuring optimal reimbursement.

Assure that the methods are implemented and the solutions are effective through the performance
improvement-monitoring program.

Assure the development, maintenance, and execution of an effective Utilization Management Plan and
review/revise as necessary.

Monitor the appropriate utilization of beds and support services through concurrent and retrospective
reviews of the necessity for inpatient admissions, appropriate duration of stays, and timely and
appropriate use of diagnostic and therapeutic services.

Monitor denials, and assist in appeals as appropriate. Address any trends identified through the quality
improvement methodology.

Provide ongoing education to patients, families, and physicians in an effort to assist them in making
quality, cost-effective healthcare decisions.



Utilization Management Plan

VI. Confidentiality (42CFR456.113)

VII.

Confidentiality shall be maintained, using best efforts to respect of the patient’s right to privacy, and in keeping
with the hospital policy and confidentiality statement. As with all patient specific information, the identities of
individual recipients in Utilization Review records and reports will be kept confidential.

All persons involved in utilization management and review activities, whether hospital employees or members of
the medical staff, shall maintain the confidentiality of the patient’s medical record. The identity of any physician
or other health care practitioner under review will be kept confidential; he/she will be identified by number in any
documentation. All utilization review statistics, records, and reports shall be stored in the locked offices of the
Health Information Services Department. All committee findings, reports, recommendations, and statistics shall
be maintained as confidential.

The procedures of the utilization review program shall be open to review by the Department of Health and Human
Services (designee), Medicare Review Agency, The Joint Commission and others as designated by the hospital
Chief Executive Officer (CEO).

Conflict of Interest (42CFR456.106)

To comply with federal and state regulations, the Utilization Management Committee will consist of physician
members who do not have direct financial interest in any Hospital. Reviews shall not be conducted by any person
who has a professional interest in the care of the patient or a significant financial interest in the care of the
patient(s) whose case(s) is/are being reviewed. The Case Management Department shall maintain copies of
certification for each physician member of the Utilization Management Committee indicating that they have no
financial interest in any hospital.

VIII. Individual Written Plan of Care (42CFR456.80)

A. A physician, physician’s assistant or nurse practitioner must certify for each recipient that inpatient
services in a hospital are/were needed. The need for inpatient services will be certified at the time of
admission or, if an individual applies for assistance while in the hospital, before the Medicaid agency
authorizes payment. The physician will provide each patient with a plan of care in the medical record.

B. The plan of care must include:
1. Diagnosis, symptoms, complaints, and complications indicating the need for admission.
. A description of the functional level of the individual.
3. Any orders, as appropriate::
a. Medications;
b. Treatments;
¢. Restorative and Rehabilitative Services;
d. Activities;
e. Case Management and Social Services;
f.  Diet;
4, Plans for continuing care, as appropriate; and
5. Plans for discharge, as appropriate.
C. Orders and activities must be developed in accordance with physician’s instructions.
D. Orders and activities must be reviewed and revised as appropriate by all personnel involved in the care of

an individual.



Utilization Management Plan

Review of each plan of care and re-certification must be made by the physician, or other personnel
involved in the patient’s care, at least every 60 days for inpatients, or every 30 days for outpatients

Certification is determined by the physician in accordance with regulatory and third party payer
requirements.

IX. Methods of Review and Review Process (42CFR456.134)

A.

Selection of Patients to be considered for review:

1.

Pre-admission certification, admission and concurrent review shall be conducted on Title XVIIT
(Medicare), and Title XIX (Medicaid) patients to ensure that prescribed criteria for medical
necessity is in compliance and that pre-procedure approval is granted on all applicable cases.

Worker’s Compensation cases will be reviewed to assure that services rendered are associated
with the injury and/or require an inpatient level of care.

Inpatients and outpatients are subject to review regardless of payer source.

A1V1AUdl COMUIINCTC1al 1Nsurance sianaaras.

Any patient where an identified utilization concern is brought to the attention of the Case
Management Department.

Patients requiring procedures that are not available at PMC, thereby needing to be transferred to
another facility for procedure, and patients being transferred to PMC from other facilities.

Performance of Review

1.

The patient’s medical record includes information needed for the Utilization Management
Committee to perform utilization review. This information must include:

a. Identification of the patient

b. The name of the patient’s physician

c. Date of admission

d. Reasons and plan for continued stay, if applicable

e. Other supporting material that the committee believes appropriate to be included in the
record.

f. Certification and re-certification information and data to support.

g. Date of operating room reservation, if applicable.

h. Justification of emergency admission, if applicable.

Reviews falling under this Utilization Management plan shall be conducted concurrently and/or
retrospectively by the Director of Case Management, the Case Managers, Physician Advisor or
designee and/or by the Utilization Management Committee.

Commercial Insurers who request acces: to medical records must follow hospital policy:
Administrative Policy #9500-50 “Patient Mcuical Record Review by Outside Agencies” and Case
Management Policy #7400-1015 “Chart Reviews Performed by Non-Hospital Personnel”.



C.

Utilization Management Plan

Review Criteria:

The review criteria 1utilized for admission and continnied stav ntilization review will he the most curren:

D.

E.

wvailable.

Pre-Admission Review

In accordance with regulatory and third party payer requirements, pre-admission certification is
performed through Patient Registration/Financial Services prior to or at the time of admission
with Case Management support as needed. Case Management support includes, but is not limited
to, review of the case in person or via phone, and ongoing education with Patient
Registration/Financial Services regarding certification process.

The Case Managers using the approved criteria may review elective and urgent (non-elective)
admissions to assure medical necessity of patient admission to determine appropriate patient
status (i.e.. ambulatory, outpatient observation or inpatient admission) in accordance with
regulatory and third party payer requirements.

If the patient does not meet criteria/guidelines for admission, Case Management will notify the
Attending Physician to discuss the admission criteria/guidelines in accordance with regulatory
and third party payer requirements as outlined in the hospital’s policy and procedures.

Admission Review

Case Management has been designated to perform the admission review function by the
Utilization Management Committee.

A Case Manager shall review each specified admission within one
dav trom tne nme or admission I he Case Manager shall screen the admission using
The admission may be justified by meeting the

Time limits for admission (42CFR456.125): Review of each recipient’s admission to the hospital
is conducted (a) within one day after admission, for an individual who is receiving
Medicaid at that time; or (b) within one day after the hospital is notified of the
application for Medicaid, for an individual who applies while in the hospital.

The /ill contact the attending physician for additional information in
accoraance witn regutatory and third party payer requirements, as outlined in hospital policy and
procedures.

The Utilization Management Committee will make a final decision on a recipient’s need for
admission and give notice of an adverse final decision within two working days of admission or
within third party payer requirements. Written notice of any adverse final decision on the need
for admission (42CFR456.123 [e] through [g]) will be sent to hospital administration, attending
physician, Medicaid agency, recipient, and if possible, the next of kin or sponsor.

LI¢ AamiIssIon Criterion 1s met, Ne aamission 1S approveda in accordance with regulatory and third
party payer requirements. The first continued stay review date is assigned



Utilization Management Plan

after the initial review. All admission and subseauent natient reviews will be documentec
until the patient is discharged from
ine nospltal per nospltal ‘S pollcy and procedures.

The computerized review will be maintained in the Allscript’s computer
system per regulatory and tnirg party payer requirements.

Concurrent Review

Once the admission is annroved. continued stay reviews will be performed by the

a. Every 72 hours (or every three business days at a minimum) from the previous review
date, until the time of patient discharge; or

b. As deemed necessary by the reviewers, when problems or trends are identified, or as
required by regulatory and third party payers.

The Geometric Mean Length of Stay (LOS) by DRG as published in the Federal Register will be
used as a guideline for length of stay comparisons. This may vary depending on the
age/disability group of the patient.

Patient charts shall be reviewed, by the above nersonnel. for the level of service nrovided and the
need for continued hospitalization.

screening cases with admission dat

criteria are met, the hospital day will be considered justified.

If it becomes apparent that the ire not met and
further hospitalization is not jusurieq, tne reviewer snall contact tne Attending rhysician. If the
Attending Physician agrees, he/she shall discharge the patient. If there are undocumented factors,
which will result in the guidelines being met, the Attending Physician shall provide
documentation and the continued stay shall be justified in accordance with regulatory and
consistent with third party payer requirements.

If the Attending Physician concurs that further hospitalization is not justified, but the patient
objects to the discharge, the patient has a right to appeal the discharge as indicated in the
Important Message from Medicare Notice, which is given to the patient within 48 hours of
admission and discharge, in accordance with regulatory requirements as appropriate. If the
Medicare review agency concurs with the attending physician and hospital that further
hospitalization is not justified, or if the patient objects to the discharge and does not appeal the
discharge, the case manager shall issue the Detailed Notice of Non-coverage (HINNs) or request
a copy of the denial letter issued by the third party payer as appropriate. Hospital policy and
procedure regarding this process will be in accordance with regulatory and third party payer
requirements.

Notification of adverse decision for continued stay complies with CFR456.137. There is no
allowance for grace days. The effective date of an in-house denial for Medicaid recipients is
midnight of the day medical necessity ceases to exist. A copy of the Notification of Adverse
Final Decision will be provided to: hospital administration, attending physician, Medicaid
agency, recipient, and if possible, the next of kin or sponsor. (42CFR456.124 Notification of
Adverse Decision)

If the ot met and the Attending
Physician aoes not agree 1o aiscnarge, tne Lase Manager shall escalate the case to the Physician

8



B.

A.

Utilization Management Plan

Advisor or Utilization Management/Medical Record Committee member for review , or request a
copy of the denial letter issued by the third party payer as appropriate. Hospital policy and
procedure regarding this process will be in accordance with regulatory and third party payer
rc  irements. The Utilization Management Committee will make a final decision on a recipients
need for continued stay and give notice of an adverse final cision within one working day after
the assigned continued stay review dates or wi  in third party payer requirements. Written notice
of any adverse fin: decision on the need for continued stay under CFR456.135 [f] through [h]
will be sent to hospital administration, attending physician, Medicaid agency, recipient, and if
possible, the next of kin or sponsor.

X. Conduct of Reconsideration

Conduct of Reconsideration will be performed in accordance with regulatory and third party payer
requirements.

Procedures for Conduct of Reconsideration are outlir  in hospital policy and procedure.

XI. Committee Reports and Records

A.

A.

The initial and continued review dates and information shall be recorded and maintained at a minimum of
five years or until the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) verifies that the cost report has officially closed for
that time period.

The Utilization Management Committee shall maintain the minutes or records of each committee meeting
including the actions taken regarding admission or continued stay of any patient reviewed, and the
reasons for such actions. The Committee will report on identified trends associated with over-utilization,
ur r-utilization, and inefficient allocation of resources. Copies of such reports and records shall be
made available to the committee members, the hospital CEO, the Executive Committee of the Medical
Staff, and the Board of Directors.

The Director of Case Management shall be responsil : for maintaining individual and aggregate patient
data with respect to the reviews. He/She shall be responsible for distribution of the reports to appropriate
individuals. All utilization review findings shall be considered confidential.

XII. Developing a Corrective Plan Linking the Results to Continuing Medical Education

The Director of Case Management, or designee, shall select diagnosis/problems etc. for which admission
seems consistently inappropriate for focused review. Appropriate supporting data shall be obtained
through retrospective profile monitoring. If such areas are identified, the members of the hospital
Utilization Management Committee will consider methods for their correction or prevention.

When there is a delay with support services, verbal contact with the involved department is made to
expedite appropriate utilization. A trend of repeated delays will require a corrective action plan to be
completed, implemented, and monitored for effectiveness by the department manager or director.

Utilization related concerns (including supportive services and delays in provision of supportive services)
are identified through both the referrals of the Case Manager’s pattern analysis and the Performance
Improvement process.

During the continued stay review process, the reviewers will also be monitoring possible avoidable days
(i-e., problems with delays, unavailability of hospital services, delays in test results, social or placement
problems, missed orders, delays attributed to physician convenience, preference, etc.) that lead to

9



Utilization Management Plan

unnecessary days of hospitalization. The Director of Case Management, or designee, will analyze
avoidable days for patterns or trends. This information will be reported to the Utilization Management
Committee, hospital departments, and medical staff in the form of the Avoidable Day Report, so that
appropriate measures can be taken to improve the process.

The Case Manager during the concurrent review process will screen under-utilization of services.

1. Patient records will be screened for patient care services that are not ordered and/or provided.
Records will also be reviewed to determine appropriate utilization of ICU, telemetry beds as well
as monitoring follow-up on abnormal test results. When concerns are identified, the Case
Manager will notify the Director of Case Management, or designee for immediate intervention.

2. se Manager(s) will review records to ascertain that
are not being met prior to discharge of the patient. I
ire met and a discharge order is not written, the Case Manager will contact
the Allenaing rhysician.

3. The Director of Case Management, or designee, and the Case Managers will work with the QRM
Director, or designee, to compare data to peer norms to identify any pattern of under-utilization
by physician or DRG.

4. At the Utilization Management Committee meetings, appropriateness review of designated high-

volume radiology, cardiopulmonary, laboratory, and other hospital services will be reported as
trends are identified. As concerns are identified, recommendations for improvement can be
made.

S. While performing concurrent review, quality improvement opportunities are identified utilizing
the medical staff QI screening criteria.  Recommendations for action and resultant
implementations shall be the responsibility of the Medical Staff and shall be documented as part
of the continuing education function.

Data analysis and reporting of monthly summary reports of collected data will be given to the Utilization
Management Committee. The Director of Case Management or designee will assure distribution to the
appropriate individuals.

XIII. Relationship to Third Party Payers

A.

The hospital shall be responsible to see that individuals involved in the Utilization Review function are
made aware of the mechanics of receiving the presenting claim to third party payers; including the fiscal
intermediary, the basis upon which payment is allowed by the intermediary, the conditions under which
the intermediary denies claims and the claims anneal data about a case shall be open to review by fiscal
intermediaries, state agencies, and the Information and data shall be protected to assure
confidentially.

The Case Management department, Business Office, and Utilization Management Committee shall
review payment denials, as appropriate, to determine if the denial was justified or has potential for appeal
per regulatory and third party payer requirements ‘- 2e hospital policy and procedure). At its discretion,
the Case Management Department may engage tt d party review firms/organizations to assist in this
process. Further, third party firms may be engaged to provide education and assist medical staff in
making quality, cost effective healthcare decisions.

10



Utilization Management Plan

XIV. Hospital Iministration

A

The Hospital Administration through the Case Management Department shall provide assistance to assure
the proper functioning of the Utilization Management Program and assure that information is properly
assembled, forms are provided, providing clerical assistance and meeting space, and by acting as liaison
with all departments.

Administration shall be responsible for considering and acting upon decisions and recommendations
stemming from the Utilization Management function with respect to hospital policy, procedures, and
staffing. At its discretion, Administration may engage third party firms/organizations to assist in the
evaluation of the recommendations, education, and the development of hospital policies, procedures, and
staffing models.

XV. Physician Advisor and Review Personnel

Al

The Physician Advisor or designee may be a member of the Utilization Management Committee and will
be available on business days to communicate with the Case Managers regarding questionable admission
and concurrent review cases. The Case Manager will seek specific assistance and advice from the
Physician Advisor or designee including, but not limited to, the following situations:

1. Whenever the Case Manager has reason to believe that an admission, continued stay, or ancillary
service is not medically necessary based on criteria/guideline.

2. Whenever the Case Manager is unable to make a decision as to whether there is medical necessity
for acute care even when guidelines are clearly met.

3. Whenever the Case Manager believes there is an Avoidable Day screen met.

4. To assist in the implementation of discharge planning when delayed by patient, family, and/or
Attending Physician.

5. Perform or assist with Resource Management studies, DRG-focused studies, and Quality Action
Teams pertinent to the functions of Utilization Management.

The Physician Advisor or desienee has the authority to initiate denial of an admission or extension of
length- of-stay (pending review and concurrence when required). In most instances, the
Physician Advisor or designee shall render a decision within twenty-four (24) hours as to the approval or
denial of an admission or continued stay. The Director of Case Management, who reports to the
Executive Director, Information Governance, shall oversee review activities. Personnel qualified to
follow directives of the Utilization Management Committee and to apply guidelines and regulations will
perform Utilization Review. Sufficient qualified reviewers will be assigned to meet the requirements of
reviews.

XVI. Discharge Planning and Case Management

A.

The process of discharee nlanning begins nrior to or at admission for all matients. as a multidiscinlinarv
process. The 5)
potential post-nospuaiizaton neeas.

The wor  with the Attending Physician,
pati insure continuity of care post discharge.

11



Utilization Management Plan

An open referral system is used so that the initial planning is not delayed until the physician writes an
order. Input is sought from other health care professionals such as nursing and other ancillary services.

AULIDDIVLL ALl Lavllilatod UIdClldl g€ plaluuIly a5 necacd.

Discharee nlannine activities include, but are not limited to provisions
required to improve or maintain health status nost discharoe <ich ag nnreine hame
nlacement or home health care.
also provid ower resources sucn as assistance with obtalning tinancial assistance,
adoptions and guardianship programs.

XVII. Performance Improvement Program

A.

Utilization Management is one of the components of a hospital Performance Improvement Program.
During the course of concurrent and retrospective review, the Case Manager(s) will screen patient records
for quality concems. If any concerns are identified they will be referred to the QRM Department.

Medical care evaluation studies are conducted as part of the Performance Improvement process. The
purpose of these studies is to benchmark current practices to “Best Practice” standards and to improve
patient throughput processes. Selection and conduction of these studies is based on high volume, high
charges/costs, and identifiable trends in collected patient data. The content of these studies include length
of stay, ancillary cost/charges, benchmark data, avoidable day trends, and medical necessity for
nerformance of ancillarv festine The dafa utilized in performance of these studies is obtained from the

CMS, Truven progran and the patient’s
meqical recora. LUITenily, there are tour (4) studies in process.

XVIII . Revision and Review

A.

The Utilization Management program, written plan, department organization, criteria/guidelines, and
length of stay norms will be reviewed and amended as appropriate at least on an annual basis and will be
revised as appropriate to reflect the findings of the hospital’s utilization management activities and
Utilization Management Committee’s recommendations.

12



XIX. Acceptance and Approval

Utilization Management Plan

Director, Case Management

Chairman
utilization lvlanagement/Vledical Records Committee

M. D., President, Medical Staff

George Mikitarian, President/CEO Date

Herman A. Colg Jr., Chairman, Board of Directors . Date

13

Date

Date

Date



4} American Board
F of Internal Medicine®

Richard [ Baran. MD
President

Chief Executive Officer

AR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Claence H Braddock THOMD
Chair

Pawivia M. Coneily, MD
Chair-Elect

Dravid L Coleman, MD
Sonia A Madison, MS
Treasurer

Vineet Avora, MDD
Rozer W, Bush, MD

Yul DL Ejres, MDD
Mariuine M. Green. MD
Ratjeenv Jah MD

Debra L. Ness. MS

Rebert DL Siegel. MD

510 Walnut Street | Suite 1700 Philadelphia, PA © 19106-3699 L A0N.441.9946 wiww.abim.org

Secretary

A MEMBER BOARD OF THE
AMERICAN BOARD OF
MEDICAL SPECIALTIES {ABMS)

request@abim arg

Dr. Juan Jesus Perez

06/18/2017
ABIM ID: 127828

Dear Dr. Perez:

Congratulations! On behalf of the American Board of Internal Medicine (ABIM), I am pleased to
inform you that you passed your Spring 2017 Pulmonary Disease Maintenance of Certification
(MOC) Examination. This significant achievement marks your latest accomplishment toward

maintaining your certification, demonstrating your continued commitment to the profession and
your patients.

The following Score Report provides you with details about your exam performance. Please sign
in at ABIM.org to check your MOC Status Report to see what other requirements you may need to
meet to maintain your certification.

If you have met all of your MOC requirements, your new certificate will be mailed to you.

Again, congratulations! I wish you continued success throughout your career and we look forward
to working with you as you strive to stay current in your medical knowledge. If you have

questions, please call 1-800-441-ABIM (2246), Mon. —Fri, 8:30 a.m. to 8 p.m. ET, or send us an
e-mail.

Respectfully,
[ ldot f Booon W

Richard J. Baron, MD, MACP
President and CEO



b American Board
of Internal Medicine®

Richand ], Barow, MD
President

Chief Exceutive Officer

AR BOARD OF DIREG TORS

Clarence H. Braddock 111, M1
Chair

Patricia M. Conolly, MD
Chaiy-Flect

Dhead T Coleman, MD
Secretary

Sonian A Madison, MS
Treasurer

Vineet Arora, MD

Roger WL Push, MD

Vud DL Ejues, MD
Maransie M, fiveen, MD
Rajeey Juin, MD

Debra . Ness, MS

. Robere D), Siegel, NMD

A MEMDER BOARD OF THE
AMERICAN BOARD OF
MEDICAL SPECIALTIES [ABMS]

510 Walmit Street | Suite 1700 4 Philadelphia, PA 1 19106-3699 l BOOAE226 | wwavabimorg request@abim.org

t

Dr. Ethan Alan Webb

‘ 06/12/2017
ABIM ID: 170334

Dear Dr. Webb:

Congratulations! On behalf of the American Board of Internal Medicine (ABIM), [ am pleased to
inform you that you passed your Spring 2017 Internal Medicine Maintenance of Certification
(MOC) Examination, This significant achievement marks your latest accomplishment toward
maintaining your certification, demonstrating your continued commitment to the profession and
your patients.

The following Score Report provides you with details about your exam performance. Please gign
in at ABIM.org to check your MOC Status Report to see what other requirements you may need to
meet to maintain your certification.

If you have met all of your MOC requirements, your new certificate will be mailed to you.
Again, congratulations! I wish you continued success throughout your career and we look forward
to working with you as you strive to stay current in your medical knowledge. If you have
questions, please call 1-800-44 1-ABIM (2246), Mon. ~ Fri., 8:30 a.m. to 8 p.m. ET, or send us an
e-mail,

§

Respectfully,
oy B Y

Richard J. Baron, MD, MACP
P{esident and CEO



NEUROLOGIC ASSOCIATES OF CENTRAL BREVARD

' DR. MIGUEL RIVERA AND DR. ROBERTO MIXCO

DIPLOMATES AMERICAN ACADEMY OF PSYCHIATRY AND NEUROLOGY
1395 N. COURTENAY PKWY
SUITE 106
MERRITT ISLAND, FL 32953
321-452-1224

June 1, 2017

Jonda Erwin, CPCS

Parrish Medical Center
Medical Staff Services

951 North Washington Avenue
Titusville, Florida 32796-2194

RE: NOTICE OF RETIREMENT OF DR. MIGUEL R. RIVERA FROM MEDICAL PRACTICE
EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY DUE TO MEDICAL REASONS

Dear Jonda:

It has been my pleasure to work with you over the years.

| am sorry to say that | am retiring from medical practice immediately due to medical reasons.
I will be working with the office as closely as possible to assist in making this transition go as
smoothly as possible. Since | have retired | am returning the invoice for the medical staff
dues with this notice. [f you have any questions, please direct them to my office manager,
Pat Valluzzi.

Again, it has been a pleasure working with you over years.

Sincerely,

[>C7 Qo‘

Miguel R. Rivera, M.D.



Hudgens, Tracy

From: Mikitarian, George

Sent: Wednesday, July 19, 2017 8:16 PM
To: Hudgens, Tracy

Subject: Fwd: [External Sender]

For August Board book.

Sent via the Samsung Galaxy $7, an AT&T 4G LTE smartphone

-------- Original message --------

From: Biju Mathews <btmathews2@hotmail.com>

Date: 7/19/17 5:45 PM (GMT-05:00)

To: "Mikitarian, George" <George.Mikitarian@parrishn~~ ~om>
Cc: "Naresh Mody, MD" <nvmody@aol.com>

Subject: [External Sender]

WARNING: This message came from an external source. Please do not click links or open attachments if unexpected or unusual.
George

Dr Valin has joined a practice in Daytona.
We will be recruiting a new physician and would like recruitment assistance

Biju mathews

Naresh Nody

Sent from my iPhone



	1. Ad Hoc Committee
	2. Pension Committee
	3. Quality Committee
	Quality Agenda

	Approval of Minutes

	Dashboard


	4. Finance Committee
	Finance Agenda

	Approval of Minutes

	Home Dialysis JV Partnership 
with DaVita
	FY2018 Capital Budget

	FY2018 Major Budget Assumptions & FY2018 Operating Budget

	Public Hearing Dates

	Disposal


	5. Executive Committee
	Executive Cte Agenda

	Approval of Minutes

	Resolution Declaring 836 Century Medical Drive Surplus Real Property

	Resolution Declaring 830 Century Medical Drive Surplus Real Property

	Resolution Declaring 805 Century Medical Drive Surplus Real Property


	6. Education Committee
	Education Agenda

	Approval of Minutes


	7. Board of Directors
	Agenda

	Approval of Minutes

	Recognitions 
	New Business

	Medical Staff

	Utilization Management Plan

	Resignations

	Other



